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Cautionary Statement Regarding Forward-Looking Statements

The Private Securities Litigation Reform Act of 1995 referred to as the PSLRA provides safe harbor

for forward-looking statements Certain statements contained or incorporated by reference in this Quarterly

Report such as statements concerning planned manure-to-energy systems our sales pipeline our backlog our

projected sales and financial performance statements containing the words may assumes forecasts

positions predicts strategy will expects estimates anticipates believes projects intends

plans budgets potential continue target and variations thereof and other statements contained in this

Quarterly Report regarding matters that are not historical facts are forward-looking statements as such term is

defined in the PSLRA Because such statements involve risks and uncertainties actual results may differ

materially from those expressed or implied by such forward-looking statements Factors that could cause actual

results to differ materially include but are not limited to

uncertainties involving early-stage companies including our need for additional financing to continue as

going concern

uncertainties regarding the ability to obtain additional financing and the timing amount and terms of

such financing

the lack of binding commitments and the need to negotiate and execute definitive agreements for the

construction and financing of facilities

the lack of binding commitments for the purchase of gas produced by certain facilities

the lack of binding commitments for and other uncertainties with respect to supplies of substrate

uncertainties regarding the costs associated with substrate and other project inputs

risks and uncertainties relating to the development of markets for carbon sequestration credits and other

marketable renewable attributes and the level of revenues we may achieve from such sources

uncertainties regarding the amount and rate of growth in operating expenses

unpredictable developments including plant outages and repair requirements as well as risks related to

weather and the unpredictability of extreme weather events

risks related to performance on the part of suppliers of components goods and services to our facilities

financing and cash flow requirements
and uncertainties

inexperience with the design construction startup and operation of multi-digester facilities

difficulties involved in developing and executing business plan

technological uncertainties including those relating to competing products and technologies

unpredictable developments including plant outages and repair requirements

commodity price volatility particularly with respect to the price of natural gas

the difficulty of estimating construction development repair maintenance and operating costs and

timeframes

the uncertainties involved in estimating insurance and warranty recoveries if any

the inability to predict the course or outcome of any negotiations with parties involved with our projects

uncertainties relating to general economic and industry conditions

uncertainties relating to government and regulatory policies the legal environment intellectual property

issues and the competitive environment in which Environmental Power Corporation and its subsidiaries

operate

and other factors including those described in Part II Item 1A of this Quarterly Report on Form 1O-Q under the

heading Risk Factors as well as factors set forth in other filings we make with the Securities and Exchange

Commission Readers are cautioned not to place undue reliance on these forward-looking statements which

speak only as of the date that they are made We undertake no obligation to publicly update or revise any

forward-looking statements whether as result of new information future events or otherwise



PART

Item Business

Environmental Power is developer owner and operator of renewable
energy production facilities

Environmental Powers goal is to produce energy that is Beyond RenewableTM which Environmental Power

defines as energy that not only is derived from waste materials instead of precious resources but
energy

that is

also clean reliable and cost-effective Environmental Power and its subsidiaries develop and own facilities that
unlike many renewable

energy facilities are intended to be profitable without the need for subsidies other

governmental assistance Any such government assistance would however benefit Environmental Powers
facilities by increasing their potential for profitability while at the same time expanding opportunities for the

profitable deployment of such facilities Environmental Power believes that number of factors including
volatile energy prices greater desire for renewable

energy sources more stringent environmental and waste

management requirements imposed on farmers and food industry waste producers and greater revenue

opportunities from carbon sequestration credits will continue to provide favorable market conditions for its

business

In the past we have operated in two major segments through Microgy Inc as developer of renewable

energy facilities for the production and commercial application of methane-rich biogas from agricultural and

food industry wastes and through EPC Corporation and its subsidiary Buzzard Power Corporation referred to as

Buzzard the holder of leasehold interest in waste-coal fired generating facility in Pennsylvania known as the

Scrubgrass facility On May 31 2007 our board of directors authorized management to enter into negptiations

regarding the disposition of the leasehold interest in the Scrubgrass facility On February 29 2008 we completed
the disposition of the leasehold interest As result for financial reporting purposes we are now consolidating
all segments of continuing operations and reporting the results of Buzzard as discontinued operations We thus

now operate only in Microgys segment

Microgy is developer of renewable energy facilities for the production and commercial application of

methane-rich biogas produced from animal and food industry wastes The biogas can be sold to end-users or used

to produce pipeline-grade methane which Microgy refers to as renewable natural gas or RNG liquefied natural

gas or LNG compressed natural gas or CNG renewable electrical
energy or thermal energy as well is other

useful by-products Microgys systems utilize proven European biogas production technology that Microgy
believes is superior to other such technologies Microgy owns the perpetual exclusive North Americar license to

this technology In addition Microgy has developed significant engineering construction and process knowledge
regarding these systems

Due to the rates for conventional energy experienced in recent years in many U.S markets and expected
future increases in such rates over the long term Microgy believes that its systems can be profitable without the

need for subsidies rebates grants or other credits Nevertheless Microgy believes that tax credits renewable

energy credits pollution offset credits carbon sequestration credits and other such incentives may be available

now or in the future to Microgys facilities and such incentives would serve to enhance the potential pofitability

of its facilities In addition the energy output from Microgys systems may carry premium price in sOme areas
as numerous environmentally responsible entities are seeking renewable energy sources and many stats have

either passed or are considering legislation requiring utilities to obtain or generate certain
percentage of their

power from renewable sources

In addition to the value generated from the production and sale of renewable gas our facilities produce soil

amendment products that can be used as an alternative to peat moss and liquid fertilizer that can be used for
crop

growth We believe that our facilities can generate additional environmental benefits with significant eConomic
and social value by providing valuable waste management solution for farms and other producers of organic

wastes such as those in the food industry Federal and state agencies have either passed or are considering

regulations that require concentrated animal feeding operations referred to as CAFOs to implement
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changes to their current waste management practices We believe that these increasingly stringent environmental

regulations will be another significant factor creating opportunities for the deployment of our systems

Microgy intends to continue to focus on its strategy of developing large-scale standardized facilities

utilizing an ownership model pursuant to which Microgy will construct own and operate facilities and profit

from the ongoing sale of biogas or RNG produced by such facilities as well as sales of carbon sequestration

credits or other marketable environmental benefits This strategy encompasses the construction and operation of

stand-alone merchant plants like the Huckabay Ridge facility described below as well as facilities dedicated to

the needs of single customer at one or more customer locations such as the Grand Island facility described

below By pursuing this strategy Microgy intends to accumulate gas production and carbon sequestration

capacity over time In addition Microgy continues to standardize and streamline both its system design and its

approach to the marketplace in order to allow for rapid and cost-effective scale-up of its business

Having constructed both the multi- and single-tank system in four currently operating installations Microgy

intends to own the digester systems it develops Our multi-digester facilities will primarily produce pipeline-

quality renewable natural gas although we will also consider opportunities to produce and sell conditioned

biogas electricity CNG or LNG from our facilities Microgy development efforts are focused on applications

of its technology that are resource efficient Development of smaller scale and single-digester facilities will be

targeted toward customers that have multiple sites and opportunities that have shorter development

cycles Microgy goal with all projects is to maximize the profitability of every project by implementing the

right technology and most profitable off-take arrangements

Microgy efforts have resulted most recently in the start of commercial operations at the Huckabay Ridge

facility in Stephenville Texas which began commercial operations in the first quarter of 2008 Huckabay Ridge

consists of eight 916000-gallon digesters which operate together to process
the manure from approximately

10000 cows The gas is treated and compressed to produce pipeline-grade
methane that is sold and delivered

directly into nearby natural gas pipelines Huckabay Ridge is expected to produce approximately 635000 million

British Thermal Units or MMBtus of pipeline-grade methane per year

We have announced three other multi-digester facilities in development in Texas having the same expected

output as the Huckabay Ridge facility We have also announced three proposed multi-digester RNG facilities in

California that are in advanced stages
of development We completed $60 million in tax-exempt bond financing

in November 2006 relating to the construction and operation of the four RNG facilities in Texas Furthermore

we completed $62425 million in tax-exempt bond financing in September 2008 to finance portion of the

construction costs of two of our three proposed California facilities and we currently anticipate pursuing

further $26.02 million in such financing for the third proposed California facility

In addition Microgy has commenced construction of multi-digester renewable biogas facility to be located

at the flagship Grand Island Nebraska beef processing plant of JBS Swift Company referred to as Swift

Under the terms of the agreement with Swift Microgy will construct own and operate the facility and sell its gas

output to Swift for use in its operations to offset natural gas
utilization pursuant to 15-year gas purchase

agreement The Grand Island facility will consist of two 1.2 million gallon digesters that will process wastes

generated by the Grand Island processing facility and that we expect will be able to produce approximately

235000 MMBtus per year We completed $7.0 million in tax-exempt bond financing in Nebraska in July 2008 to

finance portion of the construction costs of the Grand Island facility In addition to this facility Microgy and

Swift may work together to identify evaluate and develop project opportunities at Swifts other North American

beef and pork processing facilities

In October 2006 we entered into business development agreement referred to as the BDA with Cargill

Incorporated referred to as Cargill We are leveraging our relationship with Cargill to accelerate our identification

and development of both facilities for the production of RNG and smaller-scale multi-digester facilities dedicated

to single customer Our agreement with Cargill is described in more detail under the heading BusinessFacility

and Business Development EffortsBusiness Development Agreement with Cargill appearing below



In addition Microgy is operating three single digester facilities in Wisconsin Microgy sold these projects to

the farms on which they are located and developed them in conjunction with Dairyland Power Cooperative an
electric cooperative utility referred to as Dairyland The biogas from these projects is used by Dairyland to

generate electricity

The Microgy Market Opportunity

We believe that facilities based on Microgys technology can generate profitable quantities of marketable
renewable gas from animal and food industry wastes and by-products Increased interest in renewable energy

sources as well as desire for
energy not subject to commodity price fluctuations drives demand for each of

these uses of gas produced by Microgys systems Also we believe that increasingly stringent environrbental

regulations concerning handling of animal and other wastes motivate demand for Microgys systems at or near
CAFO and food industry sites The ultimate opportunity to develop facilities as well as to manage and/or operate
them profitably depends on numerous factors including the value that can be derived from the various markets

described below

Gas Although natural gas prices have fluctuated significantly over the last year over the past sevral years
natural gas prices have risen substantially due to considerable increases in demand for

gas both domestkally and

overseas In the United States this increase has been due principally to the fuel needs of the power plants that

have been built in the past decade as well as relatively limited increases in natural gas delivery capabilties In

addition developing countries including China and India are becoming large consumers of energy placing
further pressure on prices for fossil fuels Microgys systems produce commercial quantities of biogas with

high percentage of methane which is then refined to RNG by processing it with scrubbing devices to remove
carbon dioxide sulfur compounds and other impurities Microgys systems for the production of RNGn unlike

natural gas wells do not suffer depletion and are consistent sources of output so long as required inputs are

available

Renewable Energy We believe that market and political forces will continue to drive increased adbption of

renewable energy sources principally due to increasing concerns about the price volatility supply stability and
environmental impact of conventional fuels The demand for energy produced from renewable resources may
provide our facilities with variety of benefits including federal and state renewable power production and

investment credits tax credits and greenhouse gas sequestration credits as well as competitive advanage as

compared to conventional sources of supply For example currently 30 states including Texas and Caltfornia

have enacted renewable portfolio standard or other state mandates requiring electric utilities to increae their

use of renewable
energy resources such as wind solar and bioenergy We believe that the directives ertibodied in

the Energy Policy Act of 2005 and the accompanying tax credits and related benefits should serve to further drive

adoption of renewable energy solutions like those provided by Microgy The law provides number of ncentives

designed to spur development of renewable
energy facilities including for example accelerated depreqiation

provisions for
gas gathering facilities We believe that Microgys facilities may qualify for some or all these

tax credits and other benefits either directly or by attracting customers who can benefit from tax credits

associated with utilizing renewable energy sources

We believe that the greenhouse gas sequestration credits that Microgys facilities are expected to iroduce
will be marketable and will further enhance the potential profitability of the facilities The market for gileenhouse

gas offsets has increased significantly in the last
year in response to emerging regulatory requirements ns well as

demand from companies municipalities and individuals who are reducing their greenhouse gas impacts on

voluntary basis Importantly digester projects that reduce methane emissions compared to baseline conditions

produce offsets that qualify under many mandatory and voluntary programs in place however the specific

methodologies for calculation and monitoring vary widely

While in many cases we are required to share the benefits of such credits with our business partners and

investors we nevertheless expect such offsets to enhance the economics of our facilities We believe that the

market for greenhouse gas sequestration credits will add value and enhance the financial viability of our

facilities



Microgy Strategy

Our objective is to become leader in the renewable energy sector through the production
and marketing of

pipeline-grade gas
and biogas and in the development of pipeline gas production capacity and biogas resources

which will constitute gas reserves under our control Key elements of our strategy
include

Developing facilities that we will own thereby developing and growing non-depleting biogas reserves

under our management We intend to continue to focus on an ownership model in which we own facilities

entirely or together with financial or operational partners We believe that this ownership model will allow us to

profit from the sale of biogas or pipeline-grade gas for the operational life of the facilities By owning and

operating such facilities and by securing the supply of required amounts of manure and substrates we seek to

develop and grow portfolio of gas reserves under our control We view our facilities as gas wells but without

the typical depletion curve so long as required inputs are available

Capitalizing on the environmental attributes as well as the renewable nature of the energy generated by

our facilities We believe that the environmental attributes such as greenhouse gas sequestration credits

generated by our facilities represent potentially significant source of revenue and we intend to pursue

commercialization of these attributes through sales into trading markets as well as bi-lateral and revenue sharing

arrangements In addition we believe that the renewable nature of the gas produced by our facilities will be

attractive to certain purchasers including entities required to achieve renewable portfolio standards and may

result in premium prices in some cases We intend to aggressively
market the renewable quality of our gas to

these purchasers

Focusing development efforts on markets allowing for rapid and cost-effective scale-up of our business

Microgy has now constructed both the multi- and single-tank system in four currently operating installations

Microgy will develop and own these digester systems Our multi-digester facilities will primarily produce

pipeline quality renewable natural gas although we will also consider opportunities to produce and sell

conditioned biogas electricity CNG and LNG from our facilities Microgys development efforts are focused on

applications of its technology that are resource efficient Development of smaller scale and single-digester

facilities will be targeted toward customers that have multiple sites and opportunities that have shorter

development cycles Microgys goal with all projects is to maximize the profitability of every project by

implementing the right technology and most profitable long-term off-take agreement

Standardizing systems to allow for rapid and cost-effective replication and scalability We intend to

standardize and streamline elements of our systems so that we can drive down their costs and implement them

more rapidly Toward this end Microgy is refining the design of its multi-tank system based on knowledge

gained from its Huckabay Ridge facility and is pursuing standardization of components procurement channels

vendors and design-build contracts to allow for rapid and cost-effective construction all in order to fulfill our

objective of building out the currently announced pipeline of projects

Pursuing the advantages of our business model in which we create and manage profitable renewable

energy opportunities
while alleviating the environmental pressures facing agriculture and food industry

participants We believe we are the only provider of anaerobic digesters that is aggressively pursuing business

model of creating and managing profitable renewable energy opportunities while simultaneously addressing

customers environmental issues Furthermore by operating and maintaining the facilities ourselves we believe

that we will be able to maximize gas production and control the supply of required materials To our knowledge

many other suppliers of anaerobic digestion systems merely supply the equipment and leave the ongoing

operation of the system to the purchaser By pursuing our business model we believe we can supply

compelling value proposition to customers and maximize value from gas production

Microgy Products and Services

With respect to current and future projects such as our multi-digester RNG facilities in Texas and

California as well as our smaller-scale multi-digester dedicated facilities such as the facility being built for

Swift Microgy seeks to own and operate all or part of each facility thereby profiting from the sale of the gas



produced whether by the sale of gas as commodity or to end-users or other purchasers pursuant to ldnger-term

supply agreements Therefore we expect our principal commercial product to be the RNG or biogas produced
by our facilities together with tradable environmental attributes such as greenhouse gas offset credits In

addition other by-products of the operation of these facilities may have commercial value as soil amendments
fertilizer and animal bedding

An analysis of our sales by product for each of the three years in the period ended December 31 2008 is as

follows

2008 2007 2006

Gas sales $2173453 540047 468509
Operation and maintenance services 325339 371344 356713

Tipping fees
152873 188597 185844

Carbon credit sales 246891 67489 13000
Construction contract services 1192150
Other 6482 7470

_________
Total revenue $2905038 $1174947 $2216216

Microgy Technology

At the heart of the Microgy system is an enhanced biogas production system Whereas previous systems had

principally focused on the environmental remediation aspects of digestion and produced biogas as by-product
the Microgy system is designed specifically to maximize biogas production Methane is the main product of the

process making up approximately 65% of the resulting biogas Microgy system can be easily couplel to

standard generally commercially available
gas conditioning equipment in order to clean the biogas to produce

RNG or the biogas can be burned directly for use in electric generation or other thermal energy applications
Other by-products of the process can include fertilizers bedding compost and other bio-solid products that have

economic value and are often marketable

Microgys proprietary process mixes animal manure with additional substrates such as food industry wastes

and by-products containing fats proteins and carbohydrates in process referred to as co-digestion The manure
provides the anaerobic bacteria that are the engine of the biogas production process while also serving ns

buffer that assists in maintaining the reaction at proper levels wide variety of materials can provide the

proteins fats and carbohydrates that enhance the biological process in our digesters Substrates that we might use
in our digesters range from waste crop oils spoiled food animal fats used

greases and cooking oils brewery
waste to cheese waste These materials are widely available but tend to be concentrated in urban areas The
addition of substrate significantly increases

gas production with the relative contributions of substrate and

manure to the production of biogas varying depending upon the type of substrate used The ability to add

substrate with known characteristics to our process helps us to balance the health of the digester while ihcreasing

biogas output The controlled combination of these wastes with the manure along with our operational controls

and technical know-how represent the essential elements of our proprietary approach to the market

Some substrate materials are useful inputs into other energy production processes or may even be ubstitutes

for animal feed As such the value of those materials may change over time depending on market dynamics

emerging technologies or even tax policy We have focused our efforts on procuring substrates that do not have

alternate uses for which companies typically pay fee for disposal In some cases we may be paid tipping fees
associated with the disposal of these materials which may help us to mitigate the costs of transporting substrate

to our site Substrate availability niarket conditions and transportation requirements can vary significantly by

region As such project location is an important consideration in determining project feasibility We have in

place substrate management team that works with our strategic partners to identify and evaluate potential

materials and manage logistics



Microgys system utilizes sophisticated equipment and control systems This allows us to optimize the

recipe for digestion in each tank maintain precise temperature
control and carefully adjust the mixing rate In

addition the Microgy system is composed of steel tanks and piping which are durable and nonporous allowing

for calibration of the process within controlled environment and appropriate management of ongoing gas

production and equipment operations Furthermore the high level of gas output and its high methane content

allows for application of other technologies such as those used for gas conditioning Coupled with the technical

advantages of the system is suite of proprietary processes and know how to achieve the highest levels of

biogas production resulting in the lowest output costs per unit of input of
any

anaerobic digestion system known

to Microgy

License Agreement with Danish Biogas Technology A/S

Microgy licenses the anaerobic digestion portion of its technology from Danish Biogas Technology AIS

referred to as DBT DBTs parent Xergi AIS referred to as Xergi is 50% owned by Schouw Co Danish

public company and 50% by DDH Danish environmental and engineering firm DBT has been leader in the

development of this technology and has constructed 30 anaerobic digester facilities in Europe over the past 15

years In Denmark DBT systems have been successful in providing manure management and viable renewable

energy fOr many years

In May 2000 Microgy entered into licensing agreement with DBT that granted Microgy perpetual and

exclusive license in North America for the commercial development and use of certain proprietary technologies

including Microgy core anaerobic digestion technology This license agreement was amended in April 2003

and March 2005 to further define certain support obligations of DBT and to amend the structure of the

compensation payable to DBT for use of the license According to the license as amended DBT will receive

fixed payments for its participation in the design phase of each project including engineering work and

construction drawings and licensing fee included in the cost of the facility that is based on percentage of the

total cost for each project facility where the licensed technology is installed and operating We believe that our

relationship with DBT is good
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Facility and Business Development Efforts

Identified Facilities Development

The following table sets forth facilities that we have identified to date as being under development by
Microgy and its affiliates including information with respect to the type of facility its location and its

anticipated output

_______ Location

TX

TX

TX

CA

The foregoing table does not include the Huckabay Ridge facility which is now in operation In addition

the table does not include projects currently under consideration that have not been finalized for active

development Projects currently in this latter category have an expected annual production of up to approximately
12 million MMBtu/year

Business Development Agreement BDA with Cargill

In October 2006 we entered into the BDA with Cargill Incorporated acting through its Emerging Business

Accelerator Unit referred to as Cargill Pursuant to the terms of the BDA Cargill has agreed to use its reasonable

efforts to identify potential anaerobic digester projects for development by us within Cargills network of

customers farmers and strategic business partners in North America Cargill and Microgy will work jointly to

identify specific targeted markets for developing such projects within the Cargill network and Cargill will

identify project candidates based upon agreed project guidelines We will consider each project candidate and

select those candidates we want Cargill to pursue further on our behalf Cargill will then negotiate with such

project candidates with the goal of obtaining binding agreement whereby such project candidates commit to

give Microgy the option to implement an anaerobic digester project Once project commitment has been signed

Cargill will present it to us for review and consideration We will then proceed with the negotiation of mutually

acceptable leases and other project agreements with the project candidates in which we are interested

Inconsideration of Cargills services under the BDA we will grant to Cargill warrants to purchase shares of

our common stock equal to 1% of the outstanding shares of our common stock on fully-diluted basis on such

date as Cargill delivers executed project commitments with project candidates relating to anaerobic digester

projects covering 10000 cow equivalents as defined and thereafter to issue similar warrants on each succeeding
date on which the same warrant issuance conditions have again been satisfied up to maximum of 4.99% of the

outstanding shares of common stock on such issuance date subject to all warrants in the aggregate The warrants

will be exercisable for period of five
years from the issuance date and will have an exercise price per share

equal to 75% of the closing price of our common stock on the last trading day prior to the issuance date To date

we have granted Cargill warrants to purchase 175912 shares of our common stock at an exercise price of $5.37

per share under this arrangement

Facility

Mission

Rio Leche

Cnossen

Hanford Cluster

Bar2O

Riverdale Cluster

Cargill

Cargill

Swift-Grand Island

Total

Expected gas production in MMBtu
year at full operation

_______
Type Gas RNG Productiona

RNG 635000

RNG 635000

RNG 635000

RNG 732000
CA RNG 601000
CA RNG 621000
ID RNG 550000

CO RNG 365000
NE Inside-the-Fence 235000

5009000
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As further consideration for Cargills services under the BDA for three-year period beginning with the

first date of issuance of greenhouse gas
reduction certificate issued to owned or controlled by us derived from

an anaerobic digester project subject to project commitment referred to as an eligible certificate we will

convey to Cargill or its designee ownership of 25% of all such eligible certificates after giving effect to any

share of such certificates owed to project candidate pursuant to the terms of any lease or other project

agreement with such project candidate During such three-year period Cargill will also have the first right to bid

on any other proposed sale or conveyance of any eligible certificates In addition with respect to each project

subject to project commitment which generates revenue to us from the sale of gas electricity or other

by-products but not including sales of greenhouse gas reduction certificates we will be obligated to pay to

Cargill within 30 days of receipt of such revenues 2% of such revenues for five-year period beginning on the

date on which any such revenue is first received Finally during three-year period following the date of first

generation of gas or electricity by an anaerobic digestion project subject to project commitment Cargill will

have the first right to bid on the proposed sale or conveyance of all such gas or electricity

The BDA will terminate upon the earliest of the following events

the third anniversary of the date of the BDA

the delivery by Cargill of project commitments signed by project candidates covering 50000 dairy cow

equivalents

termination by party if court shall have entered final non-appealable order decree ruling or other

action restraining enjoining or otherwise prohibiting
the transactions contemplated by the BDA

termination by party if the other party is in material breach or default which breach or default is not

cured within 30 days after the date of notice thereof

termination by party if the other party becomes insolvent or unable to pay
its debts when due has

trustee or receiver appointed for any or all of its assets makes an assignment for the benefit of creditors

or has bankruptcy petition
filed by or against it which is not dismissed within 90 days

termination by party if the other party ceases or threatens to cease to carry on business or

termination by party for any reason upon 30 days written notice to the other party

Upon any termination of the BDA the BDA will become void and the parties will have no liability or

obligation thereunder except for liabilities resulting from breach of the BDA on or prior to the date of

termination and except that Cargill will be entitled to any
consideration described above for all anaerobic

digestion projects subject to Project Commitment entered into prior to the date of termination Notwithstanding

any termination of the BDA during the term of the BDA and for period of two years after the date of

termination we will not solicit or negotiate with any person
who had entered into negotiations

with Cargill or its

affiliates with respect to an anaerobic digestion project but with whom no project commitment has been

concluded without the prior written consent of Cargill or Cargill participation

Pursuant to the terms of the BDA we agreed not to enter into similarbusiness development agreement

with certain prohibited parties identified by Cargill from time to time provided that there cannot be any more

than seven prohibited parties at any given time and further provided that Cargill may not deem party to be

prohibited if we were having discussions with the party prior to its being so designated by Cargill

Customers and Suppliers

Customers

Microgy intends to sell the gas generated by its facilities pursuant to mid- to long-term purchase and sale

commitments with fixed or predictable prices at premium to the natural gas market When beneficial Microgy

may elect to sell some of the gas
in the spot market as commodity with appropriate price hedging mechanisms
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Microgys smaller-scale multi-digester facilities will be developed to supply the gas needs of single
customer on-site such as Swift pursuant to long-term purchase and sale agreement though Microgy expects to

have the right to market excess gas not used by these customers

In the twelve months ending December 31 2008 we recognized $1.7 million in total revenues frnm sales of

RNG and tipping fees at our Huckabay Ridge facility and revenues of $1.2 million from sales operations and
maintenance services and carbon sequestration credit sales related to the Wisconsin facilities Revenue in 2007

was entirely related to the facilities in Wisconsin under our relationship with Dairyland

Microgy had two significant customers in 2008 Dairyland and Lower Colorado River Authority which

provided over 10% of 2008 revenues We believe our relationship with these customers has been good In late

2008 Lower Colorado River Authority was replaced with Pacific Gas and Electric Company as the purchaser of

gas
from our Huckabay Ridge facility

In March 2009 we signed 10 year renewable natural gas supply agreement with Xcel Energy The

agreement which has an additional 10 year option provides that the Microgy RNG will be sold to XFeI on

fixed price basis at premium to the current market price for traditional natural gas The production will come
from facility in Colorado on which we intend to commence construction in 2010

Suppliers

Microgy and its affiliates generally obtain the construction materials and equipment necessary to construct

and operate their facilities from commercial sources pursuant to purchase orders and similararrangemnts

Microgy believes these materials and equipment to be generally commercially available Microgy andits

affiliates generally enter into manure handling agreements with the farms on which their facilities are located for

the supply of manure for the operation of such facilities or arrangements for the operation by third pa1ties of

manure composting operations on land owned by Microgy affiliates Microgy generally seeks to locate its large-

scale multi-digester facilities in areas with high concentration of manure from diverse sources

Substrate for facility can be obtained from variety of sources either on an opportunistic basis pursuant
to informal supply relationships or from the operations of the consumer of the gas in the case of the smaller-

scale single customer installations Substrate can also be obtained via long-term contract such as the agreement
in place with Liquid Environmental Solutions Corp

Discontinued Operations

Buzzard Power Corporation referred to as Buzzard is subsidiary of our wholly owned subsidiaiy EPC
Corporation Buzzard formerly leased generating facility from Scrubgrass Generating Company L.P The

Scrubgrass plant referred to as Scrubgrass located on 600-acre site in Venango County Pennsylvania is an

approximate 83 megawatt waste coal-fired electric generating station Buzzard completed the disposition of its

leasehold interest in this facility on February 29 2008

The disposition of Buzzards leasehold interest in the Scrubgrass facility has substantially reduced our

revenue base and will continue our trend of operating losses and uses of cash until the revenue base for Microgy

grows to sufficient levels to support our expense base

Competition

Microgy plans to generate revenue from the development and ownership of facilities that market renewable

green energy in addition to providing pollution control features to the agricultural and food industry markets

Microgys green competitors include other energy producers using biomass combustion biomass anaerobic
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digestion geothermal solar wind new hydro and other renewable sources These companies represent

significant class of competitors because they will compete with Microgy for sale of marketable renewable energy

credits and participation in various renewable portfolios and other programs

Competition in the traditional energy business from electric utilities and other energy companies is well

established with many substantial entities having multi-billion dollar multi-national operations Many of these

companies are beginning to compete in the alternative fuels and renewable energy business with the growth of

the industry and the advent of many new technologies Larger companies due to their greater financial and other

resources will be better positioned than Microgy to develop new technologies and to install existing or more

advanced renewable energy facilities which could harm Microgys business Microgy also faces many forms of

competition with respect to the resources required to operate its facilities Such competition includes other

providers of pollution control including environmental engineers providers of pollution control systems private

companies public companies associations cooperatives government programs foreign companies and

educational pilot programs Furthermore there are many companies that offer anaerobic digester systems

number of competitors have more mature businesses and have successfully installed anaerobic digester systems

in the United States Microgy may be forced to compete with any of these competitors for access to equipment

construction supplies skilled labor for the construction and operation of its facilities and the supplies of manure

and substrate required to operate its facilities In addition Microgy may also have to compete for access to

substances that make desirable substrates with other users of these substances such as recyclers of waste grease

and producers of biodiesel and other biofuels The effect of such competition could be reflected in higher costs

associated with obtaining access to these resources as well as an insufficient supply of these resources for the

profitable operation of Microgys facilities

Environmental Regulation

Our present
and any future projects are and will be subject to various federal state and local regulations

pertaining to the protection of the environment primarily in the areas of water and air pollution and waste

management Microgy intends to build plants in various states These facilities will be subject to federal state

and local regulatory requirements in all the locations where they may operate

In many cases these regulations require lengthy and complex process of obtaining and maintaining

licenses permits and approvals from federal state and local agencies We also have and will have significant

administrative responsibilities to monitor our compliance with the regulations As regulations are enacted or

adopted in
any

of these jurisdictions we cannot predict the effect of compliance therewith on our business Our

failure to comply with all new applicable requirements could require modifications to operating facilities During

periods of non-compliance our operating facilities may be forced to shut down until the compliance issues are

resolved We are responsible for ensuring the compliance of our facilities with all the applicable requirements

and accordingly we attempt to minimize these risks by dealing with reputable contractors and using appropriate

technology to measure compliance with the applicable standards The cost of environmental regulation does and

will continue to affect our profitability

Depending on the location of each individual plant the federal Clean Water Act and state implementation

plans of the federal Clean Air Act as well as other state and local laws may apply to Microgys projects The

primary federal law affecting manure management on animal operations is the Clean Water Act under which the

National Pollutant Discharge Elimination System or NPDES program covers concentrated CAFOs

Federal NPDES permits may be issued by the EPA or any state authorized by the EPA to implement the NPDES

program The EPA has certified 45 states to issue their own NPDES permits Furthermore in December 2002 the EPA

issued new rules to regulate manure run-off on farms one of the nations leading causes of water pollution The new

rules apply to an estimated 15500 livestock operations across the country These farms will need to obtain permits

submit an annual report
and develop and follow plan that will ensure that measures are being instituted to minimize

runoff from wastewater and manure We believe that these requirements represent significant opportunity for

Microgy insofar as Microgy system can play useful role in any animal waste management program
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We expect that all of our facilities will be required to obtain various state and local environmental and other

permits and approvals For example grease-trap waste from restaurants and other food service providers is

desirable and highly available form of substrate for our facilities in Texas The Texas Commission of

Environmental Quality TCEQ environmental authorities classify grease-trap waste as Municipal Solid Waste

MSW and such waste is managed as non-hazardous municipal waste Microgy is required to obtain solid

waste permit for each of our planned facilities in Texas to the extent we desire to use grease-trap waste as

substrate in the operation of such facilities and have obtained such permit for the Huckabay Ridge facility In

addition we have obtained water discharge permits for each of our planned California facilities and obtaining

such permits is lengthy process To date our experience in obtaining such permits has been positive but future

projects may however present unique circumstances and the timing and cost of permits may be uncertain

Energy Regulation

As evidenced by the facilities developed by Microgy in Wisconsin and under development by Microgy

Replacement for Swift Microgys anaerobic digester facilities can be used for the generation of electricity In the

event that Microgy were to pursue applications of its technology for the generation of electricity for tale by

Microgy into the electric grid any such generating facility would become subject to the complex matrix of

federal and state regulation of the energy sector including the federal Public Utility Regulatory Policies Act the

Federal Power Act and the regulation and oversight of state public utility commissions Microgy itself does not

currently produce electricity for sale into the electric grid

Employees

As of December 31 2008 we had 44 employees including executive officers and other marketing finance

engineering and administrative personnel None of our employees are represented by collective
baraining

agreement and we consider our relations with our employees to be good In early 2009 as result of reduction

in force and attrition the number of employees was reduced by 11 to 33 as of March 16 2009 Facility operating

personnel are 12 of the remaining 33 employees

Available Information

We maintain website with the address www.environmentalpower.com We are not including the

information contained on our web site as part of or incorporating it by reference into this annual
repcrt

We
make available free of charge on or through our website our annual reports on Form 10-K quarterly reports on

Form i0-Q current reports on Form 8-K and all amendments to those reports as soon as practicable after such

material is electronically filed with or furnished to the Securities and Exchange Commission
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ITEM 1A RISK FACTORS

Investing in our securities involves high degree of risk You should carefully consider the risks and

uncertainties described below before purchasing our securities The risks and uncertainties described below are

not the only ones facing our company Additional risks and uncertainties may also impair our business

operations and adversely affect our prospects The order in which such risks are presented does not necessarily

reflect the relative importance of such risks or the likelihood that any of the events or circumstances described

below will occur or exist

If any of the following risks actually occur our business financial condition or results of operations would

likely suffer In that case the trading price of our common stock could fall and you may lose all or part of the

money you paid to buy our common stock

Risks Relating to Our Business

We have experienced losses to date and we anticipate that we will continue to experience losses through at

least 2010 which means that we will have to raise significant additional financing in the first half of 2009 in

order to continue our business operations

We are company in the process of pursuing an aggressive and novel business approach to the construction

and operation of renewable energy facilities and the production of renewable natural gas As noted below our

sole operating business Microgy is in the early stages of its development As result we have history of

losses For the year ended December 31 2008 we incurred net loss from continuing operations of $22996000

which includes non-cash non-recurring expense
for the impairment of goodwill of $4913000 For the years

ended December 31 2007 and 2006 we incurred net losses from continuing operations of $11161000 and

$11399000 respectively We expect to continue to incur losses reduce our earnings or as the case may be add

to our earnings deficit as we seek to further develop our business We currently expect that these ongoing losses

will adversely affect our financial condition through at least 2010 As result of these losses we anticipate that

we will in all likelihood have to rely on external financing for most of our capital and operational requirements

We will need to raise substantial financing in the first half of 2009 in order to fund ongoing general and

administrative expenses associated with our corporate
overhead as well as interest and dividend requirements and

to continue as going concern We currently have no commitments for any such financing We cannot assure

you such financing will be available on reasonable terms or in timely fashion or at all particularly in the

current economic environment in which capital raising activities are especially challenging Future losses are

likely to continue unless we successfully implement our business plan If we are not successful in reaching and

maintaining profitable operations we may not be able to attract sufficient capital to continue our operations Our

inability to obtain adequate financing would likely result in the need to reduce the number of projects we

construct and even to curtail or cease our business operations and would materially impair the value of your

investment in our securities

Our sole operating business Microgy has limited operating history from which to evaluate its business and

products

Our sole operating business Microgy was formed in 1999 and remains in the early stages of its

development Microgy is developing facilities that use environmentally friendly anaerobic digestion and other

technologies to produce biogas from animal and organic wastes Although Microgy has developed and is

operating three single digester facilities in Wisconsin and the multi-digester Huckabay Ridge facility Microgy

still has limited experience in the construction and operation of multiple digester facilities such as those Microgy

is currently constructing or intends to construct and limited experience in gas conditioning or the sale of gas as

commodity In addition Microgy has experienced challenges during the startup and initial operation of the

Huckabay Ridge facility that have resulted in outages for corrective measures We took advantage of such an

outage to complete comprehensive upgrades to process-instrumentation and controls the gas conditioning

system and the gas-collection system
in order to achieve anticipated performance levels While we gained
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valuable knowledge as to our processes and incorporated the lessons learned into future projects we cannot

assure you that similar challenges will not be encountered with respect to future facilities Because of Microgys

limited experience there is risk that Microgy may never be profitable

Microgy cannot predict when any facility will be completed what Microgys costs will be or consequently

whether Microgy or any facility developed by Microgy will be profitable

Development of Microgys facilities is an inherently risky activity subject to significant uncertainties and

lengthy development cycle Uncertainties and risks include those relating to costs and availability of supplies and

labor costs and quality of facility components and installation services fluctuations in the prices available for the

sale of facility output and timing of completion of construction and commencement of commercial operations

Furthermore obtaining the large number of agreements permits and approvals necessary to develop install

operate and manage any of Microgys facilities as well as to market the
energy

and other co-products and to

provide necessary related resources and services involves long development cycle and decision-m4ing

process Microgy is required to enter into or obtain some or all of the following in connection with th

development of its facilities

Off-take interconnection agreements

Site agreements

Supply contracts

Design/build or other construction-related agreements

Off-take agreements for gas produced

Power sales contracts for facilities dedicated to the generation of electricity

Agreements for the sale of greenhouse gas
offset credits or other tradable environmental attributes

Various co-product sales agreements

Waste disposal agreements

Environmental and other permits and licenses

Government approvals and

Financing commitnients required for the successful completion of facilities under consideraton

Microgys failure to accomplish any of these objectives could materially increase the cost or prevent the

successful completion of development or operation of facilities and incur the loss of any investment riade Many
of these objectives are dependent upon decisions by third parties Delays in such parties decision-making

process are outside of our control and may have negative impact on our development costs cost of perations

receipt of revenue and revenue projections We expect that in some cases it may take year or more to obtain

decisions on permits and approvals and to negotiate and close these complex agreements Such delays could

harm our operating results and financial condition

As result of the foregoing uncertainties we are unable to project with certainty Microgys organizational

structural staffing or other overhead costs the construction or operating costs associated with any facility or

whether any facility or Microgy as whole will generate profit If Microgy fails to generate profit your

investment in our securities will be materially adversely affected

If we are unable to obtain needed financing for Microgy facilities the value of our Microgy investment may
be reduced significantly

Because we have not yet generated sufficient positive cash flow and do not expect to do so until at least

2011 we do not have adequate funds on hand to complete construction of the facilities we currently have

planned We are seeking and will require corporate project or group financing to fund the cost of any
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development we may decide to pursue for Microgys facilities This financing may be difficult or impossible for

us to obtain particularly in the current economic environment in which capital raising activities are especially

challenging If we are unable to obtain such financing the value of our Microgy investment may be reduced

significantly and we may be required to substantially curtail our business or completely cease construction or

operation of any facilities The availability of additional financing will depend on prospective lenders or

investors review of our financial capabilities as well as specific facilities and other factors including their

assessment of our ability to construct and manage each facility successfully and the current state of the economy

Such financing may not be available to us on acceptable terms or at all If we are unable to obtain the required

financing we will have to reduce the number of projects we construct and may even have to curtail or cease our

business operations which would have material adverse effect on your investment in our securities

If Microgy is unable to obtain sufficient manure and substrate for its facilities at an acceptable cost such

facilities and Microgy as whole will likely not be profitable

The performance of Microgys facilities is dependent on the availability of large quantities of animal

manure and substrates derived from animal and other organic waste resources to produce raw energy and meet

performance standards in the generation of renewable natural gas substantial portion of the gas production of

Microgy facilities is derived from the co-digestion contribution enabled by substrate While Microgy has or is

expected to have agreements relating to the supply of manure and substrate these agreements may not cover all

of Microgy requirements for such resources and Microgy will be subject to the ability of the counterparties to

such agreements to perform their obligations thereunder Lack of manure or substrate or adverse changes in the

nature or quality of such waste resources or the cost to supply or transport them would seriously affect the ability

of Microgy facilities to produce gas at profitable levels and consequently its ability to develop and finance

facilities and to operate efficiently and generate income As result its revenue and financial condition would be

materially and negatively affected We cannot assure you that the waste resources Microgys facilities require

will be available in the future for free or at prices that make them affordable or accessible

Microgy is expected to derive significant portion of its revenues from the sale of renewable natural gas as

result it may have some exposure to volatility in the commodity price of natural gas

Microgy is expected to derive significant portion of its revenues from the sale of renewable natural gas

Microgy typically enters into medium-to-long-term off-take arrangements for the gas produced by its facilities as

part of the planning and development of such facilities and may enter into other hedging arrangements in order

to mitigate the associated commodity price risk Furthermore our subsidiary Microgy Holdings is required by

the terms of its tax-exempt bonds to maintain certain gas price protection arrangements for specified periods of

time We believe that these arrangements will be considered normal purchases and sales and will not be subject

to derivative accounting However there may be times when such off-take and hedging arrangements expire or

otherwise terminate before new arrangements are put in place and such arrangements are subject to the

creditworthiness of the counterparties to them In addition we cannot assure you that any such risk management

vehicles will always be available or successful Because renewable natural gas commands premium over but

still tracks prices for conventional natural gas Microgy will be exposed to the extent not covered by long-term

contracts to market risk with respect to the commodity pricing of conventional natural gas Historically natural

gas prices have been volatile and Microgy expects such volatility to continue

We expect revenues from sales of greenhouse gas sequestration credits and other environmental attributes but

the market for such attributes is nascent and may not develop in manner that allows us to profit from the

sales of such credits to the level proj ected or at all

The multiple digester facilities that we plan to implement through Microgy Holdings and our other subsidiaries

are expected to produce greenhouse gas
offset credits and other marketable environmental attributes While there

exist trading markets for these attributes and additional trading markets or other commercial avenues may develop

the existing trading markets are new and experience thin trading and price volatility which can hinder sales of
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credits and make their value unpredictable The quantity of credits that may be generated are function of the

carbon credit offset characteristics as determined by protocols used to document and verify the carbon offset value

These protocols continue to evolve and changes in these protocols could substantially diminish further cnrbon

credit eligibility Furthermore much of the participation in these markets is voluntary in response to social and

environmental concerns as opposed to being driven by regulatory requirements While many states and the federal

government are pursuing or are considering carbon emissions limits and related initiatives that may spur greater

development of and participation in these markets we are unable to determine the effect of these initiatives on these

markets We cannot assure you that these trading markets will develop further or even that they will continue to

exist In addition many of our agreements with our business partners and investors require us to share such credits

or any revenues we derive from sales of such credits and agreements we negotiate in the future may also include

such requirements As result of the foregoing we may recognize significantly smaller revenues than we anticipate

from the sale of greenhouse gas sequestration credits or other environmental attributes

We have pledged all of our interest in our facilities in Texas and California as security for the loans relating

to Microgy Holdings tax-exempt bond financings in those jurisdictions and our subsidiary Microgy Grand

Island LLC has entered into afinancing lease with respect to the Grand Island facility

We have invested and expect to invest substantial funds and resources in the Huckabay Ridge facility and

the other multi-digester renewable natural gas facilitie5 in Texas California and Nebraska We have pledged all

of our interest in the Huckabay Ridge facility as well as the Rio Leche Cnossen and Mission faci1itie in Texas

as collateral security for the loan to our subsidiary Microgy Holdings from the Gulf Coast Industrial

Development Authority of Texas relating to the $60 million tax-exempt bond financing we completed in

November 2006 We have pledged all of our interest in the Riverdale and Hanford facilities in California as

collateral security for the loan to our subsidiary Microgy Holdings from the California Statewide Communities

Development Authority relating to the $62.425 million tax-exempt bond financing we completed in Sptember

2008 and we expect to pledge all of our interest in the proposed Bar 20 facility in California if we aresuccessful

in closing the anticipated $26.02 million second tranche of such financing While these loans are non-ecourse to

Environmental Power Environmental Power is required to provide at least 20% of the construction costs of these

facilities as well as to cover any cost overruns in construction and certain other significant costs which

represents substantial investment of corporate resources If Microgy Holdings were to default on thee loans

we would lose some or all of our investment in the Texas and California facilities which would have material

adverse effect on our business financial condition and results of operations In addition our subsidiar Microgy

Grand Island LLC has entered into $7.0 million sale and leaseback transaction with the City of Grahd Island

Nebraska in connection with its tax-exempt bond financing in Nebraska to finance the construction ofthe Grand

Island facility and has guaranteed the Citys obligations under the tax-exempt bonds Environmental Power has

equity contribution and support obligations with respect to the Grand Island facility that are substantially similar

to those under the Texas and California financings If Microgy Grand Island defaults on its lease and
$uarantee

obligations to the City of Grand Island we would lose some or all of our investment in the Grand Islaid facility

which would have material adverse effect on our business financial condition and results of operaticns

Microgy faces competition in the renewable energy market as well as for the resources necessary to operate its

facilities

Microgy plans to generate revenue from the development and ownership of facilities that market renewable

green energy in addition to providing pollution control features to the agricultural and food industry markets

Microgys green competitors include other energy producers using biomass combustion biomss

anaerobic digestion geothermal solar wind new hydro and other renewable sources These companies represent

significant class of competitors because they will compete with Microgy for sale of marketable renewable

energy credits and participation in various renewable portfolios and other programs

Competition in the traditional energy business from electric utilities and other energy companies is well

established with many substantial entities having multi-billion dollar multi-national operations Many of these

companies are beginning to compete in the alternative luels and renewable energy business with the growth of
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the industry and the advent of many new technologies Larger companies due to their greater financial and other

resources will be better positioned than Microgy to develop new technologies and to install existing or more

advanced renewable energy facilities which could harm Microgys business

Microgy also faces many forms of competition with respect to the resources required to operate its facilities

Such competition includes other providers of pollution control including environmental engineers providers of

pollution control systems private companies public companies associations cooperatives government

programs foreign companies and educational pilot programs Furthermore there are many companies that offer

anaerobic digester systems number of these competitors have more mature businesses and have successfully

installed anaerobic digester systems in the United States Microgy may be forced to compete with any of these

competitors for access to equipment construction supplies skilled labor for the construction and operation of its

facilities and the supplies of manure and substrate required to operate its facilities In addition Microgy may also

have to compete for access to substances that make desirable substrates with other users of these substances such

as recyclers of waste grease and producers of biodiesel and other biofuels The effect of such competition could

be reflected in higher costs associated with obtaining access to these resources as well as an insufficient supply

of these resources for the profitable operation of Microgys facilities If Microgy cannot obtain and maintain

these supplies or cannot obtain or maintain them at reasonable costs the profitability of Microgys business will

be adversely affected

Extreme weather events may have material adverse effect on the operation on our facilities

Microgys facilities and sites are sensitive to extreme weather events For instance the anaerobic digestion

process requires temperatures within certain band and extreme cold or heat may negatively impact the
process

or increase operating costs as result of the need to counter such temperatures This was the case in early 2007

when Texas experienced record cold temperatures that hindered startup of the Huckabay Ridge facility Also our

sites contain retention ponds that have been designed with ample capacity to collect and retain storm water

run-off but despite applying best maintenance practices that capacity on rare occasions can be strained by

severe rainfall Thus in August 2008 25-year record rainfall event caused storm water retention pond breach

and spill that required cleanup of dry creek bed and reporting to the local environmental authorities While

Microgy considers typical local weather conditions in the design of its facilities and maintains appropriate

insurance to mitigate associated risks to the extent commercially feasible Microgy cannot anticipate all unusual

weather events and such events have had and may in the future have material adverse effect on the operation of

its facilities

It is possible that we may expend large sums of money on individual projects to bring Microgys products to

market and that the revenue that Microgy derives from these products from new projects may be insufficient to

fund our operations

Microgy business approach to the renewable
energy may not produce results as anticipated be profitable

or be readily accepted by the marketplace We cannot estimate whether the gas produced by facilities based on

Microgys technology will materialize at anticipated prices or whether satisfactory profit margins will be

achieved If such pricing levels are not achieved or sustained or if Microgys technologies and business approach

to Microgys markets do not achieve or sustain broad acceptance our business operating results and financial

condition will be materially and negatively impacted

Because we have not filed patents to protect Microgy intellectual property we might not be able to prevent

others from using Microgys technology conversely others who have filed forpatent or other protection

might be able to prevent Microgy from using its technology

Microgy has not filed any patent applications on any of its intellectual property Should Microgy decide to

file patent applications we cannot assure you that any patent applications relating to Microgys existing or future

products or technologies will result in patents being issued that any issued patents will afford adequate

protection to Microgy or that such patents will not be challenged invalidated infringed or circumvented
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Furthermore we cannot assure you that others have not developed or will not develop similar technologies that

will compete with Microgy without infringing upon Microgy intellectual property rights or those of its

licensor

Third parties including potential competitors may already have filed patent applications relating to the

subject matter of Microgy current or future technology In the event that any such patents are issued to such

parties such patents may preclude Microgy or its licensor from obtaining patent protection for its technologies

products or processes In addition such patents may hinder or prevent Microgy from commercializing its

technology and could require Microgy to enter into licenses with such parties We cannot assure you that any

required licenses would be available to us on acceptable terms or at all

Microgy relies on confidentiality agreements and licensing agreements to maintain the proprietaiy nature of

its technology To compete effectively Microgy may have to defend the rights to its intellectual property from

time to time Such defense costs may be significant and have negative impact on our financial condition In

addition we may lack the financial resources to adequately defend Microgy intellectual property

Microgy facilities are likely to be subject to numerous governmental regulations

We expect that Microgy facilities are likely to be subject to various local state and federal government

regulations including regulations covering air and water quality solid waste disposal and related pollition

issues These regulations are mandated by the United States Environmental Protection Agency or EPA and state

and local governments and are usually implemented through permitting process with ongoing compliance

requirements thereafter For example grease-trap waste from restaurants and other food service provi1ers is

desirable and highly available form of substrate for our facilities in Texas However the Texas envirobmental

authorities required that we obtain solid-waste permit for each of our planned facilities in Texas to the extent

we desire to use grease-trap waste as substrate in the operation of such facilities Furthermore we have had to

obtain water discharge permits for our planned California facilities which typically involve lengthy process

We expect that all of our facilities will be required to obtain various environmental and other permits ind

approvals which will vary from location to location In addition our activities will fall under number of health

and safety regulations and laws and regulations relating to farming and zoning Compliance with these

regulations and permitting requirements could delay the development of facilities and could be costly iand harm

our financial condition

Microgy facilities may become subject to regulations or taxes based on carbon or other emissions

Microgys facilities produce and emit into the atmosphere carbon dioxide and hydrogen sulfide result of

the anaerobic digestion gas conditioning processes that they employ While such facilities capture and thereby

reduce the amount of methane potent greenhouse gas that would otherwise enter the atmosphere tlere are

direct emissions of carbon dioxide another greenhouse gas As such Microgy facilities may still be subject to

future federal or state legislation or regulation or the itnplementation of international treaties which eek to limit

or impose cost on greenhouse gas emissions If any such legislation regulations or treaties were implemented

Microgy may be required to expend resources to capture the carbon dioxide it produces pay tax on ts carbon

dioxide emissions purchase greenhouse gas offset credits reduce the greenhouse offset credits claim4d for such

facilities or take similaractions In addition Microgy could become subject to federal state and local taxes and

regulations regarding its other emissions Any of the foregoing could harm the profitability of Microgy

facilities
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Our operating results are difficult to predict in advance and may fluctuate significantly which may result in

substantial decline in our stock price

Our operating results are difficult to predict in advance and may fluctuate significantly and failure to meet

the expectations of analysts or our stockholders would likely result in substantial decline in our stock price

Factors that are likely to cause our results to fluctuate include the following

the amount and timing of our operating expenses
and capital expenditures

the success or failure of the facilities currently underway

our ability to specify develop and complete facilities and to introduce and market the energy created by

such facilities and bring them to volume production in timely manner

the rate of adoption and acceptance of new industry standards in our target markets and

other unforeseen activities or issues

If our operating results fluctuate greatly our business may be materially adversely affected and our stock

price will likely decline

Risks Relating to Our Capital Stock

We have numerous outstanding shares of restricted common stock as well as options warrants and shares of

preferred stock exercisable or convertible into substantial number of shares of our common stock the resale

of outstanding restricted shares as well as the exercise or conversion of these securities and the resale of the

underlying shares may adversely affect the price of our common stock

The resale by our stockholders of shares of our restricted common stock or securities exercisable for or

convertible into shares of our common stock could cause the market price of our common stock to decline

significant portion of our outstanding shares of common stock had been restricted from immediate resale

but is now available for sale in the market pursuant to Rule 144 under the Securities Act of 1933 As of

December 31 2008 we had approximately

15614604 shares of our common stock issued and outstanding of which 1212726 shares of common

stock outstanding are restricted securities within the meaning of Rule 144 and 35250 shares are

subject to vesting pursuant to restricted stock awards granted to certain employees and

2823659 shares of common stock issuable upon conversion of our series preferred stock

all of which shares other than employee restricted stock awards subject to vesting are eligible for resale

without volume and manner of sale restrictions in accordance with Rule 144 except to the extent held by our

affiliates We are currently authorized to issue 50000000 shares of common stock

We also currently have on file with the Securities and Exchange Commission an effective registration

statement that permits the resale of up to 100000 shares of our common stock subject to warrants exercisable at

price of $6.33 per share by the holders of such warrants In addition in connection with our sale of shares of our

series preferred stock and common stock warrants on November 2006 we filed registration statement to

permit the resale of up to 4387360 shares of common stock issuable upon conversion of such shares of series

preferred stock and exercise of such warrants which registration statement is currently effective The shares of

series preferred stock were convertible at conversion price of $5.27 per share and the common stock

warrants were exercisable at price of $5.52 per share as to 1406205 of the warrants and $5.27 per share as to

168745 of the warrants In October 2007 the exercise price of the warrants was reduced to $5.25 per share and

the preferred stock conversion price was reduced to $5.25 per share as result of antidilution adjustments
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triggered by the issuance of common stock in the October 2007 public offering resulting in an increase of 11250

in the number of shares of our common stock issuable upon conversion of the series preferred stock

In addition pursuant to our business development agreement with Cargill Incorporated we may issue

warrants to Cargill from time to time to acquire up to an aggregate of 4.99% of our outstanding common stock on

fully diluted basis at an exercise price equal to 75% of the closing price of our common stock on the date on

which such warrants are issued In May 2007 we issued to Cargill warrants to purchase 175912 shares of our

common stock at an exercise price of $5.37 per share representing 1% our fully diluted common stock at the

time as required by the business development agreement

On March 13 2009 we closed on the sale of $5 million original principal amount of our 14% convertible

notes due January 2014 These notes are convertible into an aggregate of up to approximately 925926 shares

of our common stock based upon the minimum conversion price of the notes all of which shares may be sold by

the holders thereof without restriction except to the extent held by our affiliates

As of December 2008 we had outstanding options and warrants to acquire up to approximately

4905935 shares of our common stock at prices ranging from $1.75 to $8.89 per share with weighted average

exercise price of $2.98 per share The shares of common stock issuable upon exercise of these options will be

freely transferable without restriction except to the extent that they are held by our affiliates Any shares held by

our affiliates may only be sold in compliance with the volume limitations of Rule 144 These volume limitations

restrict the number of shares that may be sold by an affiliate in any three-month period to the greater of 1% of the

number of shares then outstanding which equals approximately 156000 shares as of December 31 2008 or the

average weekly trading volume of our common stock during the four calendar weeks preceding the filing of

notice on Form 144 with respect to the sale

As result of the resale of outstanding shares of our common stock including restricted shares and shares

issuable upon exercise or conversion of the foregoing securities the price of our common stock may be adversely

affected

The issuance of preferred stock may a4versely affect the value of our common stock or make it moire difficult

for party to acquire controlling interest in our company

We are authorized to issue up to 2000000 shares of preferred stock of which 281241 shares ha\e been

designated as series 9% cumulative convertible preferred stock referred to as the series preferred stock and

which are currently issued and outstanding The preferred stock not already designated and issued may be issued

in series from time to time with such designations rights preferences and limitations as our board of directors

may determine by resolution without stockholder approval While the terms of the series preferred stock do not

currently allow for the issuance of preferred stock having dividend and liquidation preferences greater than or

senior to the series preferred stock any future issuances of preferred stock may enjoy dividend and liquidation

preferences over our common stock thereby diminishing the value of our common stock Furthermore the

issuance of preferred stock as well as any authorized but unreserved common stock while providing flexibility

in connection with possible future financings or acquisitions and other corporate purposes could have the effect

of making it more difficult for third party to acquire or could discourage third party from seeking to acquire

controlling interest in our company

Our management and directors as well as the holders of our series preferred stock are able to exercise

significant control over our management and affairs

As of December 31 2008 executive officers and directors including Richard Kessel Joseph Cresci

Roger Ballentine Kamlesh Tejwani Robert Weisberg John Cooper August Schumacher Jr Lon

Hatamiya Steven Kessner Michael Thomas and Dennis Haines beneficially owned approximately 17.46% of

our outstanding common stock In addition the three holders of our series preferred stock two of which are

affiliated with each other control approximately 18.3% of the total number of votes currently entitled to be cast
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at any meeting of our stockholders While there are no voting agreements among them such persons as group

may be able to exercise some level of control over the outcome of matters submitted for stockholder action

including the election of members to our board of directors and the approval of significant change in control

transactions This may have the effect of delaying or preventing change in control of our company and

therefore your opportunity to sell your
shares in such transaction Furthermore the holders of our series

preferred stock have special approval rights with respect to certain changes to our certificate of incorporation and

certain other corporate actions

The lack of developed trading market may make it difficult foryou to sell shares of our common stock

While our common stock is currently listed for trading on the NASDAQ Capital Market trading activity in

our common stock has fluctuated and has at times been limited For example for the one-month period from

December 2008 to December 31 2008 our daily trading volume ranged from low of 26500 shares to high

of 1363500 shares and averaged 144600 shares We cannot guarantee
that consistently active trading market

will develop in the future As result holder of our common stock may find it difficult to dispose of our

common stock

If we fail to continue to meet all applicable continued listing requirements of The NASDAQ Capital Market

and NASDAQ determines to delist our common stock the market liquidity and market price of our common

stock could decline

Our common stock is currently listed on The NASDAQ Capital Market In order to maintain that listing we

must satisfy minimum financial and other listing requirements Among these requirements is that our common

stock maintain minimum closing bid price of at least $1.00 per
share If our common stock fails to maintain

minimum closing bid price of at least $1.00 per
share for thirty consecutive business days we will have

180-day period to regain compliance with the minimum bid price rule If we fail to regain compliance within

such period our common stock may be subject to delisting from the NASDAQ Capital Market NASDAQ

temporarily suspended its minimum bid price rule effective October 16 2008 until January 16 2009 due to

overall conditions affecting the stock markets This suspension was recently extended to April 19 2009 Our

common stock has not had minimum closing bid price of $1.00 per
share since October 20 2008 If we fail to

continue to meet all applicable listing requirements of The NASDAQ Capital Market and NASDAQ determines

to delist our common stock an active trading market for our common stock may not be sustained and the market

price of our common stock could decline In addition the delisting of our common stock would also trigger

right on the part of the holders of our outstanding shares of series preferred stock to increase the cumulative

dividend rate on such shares from 9% per year to 16% per year We cannot assure you that we will not ultimately

fail to comply with the minimum bid price rule or other NASDAQ listing standards

The market price for our common stock has been and may continue to be volatile

The market price for our common stock has been volatile and it is likely to continue to be so In addition

the market price for our common stock could be subject to significant
fluctuations in response to variations in

quarterly operating results announcements of technological innovations or new facilities and products by us or

our competitors or our failure to achieve operating
results consistent with any securities analysts projections

of

our performance Furthermore the stock market has experienced extreme price and volume fluctuations and

volatility that have particularly affected the market price of many emerging growth and development stage

companies such as ours Such fluctuations and volatility have often been unrelated or disproportionate to the

operating performance
of such companies As result of fluctuations related or unrelated to our performance the

value of our common stock may be materially adversely affected
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We will require and are actively seeking significant additional financing which may result in our issuing
significant number of shares of our common stock or preferred stock which in turn may dilute the value of
your shares

We have historically needed to raise capital to fund our operating losses We expect to continue to incur

operating losses through at least 2010 In November 2006 we completed tax-exempt bond financing in Texas
to finance portion of the construction costs of our Texas facilities as well as $15 million private placement of

our series preferred stock and common stock warrants In October 2007 we completed public offering
resulting in net proceeds to us of approximately $26.6 million In July 2008 we completed $7.0 million

tax-exempt bond financing in Nebraska to finance portion of the construction costs of our Grand Island facility

In September 2008 we completed $62.425 million first tranche tax-exempt bond financing in California to

finance portion of the constructions costs of our proposed California facilities and anticipate pursuing

proposed $26.02 million second tranche financing On March 13 2009 we closed on sale of $5.0 mhlion

original principal amount of our 14% convertible notes due January 2014 for net proceeds of approximately
$4.4 million and we continue to work with our financial advisors to identify and explore various opportunities to

raise the capital we require However we cannot assure you that we will be able to raise sufficient capital on

acceptable terms or at all The level of funds we are able to raise if any will determine the level of development
and construction activity that we can pursue and whether we will be able to continue as going concern We will

require and will continue to seek corporate and project financing to fund our ongoing overhead and growth plans
as well as the cost of any development we may decide to pursue for our facilities Without limiting the foregoing
as described elsewhere in this annual report we will have to raise significant additional capital in the first half of
2009 in order to fund ongoing general and administrative expenses associated with our corporate overhead as

well as interest and dividend requirements We cannot assure you that such capital will be available in sufficient

amounts or on terms acceptable to us if at all Any such financing could be in the form of debt or equity
instruments or combination of debt and equity instruments To the extent any such financing involves equity or
convertible debt we may issue significant number of shares of our common stock or preferred stocl which
will dilute an existing investment in our common stock and we may issue such shares at prices that may be
lower than the price paid for our common stock by our stockholders In addition if we issue shares of preferred
stock such preferred stock may have rights and preferences that are superior to those of our common stock

Indeed the shares of our series preferred stock issued in our November 2006 private placement have rights and

preferences that are superior to those of our common stock Because we are authorized to issue shares of

additional series of preferred stock as designated by our board of directors subject to certain limitations included
in the terms of our series preferred stock we may issue more shares of preferred stock in the future

Issuances of common stock or securities convertible into common stock in the future could dilute existing
stockholders and adversely affect the market price of our common stock Of the 50000000 shares of authorized

common stock 15703034 are issued 15614604 are outstanding and 4905935 have been reserved for issuance

upon the exercise of options and warrants outstanding as of December 31 2008 An additional 2823660 shares

have been reserved for issuance in connection with the conversion of shares of our series preferred tock
issued in our November 2006 private placement We may also issue warrants to purchase up to 4.99% of our
common stock on fully diluted basis to Cargill Incorporated pursuant to the terms of our business

development agreement In May 2007 we issued warrants to purchase 175912 shares of our common stock at an
exercise price $5.37 per share representing 1% of our fully diluted common stock at the time to Cargi1 as

required by the business development agreement Additionally in October 2007 we issued 5400000 shares of

common stock in an underwritten public offering We also have the authority to issue preferred stock as

previously described debt securities convertible into common stock and options and warrants to purchase shares

of our common stock We may issue shares of common stock or securities convertible into common stock at

values below our market price up to maximum of 19.9% of our outstanding common stock without stockholder

approval which values may be substantially below the price paid for our common stock by our stockholders We
also do not need stockholder approval to issue an unlimited number of shares of common stock or securities

convertible into common stock provided sufficient shares of common stock are authorized and unreserved at or
above the market price for our common stock pursuant to certain NASDAQ Capital Market requirements Any
such issuances could be at values below the price paid for our common stock by our stockholders
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Our outstanding series preferred stock has rights and preferences superior to that of our common stock

may impair our ability to raise additional financing may harm our financial condition if we are required to

redeem it and could have the effect of discouraging an acquisition or reducing the amount of proceeds

available to common stockholders upon such an acquisition

Our shares of series preferred stock have rights and preferences
which are superior to those of our

common stock including

an accruing dividend of 9% on the stated value of each outstanding share of series preferred stock

payable before the payment of any dividends on our common stock

preference upon liquidation dissolution or winding up of Environmental Power equal to 200% of the

stated value of each share of preferred stock plus any
accrued but unpaid dividends

the right to consent to certain changes to our certificate of incorporation and bylaws and certain other

significant corporate actions and

the right to payment equal to 150% of the stated value of each outstanding share of Series preferred

stock upon certain change-in-control events

Our series preferred stock may also have material adverse effect on our financial condition and results

of operations With certain exceptions including exceptions for permitted indebtedness as defined we have

agreed to limit our ability to incur additional indebtedness while such preferred stock is outstanding Subject to

other exceptions we have also agreed with series holders not to issue stock senior to or on par
with series

preferred stock These constraints could materially and adversely affect our ability to raise funds necessary to

continue our business In addition the series preferred stock provides for various triggering events such as our

common stock not being listed for trading on the American Stock Exchange NASDAQ Global Market

NASDAQ Capital Market or New York Stock Exchange the failure to deliver shares of our common stock upon

conversion and specified change of control transactions Several other triggering events are described in the

certificate of designations preferences and rights of the series preferred stock If one of these triggering events

occurs we may be required to redeem all or part
of the outstanding shares of series preferred stock at 120% of

their stated value 150% in the case of certain change in control transactions including payment of accrued

dividends and penalties or the dividend rate on the series preferred stock may be increased from 9% per year

to 16% per year depending on the triggering event and the elections made by the holders of the series

preferred stock Some of the triggering events include matters over which we may have some little or no

control Any such redemption could leave us with little or no working capital for our business Furthermore by

virtue of their voting power and other rights and preferences
the outstanding series preferred stock could have

the effect of blocking or discouraging certain acquisitions of our company or reducing the proceeds available to

common stockholders as result of any such acquisitions

We do not intend to pay cash dividends on our common stock

We have not paid cash dividends on our common stock since 2001 and we do not expect to pay cash

dividends on our common stock at any time in the foreseeable future The future payment of dividends directly

depends upon the future earnings capital requirements
financial requirements

and other factors that our board of

directors will consider and is subject to the prior payment of all accrued but unpaid dividends on our series

preferred stock Furthermore the terms of our series preferred stock prohibit the payment of dividends on our

common stock while any shares of our series preferred stock are outstanding Because we do not anticipate

paying cash dividends on our common stock the return on any investment in our common stock will depend

solely on change if any in the market value of our common stock
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Item lB Unresolved Staff Comments

Not applicable

Item Properties

In the ordinary course of our business we lease office
space at various locations We believe this office

space including the space for our corporate headquarters located in Tarrytown N.Y is replaceable reasonable
rates

Microgy Holdings wholly owned subsidiary MST Estates LLC owns approximately seventy-two acres of
land in Erath County Texas which is the site on which the Huckabay Ridge project is located We believe the

companys Huckabay Ridge facility is the largest renewable natural gas plant of its kind in North America The
plant generates methane-rich biogas from manure and other agricultural waste conditions it to natural gas
standards and distributes it through commercial pipeline Huckabay Ridge consists of eight anaerobic digesters

that extract methane-rich biogas from waste to produce energy

Microgy Holdings wholly owned subsidiary Rio Leche Estates L.L.C owns approximately ninety-two
acres of land in Dublin Texas which is the site on which the planned Rio Leche facility is expected tO be
located

In addition to the foregoing in the ordinary course of our business certain of the companys operating
subsidiaries enter into long-term leases with nominal annual rent authorizing construction and operation of our
facilities on various host properties

Item Legal Proceedings

We are not currently party to any material legal proceedings

Item Submission of Matters to Vote of Security Holders

No matters were submitted to vote of our security holders through solicitation of proxies or otherwise

during the last
quarter of the year ended December 31 2008
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EXECUTIVE OFFICERS OF THE REGISTRANT

Our executive officers their ages and their positions as of February 29 2009 are set forth below

Name Age Position

Richard Kessel 59 President and Chief Executive Officer and President

Michael Thomas 49 Senior Vice President Chief Financial Officer and Treasurer

Dennis Haines 56 Vice President General Counsel and Secretary

Richard Kessel has been our President and Chief Executive Officer since July 2006 From October 2003

to July 2006 Mr Kessel was President and Chief Executive Officer of Bedford Partners consulting firm

assisting private equity firms in acquiring energy water waste and other service related enterprises From July

2002 to September 30 2003 Mr Kessel served as the President and Chief Executive Officer for North America

and Senior Vice President of Suez Environment an international company focused on water wastewater and

waste services The North American operations overseen by Mr Kessel were comprised of five companies with

over 9200 employees $1.3 billion in annual revenues and $1.5 billion in assets Mr Kessel served as President

and Chief Executive Officer of Trigen Energy Corporation an energy
services company with $1 billion in assets

$533 million in annual revenue and 34 operating facilities in 22 states from April 2000 to June 30 2002 after

serving as its Executive Vice President and Chief Operating Officer from December 1993 to March 31 2000

Previously Mr Kessel was President and Chief Executive Officer of United Thermal Corporation acquired by

Trigen which owned and operated the district energy systems in Baltimore Boston Philadelphia and St Louis

and Chief Operating Officer of Sithe Energies Inc developer of independent power projects in the United

States and global markets Mr Kessel serves on the board of directors of ISO New England Inc the operator of

the New England regions bulk power system and wholesale electricity markets Mr Kessel holds B.S in

electrical engineering from Manhattan College completed the course work for masters in finance from New

York Universitys Stern School of Business and received an advanced management degree from the Wharton

School of Business Executive Program

Michael Thomas has been our Senior Vice President and Chief Financial Officer since May 2007 and became

Treasurer in June 2007 From January 2007 to May 2007 Mr Thomas was the principal of MET Consulting LLC

business and financial services consulting firm From January 1999 to December 2006 Mr Thomas was Vice

President Chief Financial Officer for Maine Yankee Atomic Power Company From October 2004 to December 2006

Mr Thomas served as Vice President and Chief Financial Officer for Connecticut Yankee Atomic Power Company

and from December 2004 to December 2006 as Vice President and Chief Financial Officer for Yankee Atomic Electric

Company In these capacities Mr Thomas had responsibility for financial reporting investment management risk

management and treasury functions as well as human resources responsibilities for these three utilities which had

combined assets of over $1 billion and substantially completed decommissioning programs
for the three nuclear power

plants owned by them during Mr Thomas tenure From 1991 to 1999 Mr Thomas held various other finance

positions with Maine Yankee Atomic Power Company including Manager of Financial Services and Vice President

and Treasurer From 1984 to 1989 Mr Thomas held various finance positions with Central Maine Power Company

including Senior Financial Analyst and Director of Treasury Operations Mr Thomas holds bachelors degree with

major in economics from Bowdoin College and an MBA from the University of Southern Maine

Dennis Haines has been our Vice President and General Counsel since October 2006 and Secretary since June

2007 For the last several years Mr Haines took on various assignments with Suez worldwide energy and

environmental services provider including serving as General Counsel at Tens L.L.C Suez subsidiary from July

2005 to August 2006 From January 2003 to February 2005 Mr Haines provided legal support to various other Suez

units including operations in Nova Scotia and the United Kingdom From January 2001 to December 2002

Mr Haines served as General Counsel at Tngen Energy Corporation White Plains NY part of Suez Energy

International Mr Haines was also General Counsel Secretary at Zurn Industries Inc Erie PA an NYSE-traded

company which through ZurnINEPCO specialized in the design and construction of power-generation facilities

worldwide Mr Haines is graduate of the University of Pittsburgh J.D 1977 and B.A 1974 and member of the

New York California and Pennsylvania Bars
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PART

Item Market for Registrants Common Equity Related Stockholder Matters and Issuer Purchases of

Equity Securities

Market Price of and Dividends on Environmental Powers Common Stock and Related StockhOlder

Matters

Our common stock currently trades on the NASDAQ Capital Market under the symbol EPG As of

December 31 2008 there were approximately 162 record holders and over 1500 beneficial holders of our

common stock

Prior to December 21 2007 our common stock traded on the American Stock Exchange The fQllowing

table shows the quarterly high and low sales prices for our common stock during 2007 through Decether 20
2007 as reported on the American Stock Exchange

High Low

Fiscal Year Ended December 31 2007

First Quarter $8.85 $6.35

Second Quarter $9.34 $6.40

Third Quarter $9.17 $4.60

Fourth Quarter through December 20 2007 $5.50 $3.92

The following table shows the high and low sales prices for our common stock as reported on the NASDAQ
Capital Market for the remainder of the fourth quarter of 2007 and for each of the quarters in the year ended

December 31 2008

High Low

Fiscal Year Ended December 31 2007

Fourth Quarter December 21 2007 through December 31 2007 $5.04 $4.25

Fiscal Year Ended December 31 2008

First Quarter $6.25 $3.65

Second Quarter $5.62 $3.94

Third Quarter $4.60 $1.62

Fourth Quarter $2.25 $0.28

Our board of directors has not declared any dividends on our common stock since the last quarter of 2000
Due to the anticipated continued expansion of our business our board of directors has determined thai available

cash should be used for operating and investing activities for the foreseeable future except to the extnt of cash

dividends required to be paid on outstanding shares of our series 9% cumulative convertible prefenied stock

referred to as the series preferred stock In addition the terms of our series preferred stock prohilit the

payment of dividends on our common stock while any shares of our series preferred stock remain dutstanding

or any accrued dividends on the series preferred stock remain unpaid

Calculation of Aggregate Market Value of Non-Affiliate Shares

For purposes of calculating the aggregate market value of shares of our common stock held by non-affiliates

as set forth on the cover page of this Annual Report on Form 10-K we have assumed that all outstanding shares

are held by non-affiliates except for shares held by each of our executive officers directors and 5% or greater

stockholders In the case of 5% or greater stockholders we have not deemed such stockholders to be affiliates

unless there are facts and circumstances which would indicate that such stockholders exercise any control over

our company or unless they hold 10% or more of our outstanding common stock These assumptions should not
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be deemed to constitute an admission that all executive officers directors and 5% or greater stockholders are in

fact affiliates of our company or that there are not other persons who may be deemed to be affiliates of our

company Further information concerning shareholdings of our officers directors and principal stockholders is

included or incorporated by reference in Part III Item 12 of this Annual Report on Form 10-K

Recent Sales of Unregistered Securities Uses of Proceeds from Registered Securities

Not applicable

COMPARATIVE STOCK PERFORMANCE GRAPH

The following graph compares the cumulative stockholder return on our Common Stock with the return on

the NASDAQ Index which represents other similarly sized issuers traded on the NASDAQ Capital Market

where our common stock now trades and SIC Code 1311 Crude Petroleum Natural Gas which represents an

index for the industry which we believe to be most comparable to that in which most of our business is now

conducted in each case for the five year period ended December 31 2008 The comparison assumes the

investment of $100.00 on January 2003 in each of our common stock the NASDAQ Index and the SIC Code

1311 and assumes the reinvestment of dividends

The graph below and related information shall not be deemed soliciting material or filed with the

Securities and Exchange Commission or otherwise subject to the liabilities of Section 18 of the Exchange Act

nor shall such information be deemed incorporated by reference into any filing under the Securities Act or the

Exchange Act except to the extent we specifically request that such information be treated as soliciting material

or specifically incorporate such information by reference into document filed under the Securities Act or the

Exchange Act

COMPARISON OF 5-YEAR CUMULATIVE TOTAL RETURN

AMONG ENVIRONMENTAL POWER CORP
NASDAQ MARKET INDEX AND SIC CODE INDEX

400OET
2003 2004 2005 2006 2007 2008

ENVIRONMENTAL POWER CORP 4--SIC CODE INDEX 1311

NASDAQ MARKET INDEX

ASSUMES $100 INVESTED ON JAN 12003
ASSUMES DIVIDEND REINVESTED

FISCAL YEAR ENDING DEC 31 2008
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Item Selected Financial Data

This section presents our historical consolidated financial data You should read carefully the following

selected consolidated financial data together with our consolidated financial statements and the related notes

included in this report and the Managements Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of

Operations section of this report The selected consolidated financial data in this section are not intended to

replace our consolidated financial statements

We derived the statements of operations data for the years ended December 31 2008 2007 and 2006 and

the balance sheet data as of December 31 2008 and 2007 from our audited consolidated financial statements

which are included at the end of this report We derived the statements of operations data for the years ended

December 31 2005 and 2004 and the balance sheet data as of December 31 2006 2005 and 2004 from our

audited consolidated financial statements not included in this report Historical results are not necessarily

indicative of future results You should read the notes to our consolidated financial statements for an explanation

of the method used to determine the number of shares used in computing basic and diluted net loss
per share

Year Ended December31

2008 2007 2006 2005 2004
Amounts in thousands except per share amount

Results of Operations Data

Revenues 2905 1175 2216 4088 3736
Costs and expenses

Operations and maintenance 7118 942 2099 6116 3735

Impairment of goodwill 4913
General and administrative

expenses 12003 12444 11229 6810 5239

Depreciation and amortization 1359 304 299 250 215

Total Costs and Expenses 25393 13690 13627 13176 9189

Operating loss income 22488 12515 11411 9088 5453
Other income expense
Interest income 487 783 448 233 24

Interest expense 969 12 16
Other income expense 584

482 1355 439

Loss income before income taxes 22970 11160 10972 5445
Income tax expense benefit 26 427 84
Net loss Continuing Operations 22996 11161 11399 5361
Net income loss Discontinued Operations 6989 6196 2716 1403

Net loss 16007 17357 14115 3958
Preferred Securities Dividend Requirements 1326 1348 198
Beneficial Conversion Feature of Preferred Stock 57 4131
Change in Value of Modified Warrants 98
Loss Applicable to Common Shareholders 17333 18860 $18444 3963
Weighted average number of common shares

outstanding on diluted basis 15579 4583
Basic and Diluted income loss per Common Share 1.11 0.86
From Continuing Operations 1.56 1.17
From Discontinued Operations 0.45 0.31

Balance Sheet Data Continuing Operations
Totalassets $162013 $11314

Working capital including restricted cash 103846 1014

Long-term obligations 129475 614

Common Shareholders equity 17718 10218

See Note of the Consolidated Financial Statements
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Item Managements Discussion and Analysis of Financial Statements and Results of Operations

You should read the following discussion and analysis of financial condition and results of operations

together with the Selected Consolidated Financial Data section of this annual report on Form 10-K and our

consolidated financial statements and accompanying notes appearing in this report In addition to historical

information the following discussion contains forward-looking statements that involve risks uncertainties and

assumptions Our actual results could differ mate rially from those anticipated by the forward-looking statements

due to important factors including but not limited to those set forth in Part Item lA-Risk Factors appearing

elsewhere in this report

Overview

Environmental Power is developer owner and operator of renewable energy production facilities

Environmental Power goal is to produce energy that is Beyond RenewablelM which Environmental Power

defines as energy
that not only is derived from waste materials instead of precious resources but energy that is

also clean reliable and cost-effective Environmental Power and its subsidiaries develop and own facilities that

unlike many renewable energy facilities are intended to be profitable without the need for subsidies or other

governmental
assistance Any such government assistance would however benefit Environmental Powers

facilities by increasing their potential for profitability while at the same time expanding opportunities for the

profitable deployment of such facilities Environmental Power believes that number of factors including

volatile energy prices greater desire for renewable energy sources more stringent
environmental and waste

management requirements imposed on farmers and food industry waste producers and greater revenue

opportunities from carbon sequestration credits will continue to provide favorable market conditions for its

business

In the past we have operated in two major segments through Microgy Inc as developer of renewable

energy facilities for the production and commercial application of methane-rich biogas from agricultural and

food industry wastes and through EPC Corporation and its subsidiary Buzzard Power Corporation referred to as

Buzzard which was the holder of leasehold interest in waste-coal fired generating facility in Pennsylvania

known as the Scrubgrass facility On May 31 2007 our board of directors authorized management to enter into

negotiations regarding the disposition of the leasehold interest in the Scrubgrass facility On February 29 2008

we completed the disposition of the leasehold interest As result for financial reporting purposes we are now

consolidating all segments of continuing operations and reporting the results of Buzzard as discontinued

operations We thus now operate only in Microgys segment

Microgy is developer of renewable energy
facilities for the production and commercial application of

methane-rich biogas produced from animal and food industry wastes The biogas can be sold to end-users or used

to produce pipeline-grade methane which Microgy refers to as renewable natural gas or RNG liquefied natural

gas or LNG compressed natural gas or CNG renewable electrical energy or thermal energy as well as other

useful by-products Microgys systems utilize proven European biogas production technology that Microgy

believes is superior to other such technologies Microgy owns the perpetual exclusive North American license to

this technology In addition Microgy has developed significant engineering construction and process knowledge

regarding these systems

Due to the rates for conventional energy experienced in recent years in many U.S markets and expected

future increases in such rates over the long term Microgy believes that its systems can be profitable without the

need for subsidies rebates grants or other credits Nevertheless Microgy believes that tax credits renewable

energy credits pollution offset credits carbon sequestration credits and other such incentives may be available

now or in the future to Microgys facilities and such incentives would serve to enhance the potential profitability

of its facilities In addition the energy output from Microgys systems may carry premium price in some areas

as numerous environmentally responsible entities are seeking renewable energy sources and many states have

either passed or are considering legislation requiring utilities to obtain or generate certain percentage
of their

power from renewable sources
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In addition to the value generated from the production and sale of renewable gas we believe that our

facilities can generate additional environmental benefits with significant economic and social value by providing

valuable waste management solution for farms and other producers of organic wastes such as those in the food

industry Federal and state agencies have either passed or are considering regulations that require concentrated

animal feeding operations referred to as CAFOs to implement changes to their current waste management

practices We believe that these increasingly stringent environmental regulations will be another significant

factor creating opportunities for the deployment of our systems

Microgy intends to continue to focus on its strategy of developing large-scale standardized facilities

utilizing an ownership model pursuant to which Microgy will construct own and operate facilities and profit

from the ongoing sale of biogas or RNG produced by such facilities as well as sales of carbon sequestration

credits or other marketable environmental benefits This strategy encompasses the construction and operation of

stand-alone merchant plants like the Huckabay Ridge facility described below as well as facilities deçlicated to

the needs of single customer at one or more customer locations such as the Grand Island facility described

below By pursuing this strategy Microgy intends to accumulate
gas production and carbon sequestration

capacity over time In addition Microgy continues to standardize and streamline both its system design and its

approach to the marketplace in order to allow for rapid and cost-effective scale-up of its business

Having constructed both the multi- and single-tank system in four currently operating installations Microgy
intends to own the digester systems it develops Our multi-digester facilities will primarily produce pipeline-

quality renewable natural gas although we will also consider opportunities to produce and sell conditioned

biogas electricity CNG or LNG from our facilities Microgys development efforts are focused on applications
of its technology that are resource efficient Development of smaller scale and single-digester facilities will be

targeted toward customers that have multiple sites and opportunities that have shorter development

cycles Microgy goal with all projects is to maximize the profitability of
every project by implementing the

right technology and most profitable off-take arrangements

Microgy efforts have resulted most recently in the start of commercial operations at the Huckabay Ridge

facility in Stephenville Texas which began commercial operations in the first quarter of 2008 Huckabay Ridge
consists of eight 916000-gallon digesters which operate together to process the manure from approximately

10000 cows The gas is treated and compressed to produce pipeline-grade methane that is sold and delivered

directly into nearby natural
gas pipelines Huckabay Ridge is expected to produce approximately 635000 million

British Thermal Units or MMBtus of pipeline-grade methane per year

We have announced three other multi-digester facilities in development in Texas having the sam expected

output as the Huckabay Ridge facility We have also announced three proposed multi-digester RNG facilities in

California that are in advanced stages of development We completed $60 million in tax-exempt bond financing

in November 2006 relating to the construction and operation of the four RNG facilities in Texas Furthermore

we completed $62.425 million in tax-exempt bond financing in September 2008 to finance portion of the

construction costs of two of our three proposed California facilities and we currently anticipate closing further

$26.02 million in such financing for the third proposed California facility

In addition Microgy has commenced construction of multi-digester renewable biogas facility to be located

at the flagship Grand Island Nebraska beef processing plant of JBS Swift Company referred to as Swift

Under the terms of the agreement with Swift Microgy will construct own and operate the facility and sell its gas

output to Swift for use in its operations to offset natural
gas

utilization
pursuant to 15-year gas purchase

agreement The Grand Island facility will consist of two 1.2 million gallon digesters that will process Wastes

generated by the Grand Island processing facility and that we expect will be able to produce approximately

235000 MMBtus per year We completed $7.0 million in tax-exempt bond financing in Nebraska in July 2008 to

finance portion of the construction costs of the Grand Island facility In addition to this facility Microgy and

Swift will work closely together to identify evaluate and develop project opportunities at Swifts other North

American beef and pork processing facilities

32



In October 2006 we entered into business development agreement referred to as the BDA with Cargill

Incorporated referred to as Cargill We are leveraging our relationship with Cargill to accelerate our

identification and development of both facilities for the production of RNG and smaller-scale multi-digester

facilities dedicated to single customer

In addition Microgy is operating three single digester facilities in Wisconsin Microgy sold these projects to

the farms on which they are located and developed them in conjunction with Dairyland Power Cooperative an

electric cooperative utility referred to as Dairyland The biogas from these projects is used by Dairyland to

generate electricity

Discontinued Operations

The disposition of Buzzards leasehold interest in the Scrubgrass facility was completed on February 29

2008 Buzzard leased its generating facility from Scrubgrass Generating Company L.P The Scrubgrass plant

referred to as Scrubgrass located on 600-acre site in Venango County Pennsylvania is an approximate 83

megawatt waste coal-fired electric generating station We decided to seek the disposition of Buzzards leasehold

interest in the Scrubgrass facility to allow management to focus its attention and resources on the development

and growth of Microgy As result of Buzzards disposition of its leasehold interest we are now consolidating

all segments of continuing operations for financial reporting purposes
and reporting the results of Buzzard as

discontinued operations

The assets and liabilities of Buzzard have been accounted for as discontinued operations for sale for all

periods presented in accordance with the criterion established in Statement of Financial Accounting Standard

SFAS No 144 Accounting for Impairment or Disposal of Long-LivedAssets We no longer have

continuing involvement with the Buzzard business since we disposed of the leasehold interest in the Scrubgrass

facility and do not continue any revenue or cost-generating activities related to Buzzard In accordance with

SFAS No 144 the accompanying consolidated balance sheets and statements of operations report the assets

liabilities and operations of Buzzard as discontinued operations

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the

United States of America requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported

amounts of assets and liabilities at the date of the financial statements the reported amounts of revenues and

expenses during the reporting period and the disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the

financial statements Actual results could differ from those estimates Management believes the following critical

accounting policies among others discussed in Note to our consolidated annual financial statements appearing

in this report involve more significant judgments and estimates used in the preparation of our consolidated

financial statements

Method of Accounting for Revenues

We record revenues for the sales of natural gas as natural gas
is delivered and billed on monthly basis

We record revenues for operation and maintenance of the facilities at Dairyland which appear as revenues

on our income statement Operations and maintenance revenues are recorded as services are provided and billed

on monthly basis

Revenue from the sale of carbon sequestration credits is only recognized after the carbon credits have been

authenticated by an independent third party registered on the Chicago Climate Exchange and invoiced to the

customer
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Revenues and profits from our construction contracts relating to our relationship with Dairyland which

appear as Microgy revenues on our 2006 income statement were generally recognized by applying percentages

of completion for the period to the total estimated profits for the respective contracts Percentage of completion

was determined by relating the actual cost of the work performed to date to the current estimated total cost of the

respective contracts When the estimate on contract indicates loss our policy is to record the entire loss

during the accounting period in which it is estimated In the ordinary course of business at minimum on

quarterly basis we prepared updated estimates of the total forecasted revenue cost and profit or loss for each

contract The cumulative effect of revisions in estimates of the total forecasted revenue and costs during the

course of the work is reflected in the accounting period in which the facts that caused the revision become

known The financial impact of these revisions to any one contract is function of both the amount of the

revision and the percentage of completion of the contract An amount equal to the costs incurred is included in

the total estimated revenue when realization is probable Profit from unapproved change orders and claims is

recorded in the period such amounts are resolved

Notes Receivable

In 2005 we completed construction of the digesters at Five Star Dairy and Wild Rose Dairy DurIng 2006
we completed construction at the Norswiss Dairy collectively Dairyland sites Each digester has begun

operations The sales price for each digester was $1.0 million We will be paid from the cash flow from the sale

of gas generated under the applicable biogas supply agreement between the digester owner and Dairyland sites

which extends through 11 years after the sale for the facility to which it relates We will be paid up to

maximum of $3.1 million in the aggregate plus interest at 5% per annum which is evidenced by three separate

notes from each of the digester owners of approximately $1.0 million each In 2008 the company received

payments of $219000 from the sale of carbon sequestration credits which were applied to these notes As of

December 31 2008 after giving effect to the $750000 bad debt allowance relating to these notes established in

2005 the notes have an aggregate remaining balance of $1.6 million which we expect to collect in its entirety

We will continue to evaluate the estimated operating cash flows from these digesters that support the ability to

realize these notes and make further adjustments if required

Accounting for Income Taxes

As part of the process of preparing our consolidated financial statements we are required to estimate our

income taxes in each of the jurisdictions in which we operate This process involves estimating our actual current

tax exposure together with assessing temporary differences resulting from differing treatment of items for tax and

accounting purposes These differences result in deferred tax assets and liabilities which are included within our

consolidated balance sheet We must then assess the likelihood that our deferred tax assets will be recqvered

from future taxable income and to the extent we believe that recovery is not likely we must establish valuation

allowance To the extent we establish valuation allowance or increase this allowance in period we must

include an expense within the tax provision in the consolidated statement of operations

Significant management judgment is required in determining our provision for income taxes our deferred

tax assets and liabilities and any valuation allowance recorded against our deferred tax assets As of

December 31 2008 we had recorded net deferred income tax asset of $18.4 million and valuation allowance

of $18.4 million against our net deferred income tax assets due to uncertainties related to our ability to utilize

carryforwards before they expire The valuation allowance is based on our estimates of taxable income by

jurisdiction in which we operate and the period over which our deferred tax assets will be recoverable In the

event that actual results differ from these estimates or we adjust these estimates in future periods we may need

to adjust the valuation allowance which could materially impact our financial position and results of operations

As result of the implementation of FIN 48 we recognized no material adjustment in the valuation

allowance or deferred tax asset At the adaptation date of January 2007 we had $10.4 million of unrecognized

tax benefits all of which would affect our effective tax rate if recognized At December 31 2008 we have $19.9

million of unrecognized tax benefits primarily comprised of federal and state net operating losses
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Intangible Assets

In June 2001 the Financial Accounting Standards Board FASB issued Statement of Financial Accounting

Standard SFAS No 142 Goodwill and Other Intangible Assets The most significant changes made by

SFAS No 142 are

goodwill and indefinite-lived intangible assets will be tested for impairment at least annually

goodwill and indefinite-lived intangible assets will no longer be amortized to income and

the amortization period of intangible assets with finite lives will no longer be limited to forty years

The Company acquired Microgy Inc in 1999 This acquisition resulted in an initial allocation of

$4913000 to goodwill The impairment evaluation for goodwill is conducted at least annually or more

frequently if events or changes in circumstances indicate that an asset might be impaired The evaluation is

performed using two-step process The first step compares the book value of the Companys reporting unit to

its estimated fair value The second step of the goodwill impairment test which is only required when the net

book value of the reporting unit exceeds the fair value compares the implied fair value of goodwill to its book

value to determine if an impairment is required The Company estimates the fair values of its reporting unit using

the income approach which measures the value of an intangible asset based on the expected stream of monetary

benefits attributable to it over its remaining useful life

The Company annually performs tests to determine the appropriate value of goodwill The results of these

tests in 2008 resulted in the Companys determination that the entire balance of $4913000 was impaired due

primarily to the current market price of its common stock relative to its book value projections of future cash

flows and other factors Previously the market price of the Companys common stock and consequently its

market capitalization were relatively high compared to the book value per share of its common stock However

this year the Companys market value is substantially below its book value due principally to the current market

price of its common stock As result accounting requirements require the Company to determine whether there

is enough market value after covering other net assets on book basis to cover any of its goodwill The Company

determined that market value was insufficient to cover goodwill and determined that the write-off was

required The write-off of goodwill is not reflection on the economics of the Companys projects which the

Company continues to stand behind but is simply the result of the application of accounting requirements

associated with goodwill impairment

Stock-Based Compensafion Expense

The employee stock-based compensation expense recognized under FAS 23R and presented in the

disclosure required under FAS 123 was determined using the Black-Scholes option valuation model Option

valuation models require the input of subjective assumptions and these assumptions can vary over time

Employee stock-based compensation expense recognized in 2008 2007 and 2006 was calculated based on

awards ultimately expected to vest and has been reduced for estimated forfeitures FAS 23R requires forfeitures

to be estimated at the time of grant and revised if necessary in subsequent periods if actual forfeitures differ

from those estimates forfeiture rate of 0% to 25% is applied to the stock-based compensation expense

determined through historical experience of employee stock-based awards We base our determination of

expected volatility primarily on our assessment of the historical volatility of our common stock During the years

ended December 31 2008 2007 and 2006 we based our determination of the expected term using combination

of the simplified method and our assessment of the historical post vesting termination activity depending on the

amount of historical information available

In October of 2006 Microgy entered into Business Development Agreement with Cargill pursuant to

which Cargill would receive warrants to purchase our common stock in exchange for the identification of

anaerobic digester projects Our accounting policy for equity instruments issued to consultants and vendors in
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exchange for goods and services follows the provisions of EITF 96 18 Accounting for Equity Instruments That

Are Issued to Other Than Employees for Acquiring or in Conjunction with Selling Goods or Services and EITF

00-18 Accounting Recognition for Certain Transactions Involving Equity Instruments Granted to Other Than

Employees The measurement date for the fair value of the equity instruments issued is determined at the earlier

of the date at which commitment for performance by the consultant or vendor is reached or ii the date at

which the consultant or vendors performance is complete In the case of equity instruments issued to consultants

the fair value of the equity instrument is recognized over the term of the consulting agreement In accordance

with EITF 00-18 an asset acquired in exchange for the issuance of fully vested non-forfeitable equity

instruments should not be presented or classified as an offset to equity on the grantors balance sheet once the

equity instrument is granted for accounting purposes

Results of Operations

Continuing and Discontinued Operations

Comparison of the Years ended December 31 2008 and 2007

Overview For the year
ended December 31 2008 we had net loss applicable to common shareholders of

$17333000 or loss per common share of $1.11 compared to net loss applicable to common shareholders of

$18860000 or loss per common share of $1.66 for the year ended December 31 2007 This reduction in net loss

reflects changes in continuing operations and discontinued operations as follows

Net loss from continuing operations was $22996000 for the year
ended December 31 2008 as

compared to $11161000 for the year ended 31 2007 The results for 2008 included

non-cash recurring charge for the impairment of goodwill of $4913000

Net loss from discontinued operation was $1011000 for the year ended December 31 2008as

compared to $6196000 for the
year

ended December 31 2007 In 2008 discontinued operations

includes two months of results before the operation was disposed of as compared to twelve months of

results for 2007

The results for 2008 include gain on disposal of discontinued operations of $8000000 There was no

comparable item in 2007

Individual line items on the income statement are discussed below

Revenues Revenues for the year ended December 31 2008 increased to $2905000 from $1175000 for the

year ended December 31 2007 or an increase of 147% The increase is attributable primarily to revenues from

the Huckabay Ridge facility which began operations in February 2008 and had revenues of $1723 0iXJ for 2008

The facility was in service from February through August and then resumed production in December The facility

was taken out of service for certain repairs equipment upgrades and operating improvements

Operations and maintenance expense For the year ended December 31 2008 operations and maintenance

expense was $7118000 which was an increase of $6176000 over operations and maintenance expense

incurred for the year
ended December 31 2007 The increase was due to operations and maintenance expense of

$5973000 at Huckabay Ridge which began operation in February 2008 and therefore had no operations and

maintenance expense
in 2007 These expenses include some non-recurring and start-up expenses related to initial

operations at Huckabay Ridge In addition expenses included charge of $562000 related to the write-off of

deposits with suppliers based on our decision to terminate tank orders

Impairment of goodwill In 2008 as discussed above we determined that our goodwill resulting from the

acquisition of Microgy was impaired and the entire balance of $4913000 was impaired This impairment is

non-cash non recurring charge We annually perform tests to determine the appropriate value of goodwill The

results of these tests in 2008 resulted our determination that the entire balance of $4913000 was impaired due

primarily to the current stock price of our common stock relative its book value projections of future cash flow
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and other factors Previously the market price of our common stock and consequently our market capitalization

were relatively high compared to the book value of our common stock However this year our market value is

substantially below our book value due principally to the current market price of our common stock As result

accounting standards require us to determine whether there is enough market value after covering other net assets

on book basis to cover any of the goodwill We determined that market value was insufficient to cover goodwill

and determined that the write-off was required This calculation is not reflection of the economics of the

projects we are undertaking which we continue to stand behind but is simply the application of accounting

requirements associated with goodwill requirements

General and administrative expense General and administrative expense decreased by $441000 to

$12003000 for the year ended December 31 2008 from $12444000 for the year ended December 31 2007

The primary reasons for the decline in general and administrative expense were reductions in payroll expense and

non-cash compensation expense
from the issuance of options and stock appreciation rights These reductions in

expenses were partially offset by higher expenses for insurance and professional fees

Depreciation and amortization expense Depreciation and amortization
expense

increased to $1359000 for

the year ended December 31 2008 as compared to $304000 for the year
ended December 31 2007 The increase

in depreciation and amortization expense was principally due to the fact that 2008 included eleven months of

depreciation of the Huckabay Ridge facility which began commercial operations in February 2008

Operating loss As result of the changes described above our operating loss from continuing operations

increased to $22488000 for the twelve months ended December 31 2008 as compared to $12515000 for the

twelve months ended December 31 2007

Interest income Interest income for the year ended December 31 2008 was $487000 as compared to

$783000 for the
year

ended December 31 2007 Interest income declined due to both higher invested balances

in 2007 as compared to 2008 and lower interest rates on invested assets in 2008

Interest expense Interest expense increased to $969000 in 2008 from $12000 in 2007 The increase was

due to the fact that we ceased capitalizing the interest associated with the Huckabay Ridge facility when

construction was completed in February 2008 The interest expense related to the portion of the bonds allocated

to finance the Huckabay Ridge facility is no longer capitalized but is recorded as interest expense The amount of

this interest expense is $87500 month

Other income expense In 2007 income of $584000 was the one-time recognition of the reversal of

reserve resulting from the expiration of the statute of limitations on contingent obligations related to the sale of

project in 2001

Income tax expense Because we are not assured of realizing the benefits of operating losses for tax purposes

we did not record an income tax benefit for losses incurred during the years ended December 31 2008 and 2007

Loss from discontinued operations net of taxes The results for 2008 loss of $1011000 consists of the

operating loss of Buzzard for the first two months of 2008 prior to the disposition of the Scrubgrass facility on

February 29 2008 The 2007 loss of $6196000 reflects the results of Buzzard for the twelve months ended

December 31 2007

Gain on disposal of discontinued operations We disposed of Buzzards interest in the Scrubgrass facility on

February 29 2008 and recognized one-time gain of $8000000 With the exception of cash payment of

$375000 the gain was non-cash in nature and consisted principally of recognition of previously deferred gain

in the amount of $2570000 forgiveness of indebtedness in the amount of $3456000 and elimination of other

obligations in the amount of $1630000 There was no tax provision provided on the disposition because we

believe that we have sufficient net operating loss carry-forwards at the federal and state levels to offset any

potential tax liability with respect to the gain on disposal
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The net result of loss from discontinued operations and gain on disposal of discontinued operations for the

year ended December 31 2008 was income of $6989000 compared to loss of $6196000 for the year ended

December 31 2007

Comparison of the Years ended December 31 2007 and 2006

For the year ended December 31 2007 we had net loss applicable to common shareholders of $18.9

million or loss available per common share of $1.66 compared to net loss applicable to common shareholders of

$18.4 million or loss per common share of $1.91 for the year ended December 31 2006 The increase in net loss

available to common shareholders was primarily attributable to $3.5 million increase in loss from discontinued

operations and an increase in preferred dividend requirements of $1.2 million These changes were partially

offset by decrease in the amortization of the beneficial conversion feature associated with our series

preferred stock offering in November 2006 and $915000 increase in other income as result of higher interest

income and the resolution of an outstanding contingency

We have one continuing business segment Microgy The results of operations for this business segment

which is presented as continuing operations as well as our discontinued operations comprised of the results of

our Buzzard subsidiary are discussed below

Continuing Operations

Revenues from continuing operations decreased by $1.04 million or 47% to $1175000 for the year ended

December 31 2007 as compared to $2.2 million for the year ended December 31 2006 This decreas in

revenue is due mainly to the change in business model from model where we sell facilities to third parties to

the current ownership model where we build own and operate facilities for our own account Revenues from

the operation and maintenance of facilities increased to $1175000 for the year ended December 31 2007

compared to $825000 for the year ended December 31 2006 The increase in operations and maintenance

revenue in the year ended December 31 2007 is result of the three Dairyland sites being fully operational in

2007 as compared to 2006 when only two facilities were fully operational During 2007 we recognizçd carbon

sequestration credit sales of $68000 which were verified and sold during the third quarter of 2007 The credits

themselves were associated with operations of the Dairyland sites from January 2007 through May of 2007

Pursuant to our agreements with the owners of these facilities portion of this sale was recognized by us as

revenue and portion was applied to the balance of the notes we hold in respect of the purchase price of these

facilities By way of comparison in the year ended December 31 2006 we recognized $13000 from the sale of

greenhouse gas sequestration credits In the year ended December 31 2006 we recognized $1.2 million from the

sale of the digester equipment to the Wisconsin facilities whereas there were no such sales in 2007 due to the

change in the business model

Our operations and maintenance expense decreased to $942000 for the year ended December 31 2007 as

compared to $2.1 million for the year ended December 31 2006 This decrease is due primarily to the shift in

emphasis from sales model to an ownership model as discussed above In the year ended December 31 2007

we did not recognize any expenses from the construction of facilities In the year ended December 31 2006

$812000 of the $2.1 million in operations and maintenance expense was related to the construction of electric

generating facilities constructed for sale to Dairyland Operations and maintenance costs decreased from $1.3

million in the year ended December 31 2006 to $942000 in the year ended December 31 2007 due primarily to

lower repair and maintenance costs at the Dairyland sites

General and administrative expenses from continuing operations increased by $1.2 million to $12.4 million

for the year ended December 31 2007 as compared to $11.2 million for in the year ended December 31 2006

This increase was primarily due to $762000 increase in non-cash compensation expense and $1.5 million

increase in payroll related expenses including severance These increases were partially offset by $992000

decrease in professional service expenses In the year ended December 31 2007 we recognized $2.8 million of
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non-cash compensation expenses due primarily to the FAS 123R treatment of options and stock appreciation

rights granted to employees as compared to non-cash compensation expense
of $2.0 million in the

year
ended

December 31 2006

We experienced an increase in preferred security dividend requirements related to our series 9%

cumulative convertible preferred stock issued in November 2006 from $193000 for the year ended

December 31 2006 to $1.3 million for the year ended December 31 2007 representing dividends either accrued

or paid in the year ended December 31 2007 Dividends on our series 9% cumulative convertible preferred

stock accrue at the rate of 9% per annum and are payable on January and July of each year to the extent

declared and paid out of funds legally available therefore

The foregoing expenses were offset in part by other income of $1.4 million for the year ended December 31

2007 compared to other income of $439000 for the year ended December 31 2006 The increase in other

income is primarily due to the expiration of the statute of limitations regarding potential liability related to the

Sunnyside project and the release of reserve therefore which provided $584000 in other income during the

year ended December 31 2007 Additionally interest income increased by $335000 to $783000 in the twelve

months ended December 31 2007 primarily as result of higher average cash balance due to the common stock

offering

In the year ended December 31 2007 our construction in progress balance increased by $13.6 million to

total of $27.6 million As of December 31 2007 we had total cost of $23.5 million associated with the

Huckabay Ridge facility of which $1.2 million was made up of capitalized interest and finance costs and

approximately $6.1 million of capitalized commissioning costs due to the extended ongoing commissioning

period By comparison in the year ended December 31 2006 our construction in progress
balance increased by

$13.2 million to $14.1 million

Discontinued Operations

We experienced pre-tax loss from discontinued operations of $6.2 million for the year
ended

December 31 2007 compared to $2.7 million pre-tax loss for year ended December 31 2006 This increase in

pre-tax loss is primarily due to an increase in operating expenses of $3.1 million and $177000 increase in

other expenses

Billed power generation revenues at Buzzard which consist of power generation revenues increased by

$2.9 million to $58.8 million for the
year

ended December 31 2007 as result of increased power rates as

compared to $55.9 million for the year ended December 31 2006 Buzzard operated at 93.6% of capacity for this

period compared to 97% of capacity for the year ended December 31 2006 The decrease was result of

twelve day maintenance outage in May 2007 The decrease in capacity was offset by 7% increase in billed

power rates in 2007 This increase in billed power generation revenues was completely offset by decrease in

accrued power generation revenues of $2.9 million The accrued power generation revenues result from the

FASB 13 accounting treatment of the Scrubgrass lease In accordance with generally accepted accounting

principles in the United States we are required to treat our power sales agreement with Penelec as lease

aggregate the minimum lease payments expected to be received over its life and recognize it on straight-line

basis over the 22-year lease term However we have limited the recognition of accrued power revenues to the

recognition of the deemed minimum payments of the facility lease so that we do not recognize any profits early

related to executory costs or payment for goods and services other than solely for the right to use the facility

Total operating expenses at Buzzard for the year ended December 31 2007 increased by $3.1 million to

$32.5 million as compared to $29.5 million for the year ended December 31 2006 This increase was primarily

result of increases in maintenance costs of $2.6 million and fuel costs of $512000 The increase in maintenance

costs is largely attributable to twelve day maintenance outage that occurred in May of 2007 Lease expenses at

Buzzard decreased by $432000 to $21.7 million in the year ended December 31 2007 compared to
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$22.1 million in the year ended December 31 2006 General and administrative expenses increased to $3.0

million in the year ended December 31 2007 compared to $2.4 million in the
year

ended December 31 2006

Quarterly Results of Operations

Note to the consolidated financial statements included in this report sets forth items from our statements

of operations for the eight quarters ended December 31 2008 This data has been derived from unaudited

financial statements that in the opinion of management include all adjustments consisting only of normal

recurring adjustments necessary for fair presentation of the information This information should be read in

conjunction with the consolidated financial statements and the notes thereto and other financial information

appearing elsewhere in this report We believe that period-to-period comparisons of our financial results are not

necessarily meaningful and should not be relied upon as an indication of future performance

The trends discussed in the period-to-period comparisons above generally apply to the results of operations

for our eight most recent quarters

We expect to experience significant fluctuations in future quarterly operating results that may be caused by

many factors including among other things the progress of Microgys business plan the effects of competition

market acceptance of our products the mix of our products and services sold demand for our products or the

timing of customer acceptance of our products changes in the level of our operating expenses general economic

conditions and the factors set forth in Part Item lA-Risk Factors appearing elsewhere in this report Due to

these and other factors our annual revenues and operating results are difficult to forecast accurately

LIQUIDITY AND CAPITAL RESOURCES

Going Concern

The companys consolidated financial statements have been prepared on going concern basis which

contemplates continuity of operations realization of assets and satisfaction of liabilities in the ordinary course of

business As predominately development oriented company we have experienced substantial losses since the

year ended December 31 2002 For the year ended December 31 2008 we incurred net loss app1icble to

common shareholders of $17332979 and used cash of $13100178 in operating activities We anticipate

incurring losses at least through 2010 as we continue the construction of our portfolio of announced projects

which we anticipate completing at varying times in 2010 subject to the availability of funding and the

operational ramp up of our Huckabay Ridge facility and completion of construction and then operation of our

Swift Grand Island facility during 2009 As of December 31 2008 we had an accumulated deficit of

$71401984 and our unrestricted cash and cash equivalents amounted to $3157938 Currently our facility at

Huckabay Ridge Texas which is being ramped up to full production will not generate positive cash flow until

the ramp up is complete and steady state conditions are achieved In any event the cash we project toibe

generated from Huckabay Ridge by itself will be insufficient to meet our short-term and long-term corporate

and project-related capital requirements

In the past we have been able to obtain outside financing to fund our losses and meet our capital

requirements with the anticipation that once our portfolio of projects are complete and operational they would

contribute to future liquidity needs While we have implemented steps to reduce our general and administrative

expenses we will need to raise substantial funds during the first half of 2009 in order to fund ongoing general

and administrative expenses as well as interest and dividend requirements We are currently actively seeking

additional sources of capital to meet these financing needs To that end on March 13 2008 we closed on sale

of $5.0 million original principal amount of our 14% convertible notes due January 2014 for net proceeds of

approximately $4.4 million and we continue to work with our financial advisors to identify and explre various

opportunities to raise the capital we require However we cannot assure you that we will be able to raise

sufficient capital on acceptable terms or at all The level of funds we are able to raise if any will determine the

level of development and construction activity that we can pursue and whether we will be able to continue as

going concern
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The accompanying consolidated financial statements have been prepared assuming that we will continue as

going concern The uncertainties described in the preceding paragraph raise substantial concern at

December 31 2008 about our ability to continue as going concern without additional financing The

accompanying consolidated financial statements do not include any adjustments relating to the recoverability and

classification of the carrying amount of recorded assets or to the amount and classification of liabilities that

might result should we be unable to continue as going concern

2008

Operating Activities

Our cash used in operating activities was $13100000 in the year ended December 31 2008 compared to

cash used in operating activities of $7930000 for the year ended December 31 2007 We reported net loss of

$16007000 during the year ended December 31 2008 The following adjustments to our cash flows need to be

considered in order to reconcile our net loss for 2008 to our net cash used in operating activities

Impairment of goodwill In 2008 we recorded an impairment for the entire balance of our goodwill as an

expense of $4913000 This impairment is non-cash charge and is added back to funds provided from operations

Depreciation and amortizationDuring the year
ended December 31 2008 we recognized depreciation

and amortization for licensed technology rights of $186000 lease rights of $20000 and property plant and

equipment of $1153000

Stock-based compensationThe FAS 123R accounting for stock appreciation rights options and stock

grants resulted in non-cash compensation expenses of $1951000 for the year ended December 31 2008

Investing Activities

Our cash used for investing activities was $76504000 in the year ended December 31 2008 as compared

to $5952000 in the year ended December 31 2007

Restricted cashWe are required to hold cash associated with our tax-exempt bond financing with third

party disbursement agent On December 31 2008 the disbursement agent was holding balance of

$104577000 in bond proceeds compared to $45785000 on December 31 2007 The increase in restricted cash

is attributable to our $62425000 in tax-exempt bond financing in California and $7000000 in tax exempt bond

financing in Nebraska These increases in cash were offset by the expenditure of funds for the construction of our

facilities in Huckabay Ridge Texas and Grand Island Nebraska These assets are invested in short term high

quality debt instruments

Construction of projectsExpenditures on construction of our projects were $16906000 for the twelve

months ended December 31 2008 compared to $12388000 for the twelve months ended December 31 2007

Property plant and equipmentProperty plant and equipment expenditures were $377000 for the year

ended December 31 2008 compared to expenditures of $560000 for the year ended December 31 2007 The

expenditures did not include capitalized interest

Financing Activities

Our cash provided by financing activities was $66693000 in the year ended December 31 2008 compared

to cash provided by financing activities of $26157000 in the year ended December 31 2007 We offer the

following information concerning the financing activities for our business

Dividend payments obligationsWe paid dividends of $1326000 to preferred stockholders during the year

ended December 31 2008

41



Net Proceeds from Bond FinancingIn September 2008 Microgy Holdings LLC our wholly-owned

subsidiary closed $62425000 9% tax-exempt bond financing through the California Statewide Communities

Development Authority The proceeds of the bond offering will provide debt financing for two proposed

renewable natural gas facilities in California being developed by Microgy In July 2008 Microgy Grand Island

LLC our wholly-owned subsidiary closed $7000000 7% tax-exempt bond financing through the City of

Grand Island Nebraska The proceeds of the bond offering will provide debt financing for the renewable natural

gas facility under construction at Grand Island Nebraska

2007

Operating Activities

Our cash used in operating activities was $7.9 million in the year ended December 31 2007 compared to

cash used in operating activities of $10.0 million for the year ended December 31 2006 We reported net loss

of $17.4 million during the
year ended December 31 2007 The following adjustments which did not impact our

cash flows need to be considered in order to reconcile our net loss for 2007 to our net cash used in operating

activities

Depreciation and amortizationDuring the year ended December 31 2007 we recognized depreciation

and amortization for licensed technology rights of $186000 lease rights of $149000 and property plant and

equipment of $126000

Deferred gain netOur deferred gain net decreased to $2.6 million as of December 31 2007 from

$2.9 million as of December 31 2006 The decrease is due to the amortization of the deferred gain rejated to

Scrubgrass which is being amortized on straight-line basis over 22 years

Interest expense accruedDuring the year ended December 31 2007 we had $603000 of interest expense

that was added to the outstanding principal balance of the ArcLight loan

Stock-based compensationThe FAS 123R accounting for options and stock grants resulted in non-cash

compensation expenses of $2.8 million for the year ended December 31 2007

We also offer the following information regarding changes in operating assets and liabilities that most

notably impacted our cash position during 2007

ReceivablesTotal receivables increased by $2.9 million The increase is primarily attributable to increased

receivables at Buzzard due to increased power generation revenues in the fourth quarter of 2007 compared to

power generation revenues in the fourth quarter of 2006

Investing Activities

Our cash used for investing activities was $6.0 million in the year ended December 31 2007 as compared

to $66.6 million in the
year ended December 31 2006 Cash used for investing activities for the year ended

December 31 2006 included $53.2 million dollar increase in restricted cash as result of the November 2006

bond financing Our investing activities were concentrated primarily in the following areas

Restricted cash We are required to hold cash associated with our tax-exempt bond financing with third

party disbursement agent On December 31 2007 the disbursement agent was holding balance of $45.8 million

in bond proceeds compared to $52.2 million on December 31 2006 We also hold $489000 in restricted cash

fund to fund our asset retirement obligation at Huckabay Additionally we were contractually required to make

scheduled deposits to restricted maintenance fund for Scrubgrass to ensure that funds are available in the future

for scheduled major equipment overhauls We were allowed to use cash from this restricted maintenance fund for

major equipment overhauls at Scrubgrass subject to certain restrictions Our restricted cash balance associated

with Buzzard was $2.2 million on December 31 2007 compared to $3.2 million on December 31 2006 These

funds will be used to pay
for future major maintenance expenses at the Scrubgrass facility
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Construction on projectsExpenditures on our facilities were $12.4 million for the twelve months ended

December 31 2007 compared to $13.2 million for the twelve months ended December 31 2006 As of

December 31 2007 we had incurred expenditures of $22.0 million related to the construction of the Huckabay

Ridge facility including $6.1 million of capitalized commissioning costs due to the extended and continuing

commissioning period Expenditures for projects other than Huckabay Ridge were approximately $722000

million in the year ended December 31 2007

Property plant and equipmentProperty plant and equipment expenditures did not include capitalized

interest and were $560000 for the year ended December 31 2007 compared to expenditures of $177000 for the

year ended December 31 2006

Financing Activities

Our cash provided by financing activities was $26.2 million in the year
ended December 31 2007

compared to cash provided by financing activities of $75.5 million in the year
ended December 31 2006 We

offer the following information concerning the financing activities for our business

Dividend payments obligationsWe paid dividends of $871000 to preferred stockholders during the year

ended December 31 2007

Public Offerings of Common StockOn October 2007 the Company raised $26.6 million through the

sale of 5400000 shares of common stock

Public Offerings of Preferred StockOn October 21 2006 the Company raised $14.0 million net of

associated fees of $950000 through the sale of 281241 shares of Series Cumulative Convertible Preferred

Stock and Warrants The Convertible Preferred Stock holders are entitled to 9% cumulative dividend payable

on semiannual basis

Proceeds from Bond Financing In November 2006 Microgy Holdings LLC our wholly-owned

subsidiary closed $60 million tax-exempt bond financing through the Gulf Coast Industrial Development

Authority The bonds were issued at par and will pay coupon of 7% The proceeds of the bond offering will

provide debt financing for four proposed renewable natural gas
facilities in Texas being developed by Microgy

The bonds carry certain restrictions and covenants including reporting requirements and restrictions on the use

of the funds The debt held by Microgy Holdings is non recourse to Environmental Power although

Environmental Power is required to provide at least 20% of the construction costs of these facilities as well as to

cover any cost overruns in construction

Exercise of Stock Options and WarrantsWe received $2952000 of
gross proceeds from the exercise of

stock options and warrants in the year ended December 31 2007

Working capital loan and current notes payable for ScrubgrassBuzzard may borrow up to $6 million

under lessee working capital loan agreement with the lessor of the Scrubgrass facility for ongoing working

capital requirements of this project The outstanding borrowings under this loan were $1.8 million as of

December 31 2007 On December 31 2006 the outstanding borrowings under this loan were $4.2 million
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Long Term Liabilities Commitments

The following table shows all of our long term liabilities and commitments Note to our consolidated

financial statements provides additional information on these commitments

Commitments of Continuing Operations

$USD 2009 2010 2011 2012 2013 Thereafter Total

Operating Leases1 336672 336672 298500 111078 1082922

Microgy Commitments2 3000000 3000000

Tax Exempt Bonds3 10308250 10308250 10658250 11603750 $11606350 $285416450 339901300

Security Deposit4 250000 100000 100000 100000 100000 650000

Vehicle Loan and Other Capital

LeasesS 30347 18829 49176

TOTAL $13925269 $10763751 $11056750 $11814828 $11706350 $285416450 $344683398

We are obligated under various non-cancelable operating leases for office space and automotive vehicles Rent expense fr these

operating leases was $371637 $424765 and $286501 in 2008 2007 and 2006 respectively

These commitments relate to various purchase agreements and include amounts expected to be claimed by SouthTex Treaters for gas

treatment equipment in connection with our Microgy facilities

In 2007 Microgy began scheduled interest payments on the tax exempt bonds Mandatory redemption of principal amounts begins in

2012

In December 2008 Microgy signed contract with customer that required security deposits to protect against failure to deliver product

in certain instances

We are obligated under various non-cancelable capital leases for automotive vehicles

The following table provides further detail regarding our debt obligations as of December 31 2q08 and

December 31 2007

December 31 Deceliber 31
2008 2007

Secured Promissory Notes Payable and Other Obligations

Vehicle loan capital leases 50023 103983

California loan related to tax exempt bonds 62425000

Texas loan related to tax exempt bonds 60000000 60350000

Nebraska financing lease related to tax exempt bonds 7000000

TOTAL $129475023 $60453983

Notes Receivable from Officers and Directors We have outstanding notes receivable from former and

current officers and directors for shares purchased in connection with stock option plans that amounted to

$638219 as of December 31 2008 and December 31 2007 These notes secured by the underlying shares of

stock purchased thereby are payable upon demand and bear interest at floating rate which is payable monthly

In accordance with company policy and applicable law we no longer make loans to our officers or directors

Microgy Holdings LLC Debt ObligationsIn November 2006 Microgy Holdings LLC our wholly-owned

subsidiary closed $60000000 tax-exempt bond financing through the Gulf Coast Industrial Devekpment

Authority of Texas These bonds were issued at par and will pay coupon of 7% The proceeds of the bond

offering will provide debt financing for four proposed renewable natural gas facilities in Texas being developed

by Microgy To date we have used approximately $1.2 million to fund costs of issuance and $15 million of the

proceeds to fund construction of our Huckabay Ridge facility In September 2008 Microgy Holdings LLC closed

$62425000 tax-exempt bond financing through the California Statewide Communities Development

Authority These bonds were also issued at par and will pay coupon of 9% The proceeds of this bond offering

will provide debt financing for two of the three proposed renewable natural gas facilities in California being

developed by Microgy To date we have used approximately $1.3 million to fund costs of issuance These Texas
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and California obligations also have certain covenants related to performance objectives at the Huckabay Ridge

facility The obligations of Microgy Holdings under the Texas and California bond financings are non-recourse

to Environmental Power although Environmental Power is required to provide at least 20% of the construction

costs of these facilities as well as to cover any cost overruns in construction and to fund operations and

maintenance prior to achievement of completion

Microgy Grand Island LLC Debt Obligation In July 2008 Microgy Grand Island LLC our wholly

owned subsidiary closed $7000000 tax-exempt bond financing through the City of Grand Island Nebraska

These bonds were issued at par
and will pay coupon of 7% The proceeds of the bond offering will provide debt

financing for the renewable
gas facility under construction at Grand Island Nebraska These bonds carry certain

restrictions and covenants including reporting requirements and restrictions on the use of the funds To date we

have used $140000 to fund costs of issuance and $4.6 million of the proceeds to fund construction of our Grand

Island facility The obligations of Microgy Grand Island LLC under the Nebraska bond financing are non

recourse to Environmental Power although Environmental Power is required to provide at least 20% of the

construction cost of the facility as well as to cover any cost overruns in construction and to fund operations and

maintenance prior to achievement of completion

2009 Outlook

Operations

The following forward-looking information concerning our anticipated results of operations for the full year

2009 is being compared to our historical results of operations for 2008

We expect increased revenues during 2009 from increased sales of RNG produced by our Huckabay Ridge

facility in Texas due to an expected full year of operations and due to higher capacity factors than were

experienced in 2008 Our revenues related to the Dairyland sites are expected to be approximately consistent with

revenues from such facilities in 2008 Also we expect our Swift Grand Island facility to generate revenues when

it is placed in service later this year

At Huckabay Ridge recent outage has ended during which we completed comprehensive upgrades to

process-instrumentation and controls the gas conditioning system and the gas-collection system These upgrades

will bring the facility into conformity with the third-generation project design that we are utilizing on our next

round of facilities We also used the outage to complete repairs to two digester tanks that sustained damage due

to over pressurization The sources of over pressurization have been identified and were addressed in the current

upgrades With the completion of these upgrades we expect our Huckabay Ridge facility to be capable of

achieving an operating rate equal to its annualized production target of 635000 MMbtus per year Currently we

are in the process of bringing the Huckabay Ridge facility to full output levels which we expect to occur in

March 2009

We expect our operation and maintenance expenses at Huckabay Ridge to decrease during 2009 to reflect

the commercial operations of the Huckabay Ridge facility without the heightened operating and maintenance

costs which were included in 2008 During the first seven months of production these costs were higher than

normal due to start-up expenses and were subsequently heightened during the third and fourth quarters of 2008

due to the outage and related restart We expect the Dairyland sites operations and maintenance expenses to

remain approximately constant to 2008 levels Additionally we expect to start incurring operations and

maintenance expenses associated with the Swift Grand Island facility once it commences commercial operation

in 2009

In 2008 and early 2009 we instituted number of steps to reduce or eliminate certain general and

administrative costs and are currently examining other cost-saving measures General and administrative

expenses are expected to decline relative to 2008 We believe these measures will result in future reduced general

and administrative costs as the full annual impact of these measures take effect
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In addition to the Huckabay Ridge facility our other planned Texas and California projects are in various

stages
of development Our Cnossen and Rio Leche projects are in the engineering and early stages of

construction and initial site work has been completed We are currently seeking capital to fund our required

equity contributions for these projects to complement the equity we have invested to date We have commenced

construction on the biogas facility located at the JBS Swift Co beef processing plant in Grand Island

Nebraska In July 2008 we received $7000000 in tax--exempt bond financing less certain closing costs from the

City of Grand Island Nebraska for the project The funds are currently restricted for use on the project and held

by trustee to be disbursed to cover certain documented project expenses The terms of this financing are set

forth in greater detail in our Current Report on Form 8-K dated July 22 2008 as filed with the Securities and

Exchange Commission on July 25 2008

All requisite water and air permits required by the California Environmental Quality Act for the Riverdale

Hanford and Bar 20 projects in California have been approved We have closed on $62.425 million of tax-exempt

bond financing in California for the Riverdale and Hanford facilities and expect to pursue an additiohal $26.02

million of such financing for the Bar 20 facility though we do not yet have any binding commitments for such

additional financing The terms of our California financing are set forth in greater detail in our Current Report on

Form 8-K dated August 28 2008 as filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission on September 2008

Cash Flow Outlook

During early 2009 we expect to fund our business activities principally from available cash balinces

raising additional funds through debt andlor equity financings by Environmental Power Microgy or their

affiliates and project-specific financing to the extent available The requirement for additional financing will be

in direct proportion to the number of projects on which we begin construction as well as our construction

schedule In addition during 2009 we will need to meet significant interest and preferred dividend olligations as

well as fund general and operating expenses We will require significant additional capital over the next twelve

months in order to continue to fund our planned construction program on its current schedule

We have raised gross proceeds from the California tax-exempt bond issuance of $62425 million to date

and currently expect to seek additional tax-exempt bond financing in California of $26.02 million The proceeds

from these financings will be used to cover not only construction costs but also debt-service and other normal

reserves Terms of the bond financings require that we first invest equity in an amount equal to at least 20% of

the estimated costs of construction similar to the terms of the bond-financings for our Texas projects before

bond funds become available to us that Environmental Power or its subsidiaries raise at least $45.0 iillion in

additional capital prior to June 30 2009 of which at least $17.5 million is available to fund construction of the

California facilities with these amounts being proportionately reduced should the second closing of the

California bonds not occur and that the Huckabay Ridge facility meet certain gas production and financial

performance tests over continuous 60-day period prior to June 30 2009 We currently plan on pursuing the full

$45.0 million in additional capital prior to June 30 2009 in accordance with the draw conditions on the

California bonds

With the closing on the tax-exempt bond issue for the Microgy Grand Island project in July 2008 debt

financing of that project is complete We will however need to raise additional money to fund our required

equity contribution and complete the project

We will need to augment these cash resources by additional capital in the first half of 2009 to meet the draw

conditions on the California bonds described above as well as to fund ongoing general and administrative

expenses
associated with our corporate overhead and interest and dividend requirements

On December 31 2008 our unrestricted cash balance was $3158000 as compared to $26069000 as of

December 31 2007 In addition our current restricted cash balances were $104577000 and $45783000 at

December 31 2008 and December 2007 respectively The restricted cash represents the remaining proceeds
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of our $60 million tax-exempt bond financing in Texas proceeds from our $62.425 million tax exempt financing

in California and $7.0 million tax exempt financing in Nebraska For each of the three additional planned RNG
facilities in Texas we are able to spend up to $15000000 from restricted cash subject to certain restrictions and

provided that we have first funded at least 20% of the expected cost of each such facility

We believe that our current cash balance will be sufficient to fund our minimum lease and debt obligations

current contractual commitments and our corporate overhead requirements through early 2009 However we will

require substantial additional financing at both the project and parent company levels to complete the construction

of currently planned facilities as noted above including those already under construction as well as for ongoing

interest and dividend payments as well as general and administrative expenses We have engaged independent

financial advisors to assist us in exploring project financing opportunities On March 13 2009 we closed on sale

of $5.0 million original principal amount of our 14% convertible notes due January 2014 for net proceeds of

approximately $4.4 million We currently have no commitments for any additional financing and we cannot assure

you that such financing will be available on reasonable terms or in timely fashion or at all particularly in the

current economic environment in which capital raising activities are especially challenging Our inability to obtain

adequate financing would likely result in the need to curtail or cease our business operations

Item 7A Quantitative and Qualitative Disclosures About Market Risk

Our most significant risk exposure is changing interest rates which may affect our short term investments

generally and would also impact future debt financing costs The gas production of future projects to the extent

not subject to fixed price off take agreements or other hedging arrangements has the potential to expose us to

risk associated with fluctuating gas prices These risks are described in more detail below

Short-term investments

We invest cash balances that are in excess of our normal operating requirements in short term investments

generally with maturities of three months or less Because of the credit quality and short duration of these

investments we do believe our short-term investments are subject to normal market risks associated with high

quality low duration money market investments portion of our restricted cash balance is invested in highly

rated highly liquid government securities We believe that those instruments are not subject to material potential

near-term losses in future earnings from reasonably possible near-term changes in market rates or prices

Debt

We have financed and expect to continue to finance Microgy projects with debt financing including

tax-exempt financing to the extent available Any such debt financing will be subject to prevailing interest rates

Commodity Price Risk

As Microgy establishes multi-digester projects for the production of RNG we could become exposed to

market risk with respect to natural gas prices to the extent that this risk is not mitigated by long term off-take

agreements Historically natural gas prices have been volatile and we expect such volatility to continue

Fluctuations in the commodity price of natural gas may have materially adverse impact on the profitability of

some of our facilities particularly where we do not have long-term contract for the sale of the facilitys output

at fixed or predictable price At such time as Microgy facilities begin to produce commercial quantities of gas

for sale as commodity we intend to explore various strategies including hedging transactions and the like in

order to mitigate the associated commodity price risk In connection with our tax-exempt bond financings we are

required to maintain certain gas price protection arrangements for the gas output of our facilities

Substrate Costs

We rely on significant quantities of substrate materials that provide proteins fats and carbohydrates that

enhance the biological process in our digesters Notwithstanding any supply agreements we may have we are
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currently unable to forecast the costs associated with transporting substrate and are exposed to market risk

relating to availability of these materials Substrate availability is affected by industry supply and demand

including competition by other users and recyclers of these materials weather and many other factors

Fluctuations in the availability of substrate and the cost to transport it to our projects are expected and could have

materially adverse effect on the profitability of our facilities For example Microgy has recently experienced an

unfavorable shift in the availability of certain types of substrates as result of increases in corn and animal-feed

prices In the absence of substrate of sufficient quality at an affordable cost our anaerobic digester facilities

would operate less efficiently which would materially and adversely affect our overall profitability substantial

portion of the gas production of Microgys facilities is derived from the co-digestion contribution enabled by

substrate We are aggressively pursuing efforts to secure reliable substrate supplies on cost effective terms for

projects

Item Financial Statements and Supplementary Data

The consolidated financial statements the notes thereto and the reports thereon of Vitale Caturaio Co
P.C an independent registered public accounting firm required hereunder with respect to Environmetital Power

Corporation and its consolidated subsidiaries are included in this report on pages 54 through 82 and are

incorporated herein by reference

Item Changes in and Disagreements with Accountants on Accounting and Financial Disclosure

There have been no disagreements with our independent auditors on accounting and financial disclosure

matters

Item 9A Controls and Procedures

Our management with the participation of our chief executive officer and chief financial officer evaluated

the effectiveness of our disclosure controls and procedures as of December 31 2008 The term disclqsure

controls and procedures as defined in Rules 3a- 15e and Sd- 15e under the Exchange Act means controls

and other procedures of company that are designed to ensure that information required to be disclosed by the

company in the reports that it files or submits under the Exchange Act is recorded processed summarized and

reported within the time periods specified in the Securities and Exchange Commissions rules and forms

Disclosure controls and procedures include without limitation controls and procedures designed to ensure that

information required to be disclosed by company in the reports that it files or submits under the Exchange Act

is accumulated and communicated to the companys management including its principal executive and principal

financial officers as appropriate to allow timely decisions regarding required disclosure While our disclosure

controls and procedures are designed to provide reasonable assurance of achieving their objectives management

recognizes that any controls and procedures no matter how well designed and operated can provide only such

reasonable assurance of achieving their objectives and management necessarily applies its judgment ii

evaluating the cost-benefit relationship of possible controls and procedures Based on the evaluation of our

disclosure controls and procedures as of December 31 2008 our chief executive officer and chief financial

officer concluded that as of such date our disclosure controls and procedures were effective at the reasonable

assurance level

Report of Management on Internal Control over Financial Reporting and Attestation of Independent

Registered Public Accounting Firm

Managements report on our internal control over financial reporting as defined in Rules 13a-15f and

15d-l5f under the Exchange Act including description of material weaknesses in our internal control over

financial reporting as of December 31 2007 and the remedial measures we undertook to address those material

weaknesses and the independent registered public accounting firms related audit report are included below
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Remediation of Previously Reported Material Weaknesses

Changes in Internal Control Over Financial Reporting We previously reported three material weaknesses

in our internal control over financial reporting as defined in Rules 13a-15f and 15d-15f under the Exchange

Act which were described in Item 9A and Managements Report on Internal Control over Financial Reporting in

our Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31 2007 which we filed on March 17 2008

material weakness is significant deficiency as defined in Public Company Accounting Oversight Board

Auditing Standard No or combination of significant deficiencies that results in more than remote likelihood

that material misstatement of the annual or interim financial statements will not be detected

During the third quarter of the year ended December 31 2008 we reported on Form 10-Q significant

changes made to our internal control over financial reporting to address our previously reported material

weaknesses We concluded that our previously reported material weaknesses no longer constituted material

weaknesses as of September 30 2008 During the fourth quarter of 2008 management completed additional

testing to confirm this finding that our remedial measures had been effective and our previously reported material

weaknesses no longer constitute material weaknesses as of December 31 2008

discussion of the changes in status of our material weaknesses and the remediation steps taken is included

below Our reported material weaknesses no longer constituted material weaknesses as of December 31 2008

Inadequate financial statement preparation and review procedures

We significantly increased the number and expertise of experienced supervisory personnel within the

accounting and finance organization

We implemented procedures to improve documentation of review and approval process of monthly

results and related journal entries reconciliations and financial reporting

We enhanced our existing quarterly disclosure committee closing meetings to include formal financial

review process

We enhanced our existing policies and procedures relating to general ledger account reconciliations

including establishment of formal escalation method to notify senior financial management of

accounts that have unreconciled or unadjusted variances

We implemented formal policies and procedures to ensure that our accounting and analysis of complex

accounting areas are adequately supported and documented

We have implemented procedures for the timely preparation of memoranda to support all non-routine

transactions

We implemented process to obtain additional guidance on complicated accounting questions

We established more restrictive controls regarding the preparation and approval of journal entries

During the third quarter of 2008 and confirmed at December 31 2008 management concluded that the

remedial measures described above were sufficient such that we no longer had inadequacies in our financial

statement preparation and review procedures which would have constituted material weakness as of

December 31 2008

Ineffective and inadequate controls over the expenditure function

We improved our policies and procedures to ensure the reconciliation of receiving reports and vendor

invoices to ensure all purchases are in accordance with our policies and are recorded accurately and

timely in our records

We improved the documentation procedures related to the approval of expenditures
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We implemented purchase order system over certain expenditures

We improved the documentation of existing procedures

During the third quarter of 2008 and confirmed at December 31 2008 management concluded that the

remedial measures described above were sufficient such that we no longer had ineffective and inadequate

controls over the expenditure function which would have constituted material weakness as of December 31

2008

Inadequate controls over review of material contracts

We implemented procedure to improve the identification and communication of material contracts

We implemented policies and procedures for the controller to review all material contracts to determine

if all monetary aspects of contract comply with GAAP The review is evidenced in memorandum

documenting the review and indicating any issues found during the review The memorandum is signed

by the controller approved by the chief financial officer and included in the contract file

We established procedures to enable accounting personnel to have access to additional resources to

evaluate complex contract issues

During the third quarter of 2008 and confirmed at December 31 2008 management concluded that the

remedial measures described above were sufficient such that we no longer had ineffective and inadequate

controls over the review of material contracts function which would have constituted material weakness as of

December 31 2008

Managements Report on Internal Control over Financial Reporting as of December 31 2008

Our management is responsible for establishing and maintaining adequate internal control over fmancial

reporting for our company Internal control over financial reporting is defined in Rule 3a- 15f and

5d- 15f promulgated under the Exchange Act as process designed by or under the supervision of

companys principal executive and principal financial officers and effected by the companys board of directors

management and other personnel to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting

and the preparation of financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted

accounting principles and includes those policies and procedures that

pertain to the maintenance of records that in reasonable detail accurately and fairly reflect the

transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company

provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of

financial statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles and that receipts and

expenditures of the company are being made only in accordance with authorizations of management and

directors of the company and

provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorized acquisition use

or disposition of the companys assets that could have material effect on the financial statements

Because of its inherent limitations internal control over financial reporting may not prevent or detect

misstatements Projections of any evaluation of effectiveness to future periods are subject to the risk that controls

may become inadequate because of changes in conditions or that the degree of compliance with the policies or

procedures may deteriorate

In connection with the preparation and filing of our Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended

December 31 2008 management including our chief executive officer and chief financial officer reviewed its

assessment of the effectiveness of our internal controls over financial reporting as of December 31 2007 the
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material weaknesses then identified and the remedial measures implemented as described above In connection

with this review we determined that the previously identified material weaknesses in internal control over

financial reporting as of December 31 2007 had been remediated and no longer constituted material weaknesses

at December 31 2008 In making this assessment our management used the criteria set forth by the Committee

of Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway Commission in Internal Control-Integrated Framework

In connection with managements assessment of the effectiveness of internal control over financial reporting

in connection with the preparation and filing of our Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended

December 31 2008 management including our chief executive officer and chief financial officer concluded

that our internal control over financial reporting was effective at the reasonable assurance level as of

December 31 2008

Vitale Caturano Co P.C our independent registered public accounting firm has issued report on the

effectiveness of our internal control over financial reporting This report is included in its report on our financial

statements appearing on page 55 of this Annual Report

Item 9B Other Information

Not applicable
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PART Ill

Item 10 Directors and Executive Officers and Corporate Governance

Directors and Executive Officers

Information regarding our directors may be found under the caption Election of Directors in the Proxy

Statement for our 2009 Annual Meeting of Stockholders Information regarding our executive officers may be

found under the caption Executive Officers of the Registrant appearing at the end of Part of this annual report

on Form 10-K Such information is incorporated herein by reference

Audit Committee

We have separately designated standing Audit Committee established in accordance with

Section 3a58A of the Exchange Act Additional information regarding the Audit Committee may be found

under the captions Corporate GovernanceBoard CommitteesAudit Committee and Corporate

GovernanceReport of the Audit Committee in the Proxy Statement for our 2009 Annual Meeting of

Stockholders Such information is incorporated herein by reference

Audit Committee Financial Expert

The Board of Directors has designated John Cooper as the Audit Committee Financial Expert as

defined by Item 40 1h of Regulation S-K of the Exchange Act and determined that he is independent within the

meaning of Item 7d3iv of Schedule 14A of the Exchange Act

Director Nominees

Information regarding procedures for recommending nominees to the Board of Directors may be found

under the caption Corporate GovernanceDirector Candidates in the Proxy Statement for our 2009 Annual

Meeting of Stockholders Such information is incorporated herein by reference

Section 16a Beneficial Ownership Reporting Compliance

Information regarding Section 16a Beneficial Ownership Reporting Compliance may be found under the

caption Stock Ownership InformationSection 16a Beneficial Ownership Reporting Compliance in the

Proxy Statement for our 2009 Annual Meeting of Stockholders Such information is incorporated herein by

reference

Code of Ethics

We have adopted code of business conduct and ethics that applies to our directors officers including our

principal executive officer principal financial officer principal accounting officer or controller or persons

performing similar functions as well as our employees copy of our code of business conduct and ethics is

available on our website at www.environmentalpower.com under Investor RelationsCorporate Governance

We intend to post on our website all disclosures that are required by applicable law the rules of the Securities

and Exchange Commission or Amex listing standards concerning any amendment to or waiver from our code of

business conduct and ethics

Item 11 Executive Compensation

Information with respect to this item may be found under the caption Information about Executive and

Director Compensation in the Proxy Statement for our 2009 Annual Meeting of Stockholders Such information

is incorporated herein by reference

52



Item 12 Security Ownership of Certain Beneficial Owners and Management and Related Stockholder

Matters

Information with respect to this item may be found under the caption Stock Ownership Information and

Securities Authorized for Issuance under Equity Compensation Plans in the Proxy Statement for our 2009

Annual Meeting of Stockholders Such information is incorporated herein by reference

Item 13 Certain Relationships and Related Transactions

Information with respect to this item may be found under the caption Corporate GovernanceCertain

Relationships and Related Transactions in the Proxy Statement for our 2009 Annual Meeting of Stockholders

Such information is incorporated herein by reference

Item 14 Principal Accountant Fees and Services

Information with respect to this item may be found under the caption Corporate GovernanceRegistered

Public Accounting Firms Fees in the Proxy Statement for our 2009 Annual Meeting of Stockholders Such

information is incorporated herein by reference
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PART IV

Item 15 Exhibits and Financial Statement Schedules

a1 Financial Statements

Page

Index to Financial Statements

Report of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm 55

Consolidated Balance Sheets 57

Consolidated Statements of Operations 58

Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows 59

Consolidated Statements of Shareholders Equity 60

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements 61

a2 List of Exhibits

The list of Exhibits filed as part of this annual report on Form 10-K are set forth on the Exhibit Index

appearing immediately following the signatures to this report and is incorporated herein by this reference
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Report of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm

To the Board of Directors and Stockholders of

Environmental Power Corporation

We have audited the accompanying consolidated balance sheets of Environmental Power Corporation and

subsidiaries the Company as of December 31 2008 and 2007 and the related consolidated statements of

operations cash flows and changes in shareholders equity deficit for each of the years ended December 31

2008 2007 and 2006 We also have audited Environmental Power Corporation and subsidiaries internal control

over financial reporting as of December 31 2008 based on criteria established in Internal ControlIntegrated

Framework issued by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway Commission COSO The

Companys management is responsible for these financial statements for maintaining effective internal control

over financial reporting and for its assessment of the effectiveness of internal control over financial reporting

included in the accompanying Managements Report on Internal Control over Financial Reporting Our

responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements and an opinion on the companys internal

control over financial reporting based on our audits

We conducted our audits in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight

Board United States Those standards require that we plan and perform the audits to obtain reasonable

assurance about whether the financial statements are free of material misstatement and whether effective internal

control over financial reporting was maintained in all material respects Our audits of the financial statements

included examining on test basis evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements

assessing the accounting principles used and significant estimates made by management and evaluating the

overall financial statement presentation Our audit of internal control over financial reporting included obtaining

an understanding of internal control over financial reporting assessing the risk that material weakness exists

and testing and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of internal control based on the assessed risk

Our audits also included performing such other procedures as we considered necessary
in the circumstances We

believe that our audits provide reasonable basis for our opinions

companys internal control over financial reporting is process designed to provide reasonable assurance

regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for external purposes in

accordance with generally accepted accounting principles companys internal control over financial reporting

includes those policies and procedures that pertain to the maintenance of records that in reasonable detail

accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company provide reasonable

assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of financial statements in accordance

with generally accepted accounting principles and that receipts and expenditures of the company are being made

only in accordance with authorizations of management and directors of the company and provide reasonable

assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorized acquisition use or disposition of the

companys assets that could have material effect on the financial statements

Because of its inherent limitations internal control over financial reporting may not prevent or detect

misstatements Also projections of any evaluation of effectiveness to future periods are subject to the risk that

controls may become inadequate because of changes in conditions or that the degree of compliance with the

policies or procedures may deteriorate

In our opinion the consolidated financial statements referred to above present fairly in all material respects

the consolidated financial position of Environmental Power Corporation and subsidiaries as of December 31

2008 and 2007 and the consolidated results of its operations and its cash flows for each of the years in the three

year period ended December 31 2008 in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United

States of America Also in our opinion Environmental Power Corporation and subsidiaries maintained in all

material respects effective internal control over financial reporting as of December 31 2008 based on criteria

established in Internal ControlIntegrated Framework issued by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of

the Treadway Commission COSO
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The accompanying financial statements have been prepared assuming that the Company will continue as

going concern As discussed in Note to the consolidated financial statements the Companys recurring losses

from operations its need to raise substantial additional capital and its current cash balance relative toobligations

contractual commitments and corporate overhead requirements raise substantial doubt about its ability to

continue as going concern Managements plans concerning these matters are also discussed in Note to the

consolidated financial statements The consolidated financial statements do not include any adjustments that

might result from the outcome of this uncertainty

Is Vitale Caturano Co P.C

Boston Massachusetts

March 16 2009
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Environmental Power Corporation and Subsidiaries

Consolidated Balance Sheets

December 31 2008 December 31 2007

ASSETS
Current Assets

Cash and cash equivalents 3157938 26069198

Restricted cash 104577246 45784702

Receivables 373039 741730

Other current assets 60210 130194

Current assets of discontinued operations 18588080

Total Current Assets 108168433 91313904

Restricted cash non current 553014 489477

Property plant and equipment net 23932073 261171

Construction in progress 20101314 27640619

Goodwill 4912866
Licensed technology rights net 2329296 2514796

Notes receivable net 1608500 1841740

Deferred financing costs net 5122995 2564882

Other assets 197569 97603

Long term assets of discontinued operations 68334073

TOTAL ASSETS $162013194 $199971131

LIABILITIES AND SHAREHOLDERS EQUITY
Current Liabilities

Accounts payable and accrued expenses 4322896 2517468

Current liabilities of discontinued operations 21391138

Total Current Liabilities 4322896 23908606

Other liabilities 340706 204484

Long term debt 129475023 60453983

Long term liabilities of discontinued operations 72132497

Total Liabilities 134138625 156699570

Minority Interests 100 100

Preferred stock 10156021 10156021

Shareholders Equity

Preferred stock 100 100

Common stock 157030 156677

Additional paid-in capital 89986923 88036289

Accumulated deficit 71401984 54054005
Treasury stock 385402 385402
Notes receivable from officers and board members 638219 638219

Total Common Shareholders Equity 17718348 33115340

TOTAL LIABILITIES AND SHAREHOLDERS EQUITY $162013194 $199971131

Preferred stock $01 par value 2000000 shares authorized 281241 shares issued as of December 31 2008 and

December 31 2007 Stated value at December 31 2008 and 2007 $52.71 per share or $14824213

Preferred stock of subsidiary no par value 10 shares authorized 10 shares issued as of December 31 2008 and

December 31 2007 respectively

$01 par value 50000000 shares authorized 15703034 issued and 15614604 outstanding as of December 31

2008 50000000 shares authorized 15667784 issued and 15579354 outstanding as of December 31 2007

88430 shares at cost as of December 31 2008 and December 31 2007

See Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
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Environmental Power Corporation and Subsidkiries

Consolidated Statements of Operations

12 Months Ended

REVENUES

COSTS AND EXPENSES

Operations and maintenance

Impairment of goodwill

General and administrative

Depreciation and amortization

TOTAL COSTS AND EXPENSES

OPERATING LOSS

OTHER INCOME EXPENSE
Interest income

Interest expense

Other income expense

TOTAL OTHER INCOME EXPENSE
LOSS BEFORE INCOME TAXES

INCOME TAX EXPENSE
________ ________

NET LOSS FROM CONTINUING OPERATIONS

LOSS FROM DISCONTINUED OPERATIONS NET OF

TAXES OF $0

GAIN ON DISPOSAL OF DISCONTINUED OPERATIONS

NET OF TAXES OF $0
_________ _________

NET LOSS

Preferred Securities Dividend Requirements

Beneficial Conversion Feature of Preferred Stock

Change in Value of Modified Warrants

LOSS APPLICABLE TO COMMON SHAREHOLDERS
________ ________

Weighted Average Common Shares Outstanding

Basic Diluted

Loss Per Common Share from Continuing Operations

Basic Diluted

Income Loss Per Common Share from Discontinued Operations

Basic Diluted

Net Loss Per Common Share

Basic Diluted

See Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

December 31 December 31 December 31
2008 2007 2006

2905038 1174947 2216216

7118033 941991 2099420

4912866

12003092 12443605 11228982

1359097 304331 298774

25393088 13689927 13627176

22488050 125 14.980 1410960

486986 782566 447854

968684 11599 8919
583616 300

481698 1354583 439235

22969748 11160397 10971725

26284 900 427127

22996032 11161297 11398852

1010534 6195852 2716405

14115257

197715

57148 4131022

18443994

15579354 11338973 9634824

1.56 1.12 1.63

0.45 0.54 0.28

1.11 1.66 1.91

7999858

16006708

1326271

17357149

1348343

17332979

97404

18860044
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Environmental Power Coiporation and Subsidiaries

Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows

12 Months Ended

December 31 December 31 December 31
2008 2007 2006

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES

Net loss $16006708 517357149 $141 15257
Non-cash adjustments

Gain on sale of discontinued operations 7999858
Impairment of goodwill 4912866

Depreciation and amortization 1364293 468923 492149

Amortization of deferred gain 51402 308411 308411
Amortization of deferred financing costs 22236 7413

Accrued interest expense 143307 603412 493489

Write-off of Sunnyside liability 583030
Non-cash stock based compensation expense 1950987 2798032 2036108
Accrued power generation revenues 66198164 7133903 4246201
Accrued lease expenses 66198164 7133903 4246201

Changes in operating assets and liabilities

Decrease increase in receivables 15782767 2948334 3342173
Decrease in fuel inventory 826370 362953 128259

Increase in unbilled revenues 58448

Decrease increase in other assets 201824 10080 931315

Decrease in notes receivable 233240 75964 443296

Decrease in
billings

in excess of revenues 457719
Decrease increase in accounts payable accrued expenses 14623775 8846119 3057424
Decrease in other assets 143675 121903 616843

Net cash used in operating activities 13100178 7929698 9958816

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES

Deferred financing costs 2580349
Increase decrease in restricted cash 56640766 6995926 53174880
Construction of projects 16906429 12388225 13245113
Purchase of property plant and equipment 376529 559576 176531

Net cash used for investing activities 76504073 5951875 66596524

CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Dividend payments on preferred stock 1326271 871058 5000
Payment of dividend on behalf of subsidiary 15000
Proceeds from disposition of discontinued operations 375000

Sale of preferred and common stock 26642914 14049989

Net proceeds from bond financings 69371040 56531217
Net borrowing repayments of secured notes 260960 110385

Repayments of capital lease obligations 38532
Increase in other liabilities 136222

Exercise of stock options 2951784 707142

Net borrowings repayments under working capital loan 1848000 2306000 4154000

Net cash provided by financing activities 66692991 26156680 75509201
INCREASE DECREASE IN CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS 22911260 12275107 1046139
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS BEGINNING OF PERIOD 26069198 13794091 14840230
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS END OF PERIOD 3157938 26069198 $13794091

Supplemental disclosure of cash flow information

Cash Paid During the Year For

Interest 5751591 261824

Income Taxes 38000

Supplemental disclosure of non cash investing and financing activity
Beneficial

conversion feature in connection with sale of preferred stock 57148 4131022
Non-cash dividend to Series Preferred Stock Holders 667090 667890 192715
Warrant Capitalized in Construction in progress 907289
Change in Value of Modified Warrants 97404

See Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

59



E
n
v
ir
o
n
m

e
n
ta

l
P

o
w

e
r

C
o
rp

o
ra

ti
o
n

a
n
d

S
u
b
s
id

ia
ri
e
s

C
o
n
s
o
li
d
a
te

d
S

ta
te

m
e
n
ts

o
f

S
h
a
re

h
o
ld

e
rs

E
q
u
it
y

C
o

m
m

o
n

C
o
m

m
o
n

S
to

c
k

S
to

c
k
-

S
h
a
re

s
A

m
o
u
n
t

9
6

3
3
3
4
8

9
6
3
3
3

A
d
d
it
io

n
a
l

P
a
id

-
in

C
a
p
it
a
l

$
4
1
4
5
4
8
3
7

A
c
c
u
m

D
e
fi
c
it

$
1
6
7
4
9
9
6
7

1
9
7
7
1
5

A
c
c
u
m

O
th

e
r

T
re

a
s
u
ry

C
o
m

p
S

to
c
k

L
o
s
s

S
h
a
re

s

$
4
9
9
3
9
5

8
8
4
3
0

2
0
5
3

1
0
5
0
5
4

T
re

a
s
u

ry
S

to
c
k
-

A
m

o
u

n
t

$
3

8
5

4
0

2

2
1

2
0
3
6
0
8
7

1
0
5
0

7
0
6
0
9
1

3
8
9
3
9
6
8

2
4
1
8
9
8
5

4
1
3
1
0
2
2

4
1
3
1
0
2
2

1
4
1
1
5
2
5
7

$
3
5
1
9
3
9
6
1

1
.3

4
8
.3

4
3

B
a
la

n
c
e

a
t

J
a
n
u
a
ry

2
0
0
6

D
iv

id
e
n
d
s

o
n

p
re

fe
rr

e
d

s
to

c
k

S
to

c
k

b
a
s
e
d

c
o
m

p
e
n
s
a
ti
o
n

e
x
p
e
n
s
e

E
x
e
rc

is
e

o
f

s
to

c
k

o
p
ti
o
n
s

S
a
le

o
f

p
re

fe
rr

e
d

s
to

c
k

R
e
c
la

s
s

o
f

d
e
fe

rr
e
d

o
p
ti
o
n

e
x
p
e
n
s
e

B
e
n
e
fi
c
ia

l
c
o
n
v
e
rs

io
n

fe
a
tu

re
o
f

p
re

fe
rr

e
d

s
to

c
k

P
e
n
s
io

n
li
a
b
il
it
y

a
d
ju

s
tm

e
n
t

n
e
t

N
e
t

lo
s
s

B
a
la

n
c
e

a
t

D
e
c
e
m

b
e
r

3
1

2
0
0
6

D
iv

id
e
n
d
s

o
n

p
re

fe
rr

e
d

s
to

c
k

S
to

c
k

b
a
s
e
d

c
o
m

p
e
n
s
a
ti
o
n

e
x
p
e
n
s
e

E
x
e
rc

is
e

o
f

s
to

c
k

o
p
ti
o
n
s

S
a
le

o
f

c
o
m

m
o
n

s
to

c
k

B
e
n
e
fi
c
ia

l
c
o
n
v
e
rs

io
n

fe
a
tu

re
o
f

p
re

fe
rr

e
d

s
to

c
k

M
o
d
if
ic

a
ti
o
n

o
f

W
a
rr

a
n
ts

N
e
t

lo
s
s

B
a
la

n
c
e

a
t

D
e
c
e
m

b
e
r

3
1

2
0
0
7

D
iv

id
e
n
d
s

o
n

p
re

fe
rr

e
d

s
to

c
k

D
iv

id
e
n
d

p
a
id

o
n

b
e
h
a
lf

o
f

s
u
b
s
id

ia
ry

S
to

c
k

b
a
s
e
d

c
o
m

p
e
n
s
a
ti
o
n

e
x
p
e
n
s
e

Is
s
u
a
n
c
e

o
f

r
e
s
tr

ic
te

d
s
to

c
k

N
e
t

lo
s
s

B
a
la

n
c
e

a
t

D
e
c
e
m

b
e
r

3
1

2
0
0
8

9
7
4
0
4
5
5

9
7
4
0
4

$
5
4
6
4
0
9
9
0

3
7
0
5
3
2
2

5
2
7
3
2
9

5
2
7
3

2
9
4
6
5
1
2

5
4
0
0
0
0
0

5
4
0
0
0

2
6
5
8
8
9
1
3

1
5
6

6
7
7
8
4

$
1
5
6
6
7
7

$
8
8
0
3
6
2
8
9

R
e

c
e

iv
a

b
le

D
e
fe

rr
e
d

O
ff
ic

e
r
s

C
o

m
p

e
n

s
a

ti
o

n
D

ir
e
c
to

rs
T

o
ta

l

2
4

1
8

9
8

5
$

6
3

8
2

1
9

2
5

6
9

7
1

7
2

1
9

7
7

1
5

2
0

3
6

1
0

8

7
0

7
1

4
1

3
8

9
3

9
6

8

2
4

1
8

9
8

5

4
9

9
3

9
5

1
4

1
1

5
2

5
7

$
6

3
8

2
1

9
1

8
5

2
0

8
1

2

1
3

4
8

3
4

3

3
7

0
5

3
2

2

2
9

5
1

7
8

5

2
6

6
4

2
9

1
3

1
7

3
5

7
1

4
9

$
6

3
8

2
1

9
3

3
1

1
5

3
4

0

1
3

2
6

2
7

1

1
5

0
0

0

1
9

5
0

9
8

7

1
6

0
0

6
7

0
8

$
6

3
8

2
1

9
1

7
7

1
8

3
4

8

5
7
1
4
8

5
7
1
4
8

9
7
.4

0
4

9
7
.4

0
4

1
7
3
5
7
1
4
9

$
5
4
0
5
4
0
0
5

1
3
2
6
2
7
1

4
9
9
3
9
5

8
8
4
3
0

$
3

8
5

4
0

2

8
8
4
3
0

$
3

8
5

4
0

2

8
8
4
3
0

$
3

8
5

4
0

2

1
9
5
0
9
8
7

3
5
2
5
0

3
5
3

3
5
3

1
5
7
0
3
0
3
4

$
1
5
7
0
3
0

$
8
9
9
8
6
9
2
3

1
5
0
0
0

1
6
0
0
6
7
0
8

$
7
1
4
0
1
9
8
4

S
e
e

N
o
te

s
to

C
o
n
s
o
li
d
a
te

d
F

in
a
n
c
ia

l
S

ta
te

m
e
n
ts



ENVIRONMENTAL POWER CORPORATION AND SUBSIDIARIES

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

NOTE AGOING CONCERN

The companys consolidated financial statements have been prepared on going concern basis which

contemplates continuity of operations realization of assets and satisfaction of liabilities in the ordinary course of

business As predominately development oriented company we have experienced substantial losses since the

year ended December 31 2002 For the year ended December 31 2008 we incurred net loss applicable to

common shareholders of $17332979 and used cash of $13100178 in operating activities We anticipate

incurring losses at least through 2010 as we continue the construction of our portfolio of announced projects

which we anticipate completing at varying times in 2010 subject to the availability of funding and the

operational ramp up of our Huckabay Ridge facility and completion of construction and then operation of our

Swift Grand Island facility during 2009 As of December 31 2008 we had an accumulated deficit of

$71401984 and our unrestricted cash and cash equivalents amounted to $3157938 Currently our facility at

Huckabay Ridge Texas which is being ramped up to full production will not generate positive cash flow until

the ramp up is complete and steady state conditions are achieved In any event the cash we project to be

generated from Huckabay Ridge by itself will be insufficient to meet our short-term and long-term corporate

and project-related capital requirements

In the past we have been able to obtain outside financing to fund our losses and meet our capital

requirements with the anticipation that once our portfolio of projects are complete and operational they would

contribute to future liquidity needs While we have implemented steps to reduce our general and administrative

expenses we will need to raise substantial funds during the first half of 2009 in order to fund ongoing general

and administrative expenses as well as interest and dividend requirements We are currently actively seeking

additional sources of capital to meet these financing needs To that end on March 13 2008 we closed on sale

of $5.0 million original principal amount of our 14% convertible notes due January 2014 for net proceeds of

approximately $4.4 million and we continue to work with our independent financial advisors to identify and

explore various opportunities to raise the capital we require However we cannot assure you that we will be able

to raise sufficient capital on acceptable terms or at all The level of funds we are able to raise if any will

determine the level of development and construction activity that we can pursue and whether we will be able to

continue as going concern

The accompanying consolidated financial statements have been prepared assuming that we will continue as

going concern The uncertainties described in the preceding paragraph raise substantial doubt at December 31

2008 about our ability to continue as going concern without additional financing The accompanying

consolidated financial statements do not include any adjustments relating to the recoverability and classification

of the carrying amount of recorded assets or to the amount and classification of liabilities that might result should

we be unable to continue as going concern

NOTE BBUSINESS AND ORGANIZATION

We are developer owner and operator of renewable energy production facilities Our goal is to produce

Energy that is Beyond Renewable which we define as energy that not only uses waste materials instead of

limited resources but that also is clean reliable and cost-effective We own and operate the Huckabay Ridge

facility in Stephenville Texas large-scale multi-digester facility for the production of pipeline-grade natural

gas which began commercial operation in the first quarter of 2008 and have several similar facilities in varying

stages of development We also operate three digester facilities in Wisconsin utilizing the same technology that is

employed at Huckabay Ridge

In the past we have operated in two major segments through Microgy Inc as developer of renewable

energy facilities for the production and commercial application of methane-rich biogas from agricultural and
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ENVIRONMENTAL POWER CORPORATION AND SUBSIDIARIES

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FIN NCIAL STATEMENTSContinued

food industry wastes and through EPC Corporation and its subsidiary Buzzard Power Corporation as holder of

leasehold interest in waste-coal fired generating facility in Pennsylvania known as the Scrubgrass facility On

May 31 2007 our board of directors authorized management to enter into negotiations regarding the disposition

of the leasehold interest in the Scrubgrass facility On February 29 2008 we completed the disposition of the

leasehold interest As result for financial reporting purposes we are now reporting the results of Bl4zzard as

discontinued operations We thus now operate only in Microgys segment

Microgy Holdings LLC was formed in 2006 as subsidiary of Environmental Power Corporation in

connection with the $60 million tax-exempt debt financing we completed in November 2006 relating to the

construction and operation of four RNG facilities in Texas The assets financed by the debt
financing

are

pledged as collateral to the Gulf Coast Industrial Development Authority of Texas the lender The obligations of

Microgy Holdings related to this financing are non recourse to Environmental Power although Environmental

Power is required to provide at least 20% of the construction costs of these facilities as well as to cover any cost

overruns in construction and operations and maintenance expenses prior to completion of construction Microgy

Holdings is also the obligor on $62.425 million in tax-exempt debt financing from the California Statewide

Communities Development Authority we completed in September 2008 on terms similar to those of the Texas

financing Microgy Grand Island LLC is the obligor on $7.0 million in tax-exempt debt financing from the City

of Grand Island Nebraska relating to the construction of our facility at the flagship beef processing plant of JBS

Swift Company located in Grand Island The obligations of Microgy Grand Island related to this financing are

non recourse to Environmental Power although Environmental Power is required to provide at least 0% of the

construction costs of these facilities as well as to cover any cost overruns in construction and operations and

maintenance expenses prior to completion of construction

Discontinued Operations

In May 2007 our board of directors authorized management to pursue negotiations for the dispsition of

Buzzard Power Corporations leasehold interest in the Scrubgrass facility referred to as Scrubgrass J3uzzard is

subsidiary of our wholly owned subsidiary EPC Corporation Scrubgrass located on 600-acre site in Venango

County Pennsylvania is an approximate 83 megawatt waste coal-fired electric generating station We decided to

seek the disposition of Buzzards leasehold interest in the Scrubgrass facility to allow management to focus its

attention and resources on the development and growth of Microgy On February 29 2008 we completed all

transactions necessary to terminate the leasehold interest held by Buzzard in the Scrubgrass generatiig facility

and the related financial obligations of Buzzards immediate parent company EPC Corporation We recorded net

income from discontinued operations in 2008 of $6989000 reflecting loss from operations for the months of

January and February 2008 of $1011000 and one-time gain from disposal of $8000000 The gain of

approximately $8000000 with the exception of cash payment of $375000 was non-cash in nature The

components of the gain included $3456000 in forgiveness of indebtedness $2570000 for the
recognition

of

previously deferred gain and $1630000 for the relief of net obligations of Buzzard The disposition ivas

recorded net of tax obligation of $0 because it is anticipated that existing net operating loss carryforwards will

offset any federal or state tax liabilities

The assets and liabilities of Buzzard have been accounted for as discontinued operations for sale for all

periods presented in accordance with the criterion established in Statement of Financial Accounting Standard

SFAS No 144 Accounting for Impairment or Disposal ofLong-Lived Assets We do not have continuing

involvement with the Buzzard business since the closing of the disposition of the leasehold interest in the

Scrubgrass facility and do not continue any revenue or active cost-generating activities related to Buzzard In

accordance with SFAS No 144 the accompanying consolidated balance sheets report the assets and liabilities of

Buzzard as discontinued and the consolidated statements of operations report the operations of Buzzard as
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discontinued operations Buzzard had revenues of $9556000 for the two months ended February 29 2008

Buzzard had revenues of $51633000 and $51662000 for the years ended December 31 2007 and

December 31 2006 respectively

NOTE CSIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Principles of Consolidation The consolidated financial statements include the accounts of Environmental

Power Corporation and its wholly owned subsidiaries all significant inter-company accounts and transactions

have been eliminated in consolidation

Use of Estimates The preparation of financial statements in conformity with accounting principles

generally accepted in the United States of America requires management to make estimates and assumptions that

effect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities at the date of the financial statements the reported amounts of

revenues and
expenses during the reporting period and the disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at the

date of the financial statements Actual results could differ from those estimates

Revenue Recognition We record revenues for operation and maintenance of the facilities at the Dairyland

Power Cooperative sites which
appear as revenues on our statements of operations Operations and maintenance

revenues and natural gas revenues are recorded as services are provided or gas
is delivered and billed on

monthly basis

Revenue from the sale of carbon sequestration credits is only recognized after the carbon credits have been

authenticated by an independent third party registered on the Chicago Climate Exchange and invoiced to the

customer

Twelve Month Ended

December 31 December 31
Revenues 2008 12/31/2007 2006

Dairyland sites $1182246 $1174947 $2216216

Huckabay Ridge Texas 1722792

Total revenues $2905038 $1174947 $2216216

Method of Accounting for Contracts Revenues and profits from our construction contracts with Dairyland

Power Cooperative referred to as Dairyland which appear as revenues on our 2006 statement of operations are

generally recognized by applying percentages of completion for the period to the total estimated profits for the

respective contracts Percentage of completion is determined by relating the actual cost of the work performed to

date to the current estimated total cost of the respective contracts When the estimate on contract indicates

loss our policy is to record the entire loss during the accounting period in which it is estimated In the ordinary

course of business at minimum on quarterly basis we prepared updated estimates of the total forecasted

revenue cost and profit or loss for each contract The cumulative effect of revisions in estimates of the total

forecasted revenue and costs during the course of the work is reflected in the accounting period in which the facts

that caused the revision become known The financial impact of these revisions to any one contract is function

of both the amount of the revision and the percentage of completion of the contract An amount equal to the costs

incurred is included in the total estimated revenue when realization is probable Profit from unapproved change

orders and claims is recorded in the period such amounts are resolved

Cash Equivalents We consider all highly liquid investments with maturities of three months or less when

purchased to be cash equivalents
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Concentrations of Credit Risk Our financial instruments that are exposed to concentrations of credit risk

consist primarily of cash equivalents restricted cash and revenues Our cash equivalents represent short-term

financial instruments which are issued from reputable financial institutions Most of our cash balancesmay be

subject to investment risk because some of the account balances exceed the maximum FDIC insurance amount

All of our renewable natural gas revenues and substantial portion of our operation and maintenance revenues

are from two unrelated customers We have not encountered and do not expect to encounter any collection

problems with these customers The accounts receivable from outside customers at December 31 2008 of

$240000 has been collected Based on our history and the arrangements we have with our two major customers

we do not believe we have substantial exposure to uncollectibility of accounts receivable from these customers

Impairment of Long- Lived Assets In accordance with SFAS No 144 Accounting for the impairment or

Disposal of Long Lived Assets the Company evaluates long-lived assets such as property and equipment and

purchased intangible assets with finite lives subject to amortization for impairment whenever events changes

in circumstances indicate that the carrying value of an asset may not be fully recoverable or that the ueful lives

of those assets are no longer appropriate Each impairment test is based on comparison of the carryiflg amount

of an asset to estimated undiscounted future cash flows expected to be generated by the asset If the carrying

amount of an asset exceeds its estimated undiscounted future cash flows an impairment charge is recqgnized by

the amount by which the carrying amount of the asset exceeds the fair value of the asset There were np such

impairment charges recorded during the years ended December 31 2008 2007 and 2006

Restricted Cash Restricted cash includes primarily the net proceeds from Microgy Holdings L.F

tax-exempt bond financings totaling approximately $104577000 as of December 31 2008 The use of these

funds is restricted to the construction and start-up operations of our three remaining planned Texas prc$jects

Mission Rio Leche and Cnossen two of our California projects Hanford and Riverdale and our Grand Island

Nebraska project Pursuant to agreements requisition and/or certification by Microgy Holdings or Microgy Grand

Island LLC and the related approval by an independent engineer and trustee is required to withdraw the funds

Notes Receivable We have completed construction of the digesters at Five Star Dairy Wild Rose Dairy and

Norswiss Dairy collectively referred to as the Dairyland sites Each digester has begun operations Th sales

price for each digester was $1.0 million We will be paid from the cash flow from the sale of gas generated under

the applicable biogas supply agreement between the digester owner and Dairyland which extends thrdugh 11

years
after the sale for the facility to which it relates We will be paid up to maximum of $3.1 millioi plus

interest at 5% per annum which is evidenced by three notes of $1.0 million each In 2008 we applied 50% of the

proceeds from the sale of carbon sequestration credits at these facilities to these notes or $219000 Therefore

after giving effect to the $750000 bad debt allowance relating to these notes established in 2005 as of

December 31 2008 the notes have an aggregate remaining balance of $1.6 million which we expect to collect in

its entirety We will continue to evaluate the estimated operating cash flows from these digesters that support the

ability to realize these notes and make further adjustments if required

Property Plant and Equipment Property plant and equipment are stated at cost less accumulated

depreciation We capitalize significant renewals and betterments that increase the useful lives of assets while

repairs and maintenance charges are expensed when incurred The cost and accumulated depreciation for

property plant and equipment disposals are removed from the balance sheet and any resulting gains or losses are

reported in the statement of operations at the time of the asset disposition We depreciate property plant and

equipment using the straight-line method over the estiniated useful lives of the assets We record depreciation for

office equipment and furniture using the straight-line method over periods ranging from three to five years for

machinery and equipment on straight line basis over penods ranging from fifteen to thirty years and for

leasehold improvements using the straight-line method over the lesser of the useful life of the asset or the lease

We evaluate the impairment of long-lived assets based on the projection of undiscounted cash flows whenever
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events or changes in circumstances indicated that the carrying amounts of such assets may not be recoverable In

the event such cash flows are not expected to be sufficient to recover the recorded value of the assets the assets

are written down to their estimated fair values We do not believe any of our property plant or equipment is

impaired at December 31 2008

Construction in Progress Construction in progress
is stated at cost Any internal costs that are capitalized

are limited to those costs that can be directly identified with the design engineering or construction of specific

project and do not include any costs related to production general corporate overhead or similaractivities

In accordance with the provisions of SFAS 62 Capitalization of interest Cost in Situations involving

Certain Tax-Exempt Borrowing and Certain Gifts and Grants an amendment of SFAS 34 Capitalization of

Interest Costs we capitalize the net of interest expense
and amortization costs related to the bond financing less

any
interest income associated with the unspent monies from the debt financing to the project which is being

financed by the offering In 2008 we capitalized $3.7 million in interest comprised of $5.2 million in interest

expense
related to the California Nebraska and Texas bonds offset by $1.5 million in interest income related to

interest earned on unspent monies For the year ended December 31 2007 we capitalized $2.1 million in interest

and for the year
ended December 31 2006 we capitalized $265000 of interest

In May 2007 we issued 175912 warrants representing 1% of our fully diluted common stock at the time to

Cargill as required by the business development agreement These warrants were valued using the Black-Scholes

method and determined to have value of $907288 We have capitalized this development cost and this amount

is currently held in our construction in progress account

In May 2000 Microgy entered into licensing agreement with DBT that granted Microgy perpetual and

exclusive license in North America for the commercial development and use of certain proprietary technologies

including Microgy core anaerobic digestion technology This license agreement was amended in April 2003

and March 2005 to further define certain support obligations of DBT and to amend the structure of the

compensation payable to DBT for use of the license According to the license as amended DBT will receive

fixed payments for its participation in the design phase of each project including engineering work and

construction drawings and licensing fee included in the cost of the facility that is based on percentage of the

total cost for each project facility where the licensed technology is installed and operating The licensing fee

related to the construction of the Huckabay Facility approximately $1 million dollars has been capitalized and is

included in the property plant and equipment balance

intangible assets goodwill and indefinite lived assets Intangible assets are recorded at cost and consist of

licensed technology rights and goodwill Licensed technology rights are being amortized using the straight-line

method over useful life of 20 years Accumulated amortization of licensed technology rights was $1380704

and $1195204 at December 31 2008 and 2007 respectively Licensed technology rights were reviewed for

impairment pursuant to Statement of Financial Accounting Standards SFAS No 144 Accounting for the

impairment or Disposal of Long-Lived Assets The future estimated amortization expense for licensed

technology rights is as follows

Estimated Amortization Expense for Licensed Technology Rights

2009 2010 2011 2012 2013 Thereafter Total

$185500 185500 185500 185500 185500 1401796 $2329296
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Goodwill
represents the excess of cost over the fair value of tangible and identifiable intangible assets and is

not being amortized pursuant to Statement of Financial Accounting Standards SFAS No 142 Goodwill and

Other Intangible Assets We adopted SFAS 142 on January 2002 and completed the transitional impairment

testing in June 2002 and the required testing annually through December 31 2008 The Company acquired

Microgy Inc in 1999 This acquisition resulted in an initial allocation of $4913000 to goodwill The

impairment evaluation for goodwill is conducted at least annually or more frequently if events or changes in

circumstances indicate that an asset might be impaired The evaluation is performed using two-step process

The first step compares the book value of the Companys reporting unit to its estimated fair value The second

step of the goodwill impairment test which is only required when the net book value of the reporting unit

exceeds the fair value compares the implied fair value of goodwill to its book value to determine if an

impairment is required The Company estimates the fair values of its reporting unit using the income approach

which measures the value of an intangible asset based on the expected stream of monetary benefits attributable to

it over its remaining useful life

The Company annually performs tests to determine the appropriate value of goodwill The results of these

tests in 2008 resulted in the Companys determination that the entire balance of $4913000 was impaired due

primarily to the current market price of its common stock relative to its book value projections of future cash

flows and other factors Previously the market price of the Companys common stock and consequently its

market capitalization were relatively high compared to the book value per share of its common stock However
this year the Companys market value is substantially below its book value due principally to the culirent market

price of its common stock As result accounting requirements require the Company to determine whether there

is enough market value after covering other net assets on book basis to cover any of its goodwill Title Company
determined that market value was insufficient to cover goodwill and determined that the write-off was

required The write-off of goodwill is not reflection on the economics of the Companys projects which the

Company continues to stand behind but is simply the result of the application of accounting requirements

associated with goodwill impairment

Deferred Financing Costs In 2006 we incurred deferred financing costs of $2.7 million related to our $60

million tax-exempt bond financing in Texas In 2008 we recorded an additional $2.3 million and $397000 in

deferred financing costs related to our $62.425 million tax-exempt financing in California and $7 million tax

-exempt financing in Nebraska respectively The California and Texas deferred financing costs are being

amortized over the 30-year life of the related debt and the Nebraska costs over the 15-year life of the Nebraska

debt

Income Taxes We account for income taxes in accordance SFAS No 109 Accounting for Incqme Taxes
Under SFAS No 109 deferred tax assets and liabilities are determined based on differences between the

financial reporting and tax reporting bases of assets and liabilities and are measured by applying the enacted tax

rates and laws to taxable years in which the differences are expected to reverse We recognize deferred tax asset

for the tax benefit of net operating loss carry forwards when it is more likely than not that the tax benefits will be

realized and reduce the deferred tax asset with valuation reserve when it is more likely than not that some

portion of the tax benefits will not be realized

Earnings per Common Share We compute earnings per common share in accordance with SFAS No 128

Earnings per Share We compute basic earnings per share by dividing net income for the period less any

dividends on our Series 9% Cumulative Convertible Preferred Stock referred to as the series prel erred

stock by the weighted average number of shares of common stock outstanding during the period For purposes of

calculating diluted earnings per share we consider shares issuable in connection with stock options stock

appreciation rights and warrants to be dilutive common stock equivalents when the exercise price is less than the

average market price of our common stock for the period We exclude anti-dilutive common stock equivalents
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from the calculation of diluted earnings per share The following table outlines the calculation of basic earnings

per share and diluted earnings per
share for the

years
ended December 31 2008 2007 and 2006 For the purposes

of calculating dilutive options all warrants and options were calculated using the treasury stock method The

preferred stock were calculated using the as-if converted method

Twelve Months Ended

Earnings Per Share

Loss applicable to shareholders

Dividends to preferred stockholders

Change in Value of Modified Warrants

Beneficial Conversion Feature of Preferred Stock

Earnings Numerator

Basic Shares Denominator

Basic EPS

Assumed exercise of dilutive stock options

Diluted Shares
____________ ____________ ____________

Diluted EPS

Anti-Dilutive Instruments

As of December 31 2008 2007 and 2006 respectively there were outstanding shares of preferred stock

convertible into common shares SARs options and warrants to purchase 7382318 7632700 and 8146657

shares of our common stock respectively which were anti-dilutive and not included in the computation of diluted

EPS The options and warrants expire at various dates through 2016

Stock Based Compensation In December 2004 the Financial Accounting Standards Board FASB issued

SFAS No 123 revised 2004 Share-Based Payment SFAS No 123R which replaces SFAS No 123 SFAS

No 123R requires all share-based payments to employees including grants of employee stock options to be

recognized in the financial statements based on their fair values beginning with the first interim or annual period

after June 15 2005 Effective January 2006 we adopted SFAS No 123R using the modified prospective

method Under this method compensation cost recognized includes compensation cost for all share-based

payments granted prior to but not yet vested as of December 31 2005 based on the grant date fair value

estimated in accordance with the original provisions of SFAS No 123 amortized on an straight line basis over the

options vesting period and compensation cost for all share-based payments granted subsequent to

December 31 2005 based on the grant-date fair value estimated in accordance with the provisions of SFAS

No l23R amortized on straight-line basis over the options vesting period

On March 29 2005 the Securities and Exchange Commission SEC published Staff Accounting Bulletin

SAB No 107 which provides the Staffs views on variety of matters relating to stock-based payments

SAB No 107 requires that stock-based compensation be classified in the same expense line items as cash

compensation We have classified stock-based compensation during the years ended December 31 2008 2007

and 2006 within the same operating expense line items as cash compensation paid to employees Both cash and

non-cash compensation is recognized in general and administrative expenses

In November 2005 the FASB issued FSP No l23R-3 Transition Election Related to Accounting for the

Tax Effects of Share-Based Payment Awards We have adopted the simplified method to calculate the beginning

balance of the additional paid-in-capital APIC pool of the excess tax benefit and to determine the subsequent

impact on the APIC pool and Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows of the tax effects of employee stock-based

compensation awards that were outstanding upon our adoption of FAS 23R

12/31/2008 12/31/2007 12/31/2006

$16006708 $17357 149 $1 41 15257

1326271 1348343 197715

97404

57148 4131022

17332979 18860044 18443994

15579354 11338973 9634824

1.11 1.66 1.91

15579354 11338973 9634824

1.11 1.66 1.91

7382318 7632700 8146657
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We account for non-employee stock compensation under SFAS 123R and Emerging Issues task Force

EITF 96-18 We record the compensation expense over the period of service at the fair value of the

consideration received or the fair value of the equity instruments issued whichever is more reliably measurable

The fair value of such equity instruments is calculated using Black-Scholes option model

We recognized $1950987 $2798032 and $2036108 in total non-cash compensation expense under FAS

123R for the years ended December 31 2008 2007 and 2006 respectively

Recent Accounting Pronouncements

In September 2006 the Financial Accounting Standards Board FASB issued Statement of
Finaiicia1

Accounting Standards SFAS No 157 Fair Value Measurements SFAS 157 which defines fair valie

establishes framework for measuring fair value and expands disclosures about fair value measurements The

provisions of SFAS 157 were effective for financial statements issued for fiscal
years beginning after

November 15 2007 However the FASB deferred the effective date of SFAS 157 as it relates to fair value

measurement requirements for non-financial assets and liabilities that are not remeasured at fair valueon

recurring basis These assets include goodwill and other non-amortizable intangible assets We adopte1 SFAS

157 as of January 2008 and the adoption did not have material impact on our financial statements

The fair value framework requires categorization of assets and liabilities into three levels based upon the

assumptions inputs used to price the assets and liabilities Level provides the most reliable measure of fair value

whereas Level generally requires significant management judgment The three levels are defined as follows

Level Unadjusted quoted prices in active markets for identical assets and liabilities

Level Observable inputs other than those included in Level For example quoted prices 1or similar

assets or liabilities in active markets or quoted prices for identical assets or liabilities in inactive

markets

Level Unobservable inputs reflecting managements own assumptions about the inputs useid in pricing

the asset or liability

As of December 31 2008 other than cash cash equivalents and restricted cash none of the Companys

assets or liabilities were being reported at fair value

In December 2007 the FASB issued SFAS No 160 Non controlling Interests in Consolidated Financial

Statements SFAS No 160 This statement requires that non controlling interests be reported as stockholders

equity change that will effect our financial statement presentation of minority interests in our consolidated

subsidiaries The Statement also establishes single method of accounting for changes in parents ownership

interest in subsidiary as long as that ownership change does not result in deconsolidation This stateient is

effective for fiscal years beginning after December 15 2008 We are currently evaluating the impact Qf SFAS

160 and do not expect this statement to have material impact on our financial position and results of operations

In March 2008 The FASB issued SFAS 161 Disclosures about Derivative Instruments and Hedging

Activities SFAS No 161 SFAS 161 amends and expands the disclosure requirements of SFAS 133

Accounting for Derivative Instruments and Hedging Activities and requires entities to provide enhanded

qualitative disclosures about objectives and strategies for using derivatives quantitative disclosures about fair
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values and amounts of gains and losses on derivative contracts and disclosures about credit-risk-related

contingent features and derivative agreements This statement applies to all entities and all derivative

instruments SFAS 161 is effective for financial statements issued for fiscal years and interim periods beginning

after November 15 2008 We are currently evaluating the impact of SFAS 161 and do not expect this statement

to have material impact on our financial position and results of operations

NOTE DOTHER CURRENT ASSETS

Other current assets consist of the following as of December 31 2008 and 2007

Other Current Assets 2008 2007

Prepaid expenses $53214 $104685

Deposits and other current assets 6996 25509

TOTAL $60210 $130194

NOTE EPROPERTY PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Property plant and equipment are recorded at cost less accumulated depreciation and consists of the

following as of December 31 2008 and 2007

Property Plant and Equipment 2008 2007

Machinery and equipment $25073098

Leasehold improvements 102699 21192

Office equipment and furniture 265027 640063

Less Accumulated depreciation 1508751 400084

TOTAL $23932073 261171

Depreciation expense for the years ended 2008 2007 and 2006 was $1153210 $126034 and $113274

respectively

NOTE FOTHER ASSETS

Other assets consist of the following as of December 31 2008 and 2007

Other Assets 2008 2007

Security deposits 197569 97603

TOTAL $197569 $97603

NOTE GACCOUNTS PAYABLE AND ACCRUED EXPENSES

Accounts payable and accrued expenses consist of the following as of December 31 2008 and 2007

Accounts Payable and Accrued Expenses 2008 2007

Accounts payable $1628955 352984

Accrued dividends payable 667089 675000

Accrued compensation 393024 373782

Accrued licensing fee 350000

Accrued interest 859021

Accrued expenses 774807 765702

TOTAL $4322896 $2517468
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NOTE HLONG TERM DEBT

Long term debt as of December 31 2008 and 2007 consists of

Secured Promissory Notes Payable and Other Obligations 2008 2007

Vehicle loan capital leases 50023 103983

California tax exempt bonds 62425000

Texas tax exempt bonds 60000000 60350000

Nebraska tax exempt bonds 7000000
__________

TOTAL $129475023 $60453983

Tax-Exempt Bond FinancingsIn November 2006 Microgy Holdings LLC our wholly-owned subsidiary

closed $60 million tax-exempt bond financing through the Gulf Coast Industrial Development Authority of

Texas The bonds were issued at par and will pay coupon of 7% The proceeds of the bond financing will

provide debt financing for the construction of four proposed renewable natural gas facilities in Texas being

developed by Microgy Inc Interest on the bonds is calculated on the basis of 360 day year of twelvt 30 days

months and is payable each June 1st and December 1St

In September 2008 Microgy Holdings LLC closed $62425 million tax-exempt bond financing through

the California Statewide Communities Development Authority These bonds were also issued at par and pay

coupon of 9% The proceeds of this bond financing will provide debt financing for two of the three natural gas

facilities in California being developed by Microgy The California bonds also have certain covenants related to

performance objectives at the Huckabay Ridge facility

In July 2008 Microgy Grand Island LLC our wholly owned subsidiary closed $7 million tax-exempt

bond financing through the City of Grand Island Nebraska These bonds were issued at par and pay coupon of

7% The proceeds of this bond financing provide debt financing for the renewable gas facility under construction

at Grand Island Nebraska

The foregoing obligations carry certain restrictions and covenants including reporting requirements and

restriction on the use of funds As of December 31 2008 management believes we are in full compliance with

the covenants and restrictions of all tax-exempt financings

NOTE IINCOME TAXES

Income tax expense consists of the following for the years ended December 31 2008 2007 and 2006

ANALYSIS INCOME TAX EXPENSE 2008 2007 2006

Current

Federal

State $26284 $900 $427127

Total current tax expense 26284 900 427127

Deferred

Federal

State

Total deferred tax expense

TOTAL INCOME TAX EXPENSE 26284 900 427127
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Income taxes paid during the years ended December 31 2008 2007 and 2006 amounted to $0 $0 and

$38000 respectively

The reconciliation between the actual income tax expense and the income tax expense computed by

applying the statutory federal income tax rate to the income before income taxes for the
years ended

December 31 2008 2007 and 2006 is as follows

RECONCILIATION OF TAX BENEFIT EXPENSE 2008 2007 2006

Federal tax benefit expense at 34% $5433344 $3799526 $3260783
State tax expense 26284 67485 82824
Valuation allowances 6083819 3856892 3737467
Permanent differences 597907 11019 33267

TOTAL INCOME TAX BENEFIT EXPENSE 26284 900 427127

The components of the net deferred income tax asset liability as of December 31 2008 and 2007 are as

follows

ANALYSIS OF DEFERRED TAX ASSET LIABILITY 2008 2007

Deferred tax assets

Deferred gain1 967069

Stocks warrants and stock appreciation rights 762793 3114002

Pre-acquisition net operating loss carry forward of Microgy 497041 467000
Federal NOL AMT Credits 16910842 9632173
State net operating loss carry forwards 1402046 20400
Deferred revenue 222934

Other net 116985

Total deferred tax assets 19912641 14200644
Deferred tax liabilities

Licensed technology rights 840596 892000
Original issue discount related to the ArcLight loan 983271
Depreciation and start up costs 662853

Total deferred tax liabilities 1503449 1875271

Less valuation allowances 18409192 12325373

DEFERRED INCOME TAX ASSET LIABILITY net

Deferred tax effect of the sale of the Scrubgrass project for which the net gain was deferred for financial

reporting purposes Gain was recognized in conjunction with disposition of discontinued operations

As of December 31 2008 we have federal and state net operating loss carry forwards of $49737771 and

$32189554 respectively which are available to reduce future taxable income Of the total net federal operating

loss carryforwards $1373468 of these net operating loss carry forwards relate to the acquisition of Microgy

Due to the change of ownership provisions in Section 382 of the Internal Revenue Code our utilization of these

net operating loss carry forwards is limited to $368000 per year Federal net operating loss carryforwards expire

beginning in 2024 and state net operating loss carryforwards begin to expire in various years between 2013 and

2025
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The table below provides an analysis of the activity in the valuation reserve for net operating loss

carryforwards for each of the last three years in the period ended December 31 2008

Additions

Balance at charged to Balance at

beginning income tax end of

Description of period expense Deductions period

Year Ended December 31 2008

Valuation reserve for net operating loss carry forwards $12325373 $6083819 $18409192

Year Ended December 31 2007

Valuation reserve for net operating loss carry forwards 8468481 $3856892 $12325373

Year Ended December 31 2006

Valuation reserve for net operating loss carry forwards 4731014 $3737467 8468481

We adopted the provisions of Financial Standards Accounting Board FASB Interpretation No 48

Accounting for Uncertainty in Income Taxes F1N48 an interpretation of FASB Statement No 109 on

January 2007 As result of the implementation of FIN 48 we recognized no material adjustment in the

valuation allowance or deferred tax asset At the adoption date of January 2007 we had $10387352 of

unrecognized tax benefits all of which would affect our effective tax rate if recognized At December 31 2008

we have approximately $19912641 of unrecognized tax benefits primarily comprised of federal and state net

operating losses

It is our policy to recognize interest and penalties related to uncertain tax positions in income tax expense

As of December 31 2008 we did not have any accrued interest or penalties related to uncertain tax positions We
file income tax returns with federal state and local authorities The 2003 federal and state returns were closed in

2007 and no material adjustments were identified towards any of our tax positions Our federal and state tax

returns for 2004 to 2007 are subject to future examination by relevant tax authorities

NOTE JSHAREHOLDERS EQUITY

Preferred Stock

On November 2006 we issued 281241 units consisting ofi one share of series 9% cumulative

convertible preferred stock referred to as the series preferred stock with each share initially convertible into

10 shares of common stock and ii detachable warrants to purchase five shares of common stock exercisable at

price of $5.522 per share for purchase price of $53.335 per unit We received approximately $14.0 million in

proceeds from this offering after paying fees and expenses This financing is referred to below as the series

financing

Relevant Material Terms

The terms and provisions of the series preferred stock are set forth in the Certificate of Designations

Rights and Preferences of Series Cumulative Convertible Preferred Stock the Certificate of Designations

Certain material terms of the series preferred stock relevant to this response are summarized below

The securities offered and sold to the Purchasers in the series financing were not registered under the

Securities Act of 1933 as amended the Securities Act and were sold in reliance upon the exemption from

securities registration afforded by Regulation under the Securities Act All of the purchasers represented to us

that they were accredited investors as defined in Rule 501 of Regulation In connection with the series
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financing we entered into subscription agreements with the purchasers pursuant to which we were required to

file registration statement with the Securities and Exchange Commission covering the resale of the common

stock issuable upon conversion of the series preferred stock and issuable upon exercise of the warrants and the

warrants issued to one of the placement agents

Dividends Each share of series preferred stock has an initial stated value of $52.71 the Stated Value
and accrues dividends at rate of 9% per annum on the Stated Value payable semiannually in arrears on

January and July and accruing daily on the basis of 12 thirty-day months in year of 360 days The dividends

are cumulative and payable in cash out of funds legally available

Liquidation Upon any liquidation dissolution or winding up of Environmental Power whether voluntary or

involuntary the holders of the series preferred stock are entitled to receive an amount equal to 200% of the

Stated Value per share plus all accrued but unpaid dividends thereon and any accrued but unpaid liquidated

damages if any for each share of series preferred stock before any distribution or payment shall be made to

the holders of any other equity securities of Environmental Power and if the assets of Environmental Power are

insufficient to pay in full such amounts then the entire assets of Environmental Power would be distributed

among the holders of series preferred stock pro-rata in accordance with the respective amounts due to each

Voting The series preferred stock acquired by the purchasers was convertible into 2812410 shares of

common stock and the holders of the series preferred stock vote on an as-converted basis with the holders of

our common stock As result of the issuance of shares of our common stock in the public offering completed in

October 2007 at price per share less than the conversion price of the series preferred stock the series

preferred stock and resulting decrease in such conversion price is now convertible into 2823660 shares of

common stock

Conversion Subject to limitations set forth in the Certificate of Designations the holders of the series

preferred stock may convert all or any portion of their shares of series preferred stock into shares of common

stock at any time The shares of series preferred stock were convertible at conversion price of $5.27 per share

at the time of issuance Pursuant to the guidance in paragraph of EITF 00-27 Application of Issue No 98-5 to

Certain Convertible Instruments we allocated the proceeds from the Series financing between the Series

Preferred Stock and the warrants based upon their estimated relative fair values as of the closing date resulting in

$10156021 being allocated to the series preferred stock and $3385340 being allocated to the warrants We

then calculated the intrinsic value of the beneficial conversion feature embedded in the series preferred stock

The beneficial conversion of $4131022 was recognized as an additional discount on the series preferred stock

which amount was immediately accreted and treated as deemed dividend to the holder of the shares of series

preferred stock set forth in the Certificate of Designation

In October 2007 the preferred stock conversion price was reduced to $5.25 per share as result of anti-

dilution adjustments triggered by the sale of common stock in our October 2007 public offering The change in

the conversion price of the preferred stock resulted in additional beneficial conversion feature which was

recorded as $57148 loss available to common shareholders

If the closing price of the common stock for each of any ten consecutive trading days exceeds $4.00 as

adjusted for stock splits recapitalizations and the like above the then effective Conversion Price we may upon

written notice cause each holder of series preferred stock to convert all or part of such holders shares of series

preferred stock provided that certain other conditions relating to trading volume and the effectiveness of

registration statement covering the underlying shares have been met
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Redemption or Change in Dividend Rate upon Certain Triggering Events

The holders of the series preferred stock are entitled to elect to require the company to redeem the

preferred stock upon certain Triggering Events Each of the following constitutes Triggering Event

the failure of the registration statement to be declared effective by the SEC on or prior to the 180th

day after the original issue date of the series preferred stock other than as result of an allowed delay

ii if the registration statement lapses or the holders are not otherwise permitted to resell the

underlying shares of common stock other than as result of an allowed delay or through an act or omission

on their part for more than an aggregate of 30 calendar days which need not be consecutive calendar days

during any
12 month period unless the holders are otherwise able to resell underlying shares pursuant to an

exemption from registration without any volume limitations

iii we shall fail to deliver certificates representing shares of common stock issuable upon

conversion of the series preferred stock on or prior to the tenth 10th trading day after such shares are

required to be delivered

iv we shall fail for any reason to pay in full the amount of cash due pursuant to buy-in as defined

below in the certificate of designations for the series preferred stock within ten calendar days after notice

therefore is delivered hereunder

we shall redeem more than de minimisnumber of our junior securities with certain exceptions

vi we shall be party to change of control transaction as defined

vii there shall have occurred bankruptcy event as defined

viii Our common stock shall fail to be listed or quoted for trading on specified trading market for

more than five consecutive trading days or

ix any final monetary judgment writ or similar final process not subject to further appeal shall be

entered or filed against Environmental Power any subsidiary for which there is recourse to Environmental

Power or any of their respective properties or other assets for greater than $2500000 and such judgment

writ or similar final process shall remain un-vacated un-bonded un-stayed or un-appealed for period of

60 calendar days

Each holder of series preferred stock will have the right in the case of the third fourth fifth sixth and

seventh Triggering Events described above to cause us to redeem all of such holders shares of series preferred

stock or at the option of the holder in the case of any Triggering Event as result of which the holder does

not choose redemption to increase the dividend rate on all of the outstanding series preferred stock held by

such Holder to 16% per annum thereafter until such time as the Triggering Events is cured The amount payable

by us upon redemption in the case of an applicable Triggering Event will be 120% of the stated value
per

share of

series preferred stock or 150% of the stated value per share of series preferred stock in the case cf the sixth

Triggering Event as described above

Given that the redemption provision described above does not embody an unconditional obligatiàn requiring

us to redeem the instrument at specified or determinable date or upon an event certain to occur the series

preferred stock is not mandatory redeemable financial instrument Therefore we determined the guidance in

FAS 150 Accounting for Certain Financial Instruments with Characteristics of both Liabilities and Equity which

would require classification as liability does not apply Rule 5-02.28 of Regulation S-X requires securities with

redemption features that are not solely within the control of the issuer to be classified outside of perminent

equity The redemption rights described above were considered outside of our control Therefore we recorded

the portion of the proceeds attributable to the series preferred stock as temporary equity pursuant to EITF

Topic D-98 Classification and Measurement of Redeemable Securities The carrying value of the series

preferred stock was not accreted to its redemption value as the occurrence of the redemption event was not

considered probable
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Warrants In addition to the issuance of shares of series preferred stock we issued warrants to purchase

an aggregate of up to 1406205 shares of common stock at per share exercise price of $5.52 per share The

warrants have term of exercise expiring years from their date of issuance The warrants require physical

settlement or under certain limited circumstances net-share settlement We determined that the detachable

warrants did not meet the definition of derivative under FAS 133 paragraph 11a because they were considered

contracts issued or held that are both indexed to its own stock and classified in stockholders equity in its

statement of financial position They do not require net-cash settlement nor do they give the counterparty

choice of net-cash settlement or settlement in shares We have considered paragraphs 12-32 of EITF 00-19 and

concluded that the terms of the warrants satisfy all criteria for classification as equity

We allocated the proceeds between the stock and the warrants based upon their estimated fair values as of

the closing date resulting in $3385340 being allocated to the warrants We determined the fair value of the

warrants using the Black-Scholes option pricing model with the following assumptions weighted average risk

free rate of 4.69% volatility of 77% and dividend yield of 0%

In an effort to help us identify candidates for anaerobic digester projects we have entered into business

development agreement BDA with Cargill In consideration of Cargills services see Note under the BDA
we will grant to Cargill warrants to purchase shares of our common stock equal to of the outstanding shares

of our common stock on fully-diluted basis on such date as Cargill delivers executed project commitments with

project candidates relating to anaerobic digester projects covering 10000 cow equivalents as defined and

thereafter to issue similarwarrants on each succeeding date on which the same warrant issuance conditions have

again been satisfied up to maximum of 4.99% of the outstanding shares of common stock on such issuance

date subject to all warrants in the aggregate The warrants will be exercisable for period of five years from the

issuance date and will have an exercise price per share equal to 75% of the closing price of our common stock

on the last trading day prior to the issuance date During 2007 we granted Cargill warrants to purchase 175912

shares of our common stock at an exercise price of $5.37 per share under this arrangement These warrants were

valued using the Black- Scholes method and determined to have value of $907288 We have capitalized this

development cost and this amount is currently held in our construction in progress account

Offering costs One of the placement agents in the series financing received warrant to purchase

168745 shares of common stock at purchase price of $5.27 per share exercisable for period of five
years

We

determined the fair value of the warrants using the Black-Scholes option pricing model with the following

assumptions weighted average risk free rate of 4.8% volatility of 77% and dividend yield of 0% The fair

value of the warrants of $508628 was treated as an offset to the proceeds of the series financing and credited

to additional paid in capital

Stock Options

We maintain incentive compensation plans under which restricted stock awards stock options stock units

and stock appreciation rights may be granted to employees directors and independent contractors To date we

have granted stock options stock appreciation rights and restricted stock awards Stock options under the plans

provide for either nonqualified stock options or incentive stock options Stock options are granted at the market

price on the date of grant and generally vest at rate of 25%-33% per year The stock options generally expire 10

years from the date of grant We issue new shares of common stock upon exercise of stock options

Compensation expense is recognized only for those awards expected to vest with forfeitures estimated

based on our historical experience and future expectations
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Valuation Assumptions The fair value of stock options granted during the years ended December 31 2008

2007 and 2006 was estimated using the Black-Scholes option-pricing model with the following weighited average

assumptions

Fair Market Per Share

Assumptions

Risk-free rate of return

Volatility

Expected annual dividend yield

Option Life years

Year Ended

December 31 December 31 December 31
2008 2007 2006

2.98 4.49 4.47

3.04% 4.37% 4.48%

64.92% 77.15% 78.32%

0.00% 0.00% 0.00%

4.65 5.14 4.00

The employee stock-based compensation expense recognized under FAS 23R and presented in the

disclosure required under FAS 123 was determined using the Black-Scholes option valuation model Option

valuation models require the input of subjective assumptions and these assumptions can vary over tinle

Employee stock-based compensation expense recognized was calculated based on awards ultimately expected to

vest and has been reduced for estimated forfeitures FAS123R requires forfeitures to be estimated at the time of

grant and revised if necessary in subsequent periods if actual forfeitures differ from those estimates forfeiture

rate of 0% to 25% is applied to the stock-based compensation expense determined through historical xperience

of employee stock options We base our determination of expected volatility primarily on our assessment of the

historical volatility of our common stock

The risk-free interest rate assumption is based upon the U.S Treasury yield curve in effect at the time of

grant for periods corresponding with the expected life of the option The dividend yield assumption is based on

our history and expectation of future dividend payouts The expected life of employee stock options represents

the weighted-average period the stock options are expected to remain outstanding

Stock option transactions during year ended 2008 2007 and 2006 are summarized as follows

Weighted

Average

Weighted Remaining

Average Contractual Aggregate
Exercise Term Intrinsic

Outstanding Options Shares Price Years Value

Balance at January 2006 2780797 5.81 6.87 3801585

Issued in 2006 653000 6.69 9.51

Exercised 105054 6.72

Expired in 2006 301636 6.24

Outstanding at December 31 2006 3027107 5.93 6.75 8859395

Issued in 2007

Exercised 271324 5.41

Expired in 2007 238785 5.68

Outstanding at December 31 2007 2516998 5.93 5.37 1098789

Issued in 2008

Exercised

Expired in 2008 203659 6.76

Outstanding at December 31 2008 2313339 5.76 5.16
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The aggregate inthnsic value in the table above represents the total pre-tax intrinsic value the difference

between our closing stock price and the exercise price multiplied by the number of in-the-money options that

would have been received by the option holders had all option holders exercised their options on December 31

2008 This amount is changed based on the fair market value of our stock No options were exercised during the

year ended December 31 2008

The total compensation cost related to unvested awards not yet recognized is $701232 This amount will be

charged against income over the next three
years As of December 31 2008 there were 439000 shares of

common stock available for issuance pursuant to future stock awards

summary of the status of our unvested share awards during fiscal years 2006 2007 and 2008 is as

follows

Weighted Average Grant

Shares Date Fair Value

Unvested at January 2006 797690

Awards granted 2227950 $4.17

Awards vested 1685934
Awards canceled or expired 363049

Unvested at December 31 2006 976657

Awards granted n/a

Awards vested 517539
Awards canceled or expired 238785

Unvested at December 31 2007 220333

Awards granted n/a

Awards vested 93385
Awards canceled or expired 32847

Unvested at December 31 2008 94101

Warrants

The Company had outstanding warrants of 1838862 and 1860292 as of December 31 2008 and

December 31 2007 respectively The weighted average exercise prices were $4.38 and $5.38 as of

December 31 2008 and December 31 2007 respectively The weighted contract term has years remaining as

of December 31 2008

Stock Appreciation Rights

In 2007 the company began granting stock appreciation rights known as SARs to employees SARs are

contractual rights that entitle the holder to receive the appreciation in value on shares of employer stock from the

grant date Any such appreciation can be paid in either cash or shares upon exercise at our election Management

currently plans to continue to settle SARs exclusively with equity and as such these awards are classified as

equity In 2007 and 2008 all SARs exercises were paid in shares There were no exercises of SARs in 2008 We

granted 431750 and 428202 SARs in 2007 and 2008 respectively We currently have 753734 SARs

outstanding which have weighted average exercise price of $5.61 and weighted average remaining

contractual term of years We recognized $1492000 and $752000 in non cash compensation expense related

to SARs for the years ending December 31 2008 and 2007 respectively The vesting period for SARs ranges
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from immediately to period of years In 2007 we had 426750 SARs outstanding which had weighted

average exercise price of $6.17 and weighted average remaining contractual term of 9.48 years

Restricted Stock

In 2008 we issued 44750 shares of restricted stock with fair market value of $5.52 and an intrinsic value

of $5.51 per share The total 2008 non-cash compensation expense for these shares of restricted stock was

$64743 The vesting period is over two years As of December 31 2008 there were 35250 shares of restricted

stock outstanding

Dividends

Since December 2000 our Board of Directors has not declared dividends on its common stock Due to the

acquisition of Microgy and anticipated expansion of its business our Board of Directors has concluded that

available cash flows should be redirected to operating and investing activities for the foreseeable future except to

the extent of cash dividends required to be paid on outstanding shares of our series preferred stock In addition

the terms of our series preferred stock prohibit the payment of dividends on our common stock whilb any

shares of our series preferred stock remain outstanding or any accrued dividends on the series preferred

stock remain unpaid

In October of 2006 the company issued 281241 shares of the series preferred stock at an aggrgate

purchase price of $15 million Dividend payments on the preferred stock are due on January 1St and July 1St of

every year In order to account for this dividend the company has accrued $667089 for the period from July

2008 the date of the previous dividend payment through December 31 2008 The company paid $1326271 in

preferred dividends in the year ended December 31 2008

Other Equity Transactions

We have outstanding notes receivable from current and former officers and directors for shares purchased in

connection with the 1990 Stock Plan and 1993 Director Plan which amounted to $638219 as of both

December 2008 and 2007 The notes which are classified as reduction of shareholders equity are payable

upon demand and bear interest at floating rate which is payable monthly The notes are also secured by the

shares purchased by the officers and directors In accordance with company policy and applicable law we no

longer make loans to our officers and directors
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NOTE KCOMMITMENTS

The following table shows all of our long term liabilities and commitments

Commitments of Continuing

Operations 2009 2010 2011 2012 2013 Thereafter Total

OperatingLeasesl 336672 336672 298500 111078 1082922

Microgy Commitments2 3000000 3000000

Tax Exempt Bonds3 10308250 10308250 10658250 11603750 11606350 285416450 339901300

Security Deposit4 250000 100000 100000 100000 100000 650000

Vehicle Loan and Other

Capital Leases5 30347 18829 49176

TOTAL $13925269 10763751 11056750 11814828 11706350 285416450 $344683398

We are obligated under various non-cancelable operating leases for office space and automotive vehicles Rent expense

for these operating leases was $371637 $424765 and $286501 in 2008 2007 and 2006 respectively

These commitments relate to various purchase agreements and include amounts expected to be claimed by SouthTex

Treaters for gas treatment equipment in connection with our Microgy facilities

In 2007 Microgy began scheduled interest payments on the tax exempt bonds Mandatory redemption of principal

amounts begins in 2012

In December 2008 Microgy signed contract with customer that required security deposits to protect against failure to

delivery product in certain instances

We are obligated under various non-cancelable capital leases for automotive vehicles

Cargill Business Development Agreement

In October 2006 we entered into Business Development Agreement referred to as the BDA with Cargill

Incorporated acting through its Emerging Business Accelerator Unit referred to as Cargill Pursuant to the terms

of the BDA Cargill has agreed to use its reasonable efforts to identify potential anaerobic digester projects for

development by us within Cargills network of customers farmers and strategic business partners in North

America Cargill and Microgy will work jointly to identify specific targeted markets for developing such projects

within the Cargill network and Cargill will identify project candidates based upon agreed project guidelines We

will consider each project candidate and select those candidates they want Cargill to pursue further on their

behalf Cargill will then negotiate with such project candidates with the goal of obtaining binding agreement

whereby such project candidates commit to give Microgy the option to implement an anaerobic digester project

Once project commitment has been signed Cargill will present it to us for review and consideration We will

then proceed with the negotiation of mutually acceptable leases and other project agreements with the project

candidates in which they are interested

In consideration of Cargills services under the BDA we will grant to Cargill warrants to purchase shares of

our common stock equal to of the outstanding shares of our common stock on fully-diluted basis on such

date as Cargill delivers executed project commitments with project candidates relating to anaerobic digester

projects covering 10000 cow equivalents as defined and thereafter to issue similarwarrants on each succeeding

date on which the same warrant issuance conditions have again been satisfied up to maximum of 4.99% of the

outstanding shares of common stock on such issuance date subject to all warrants in the aggregate The warrants

will be exercisable for period of five years from the issuance date and will have an exercise price per share

equal to 75% of the closing price of our common stock on the last trading day prior to the issuance date During

2007 we granted Cargill warrants purchasing 175912 shares of our common stock at an exercise price of $5.37
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per share under this arrangement These warrants were valued using the Black Scholes method and determined

to have value of $907288 We have capitalized this development cost and this amount is currently held in our

construction in progress account

As further consideration for Cargills services under the BDA for three-year period beginning with the

first date of issuance of greenhouse gas reduction certificate issued to owned or controlled by us derived from

an anaerobic digester project subject to project commitment referred to as an eligible certificate we will

convey to Cargill or its designee ownership of 25% of all such eligible certificates after giving effect to any

share of such certificates owed to project candidate pursuant to the terms of any lease or other project

agreement with such project candidate During such three-year period Cargill will also have the first right to bid

on any other proposed sale or conveyance of any eligible certificates In addition with respect to each project

subject to project commitment which generates revenue to Environmental Power or Microgy from the sale of

gas electricity or other by-products but not including sales of greenhouse gas
reduction certificates we will be

obligated to pay to Cargill within 30 days of receipt of such revenues 2% of such revenues for five-year period

beginning on the date on which any such revenue is first received Finally during three-year period following

the date of first generation of gas or electricity by an anaerobic digestion project subject to project commitment

Cargill will have the first right to bid on the proposed sale or conveyance of all such
gas or electricity

The BDA will terminate upon the earliest of the following events

the third anniversary of the date of the BDA

the delivery by Cargill of project commitments signed by project candidates covering 50000 cow

equivalents

termination by party if court shall have entered final non-appealable order decree ruling or other

action restraining enjoining or otherwise prohibiting the transactions contemplated by the BDA

termination by party if the other party is in material breach or default which breach or default is not

cured within 30 days after the date of notice thereof

termination by party if the other party becomes insolvent or unable to pay its debts when due has

trustee or receiver appointed for any or all of its assets makes an assignment for the benefit of creditors

or has bankruptcy petition filed by or against it which is not dismissed within 90 days

termination by party if the other party ceases or threatens to cease to carry on business or

termination by party for any reason upon 30 days written notice to the other party

Upon any termination of the BDA the BDA will become void and the parties will have no liability or

obligation hereunder except for liabilities resulting from breach of the BDA on or prior to the date of

termination and except that Cargill will be entitled to any consideration described above for all AD Projects

subject to Project Commitment entered into prior to the date of termination Notwithstanding any
termination

of the BDA during the term of the BDA and for period of two years after the date of termination we will not

solicit or negotiate with any person who had entered into negotiations with Cargill or its affiliates with respect to

an anaerobic digestion project but with whom no project commitment has been concluded without the prior

written consent of Cargill or Cargills participation

Pursuant to the terms of the BDA we have agreed not to enter into similarbusiness development

agreement with certain prohibited parties identified by Cargill from time to time provided that there cannot be

any more than seven prohibited parties at any given time and further provided that Cargill may not deem party

to be prohibited if we were having discussions with the party prior to its being so designated by Cargill
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NOTE LASSET RETIREMENT OBLIGATIONS

On January 2003 we adopted Statement of Financial Accounting Standards No 143 Accounting for

Asset Retirement Obligations SFAS No 143 which provides accounting requirements for retirement

obligations associated with tangible long-lived assets including the timing of liability recognition initial

measurement of the liability allocation of asset retirement costs to expense subsequent measurement of the

liability and financial statement disclosures SFAS No 143 requires that asset retirement costs be capitalized

along with the cost of the related long-lived asset The asset retirement costs should then be allocated to expense

using systematic and rational method We have determined that we have asset retirement costs associated with

substrate removal at our Huckabay Ridge facility This amount is included in property plant and equipment and

other liabilities on our balance sheet and depreciated over 30 years the estimated useful life of the facility

NOTE M.-DISCLOSURES ABOUT FAIR VALUE OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

Our financial instruments primarily consist of cash and cash equivalents restricted cash accounts

receivable accounts payable short-term debt obligations and long-term debt obligations As of December 31

2008 and 2007 the carrying amounts for cash and cash equivalents restricted cash accounts receivable and

accounts payable approximate fair value because of the short maturity of these instruments The carrying amount

of long-term debt is approximately 129.475 million and the estimated fair value approximates the carrying

amount of the liability

NOTE NSUBSEQUENT EVENT

On March 13 2009 the Company closed on the sale of $5000000 original principal amount of its 14%

convertible notes due January 2014 referred to as the notes for net proceeds of approximately $4389000

The notes are unsecured obligations of Environmental Power Corporation and pay interest semi-annually on

January and July with principal due at maturity The notes are convertible into common stock of the

Company beginning at an initial conversion price of $5.40 share through December 31 2009 then increasing to

$6.33 per share from January 12010 through December 31 2010 $7.65 per share from January 12011 through

December 31 2011 $9.75 per share from January 2012 through December 31 2012 and $11.00 per share from

January 2013 to December 31 2013

The terms of the notes are governed by an Indenture dated as of March 2009 as supplemented by First

Supplemental Trust Indenture dated as of March 2009 between the Company and Wells Fargo Bank National

Association as Trustee collectively referred to as the indenture The indenture contains covenants which include

restrictions and limitations on the ability of the Company and its subsidiaries to incur indebtedness and issue

certain types of capital stock and engage in certain transactions In certain instances described in the indenture

the holders of the notes can require the company to repurchase or redeem the notes and the Company can require

holders of the notes to convert into common stock or redeem their notes The proceeds of these notes can only be

used for the costs and expenses associated with the construction and operation of our projects as described in

more detail in the indenture The First Supplemental Indenture provides for the issuance of notes in an aggregate

original principal amount of up to $53000000
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NOTE 0SELECTED UNAUDITED QUARTERLY FINANCIAL RESULTS

The following tables set forth certain unaudited quarterly data of the Company for each of the quarters since

January 2007 This information has been prepared on the same basis as the annual financial statements and all

necessary adjustments consisting only of normal recurring adjustments have been included in the amounts

stated below to present fairly the selected quarterly information when read in conjunction with the anüual

financial statements and the notes thereto included elsewhere in this document The quarterly operatirg results

are not necessarily indicative of future results of operations

REVENUES 215

COSTS AND EXPENSES

Operations and maintenance 217

Impairment of goodwill

General and administrative 2346

Depreciation and amortization 71

TOTAL COSTS AND EXPENSES 2634

OPERATING LOSS $2419

OTHER INCOME EXPENSE
Interest income 159

Interest expense

Other income expense 583

TOTAL OTHER INCOME

EXPENSE 738

LOSS INCOME BEFORE TAXES $1681
INCOME TAX EXPENSE BENEFIT
LOSS FROM CONTINUING

OPERATIONS $1681

INCOME LOSS FROM
DISCONTINUED OPERATIONS 335

NET LOSS INCOME $1346

Preferred Securities Dividend

Requirements 336
Beneficial Conversion Feature of Preferred

Stock

Change in Value of Modified Warrants

Loss Income/Income Available to

Common Shareholders $1682
Weighted Average Common Shares

Outstanding

Basic 9787

Diluted 9787

BASIC AND DILUTED LOSS PER

COMMON SHARE

BASIC LOSS PER COMMON SHARE 0.17
From Continuing Operations 0.22

From Discontinued Operations 0.05

DILUTED LOSS PER COMMON
SHARE 0.17

From Continuing Operations 0.22

From Discontinued Operations 0.05

unaudited in thousands except per share data

327 344 289 971 1112

244 313 168 1317 1937 1784

456 366

2080

4913

2265

366

9624

9258

53

265
37

175
9433

26

9459

9459

334

9793

15579

15579

Quarters Ended

3/31/2007 6/30/2007 9/30/2007 12/31/2007 3/31/2008 6/30/2008 930/20O8 12/31/2008

2667
78

2913

2624

382

3261 3611 2865

261 353 379

4839 5901 5028

3868 4789 457

247 100 8$

177 265 263
13 15

3656 3776
77 78

3977 4167

3650 3823

132 110

130 106

$3520 $3717

3520 3717

3235 2041

6755 5758

381 57 174 190
2243 3811 4963 476

$2243 $3811 $4963 $476

1255

3498

$6989

3178 $4963 $476

334 336 342 338 329 32

57
98

7089 6249 3840 2840 5292 5088

15405 15668 15579 1557
15405 18730 15579 15579

10027 10173

10027 10173

0.71 0.61
0.39 0.41

0.32 0.20

0.71 0.61

0.39 0.41

0.32 0.20

0.25
0.17

0.08

0.25
0.17

0.08

.18 0.34 0.33
0.27 0.34 0.3k

0.45

.17 0.34 0.33
0.20 0.34 0.33

0.37

0.63

0.63

0.63

0.63
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Signatures

Pursuant to the requirements of Section 13 or 15d of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 the registrant

has duly caused this report to be signed on its behalf by the undersigned

ENVIRONMENTAL POWER CORPORATION

By Is RICHARD KESSEL

Richard Kessel

President and Chief Executive Officer

Date March 16 2009

We the undersigned officers and directors of Environmental Power Corporation hereby severally constitute

and appoint Richard Kessel Michael Thomas and Dennis Haines and each of them singly our true and

lawful attorneys with full power to them and each of them singly to sign for us in our names in the capacities

indicated below all amendments to this report and generally to do all things in our names and on our behalf in

such capacities to enable Environmental Power Corporation to comply with the provisions of the Securities

Exchange Act of 1934 as amended and all requirements of the Securities and Exchange Commission

Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities Act of 1934 this report has been signed by the following

persons on behalf of the registrant and in the capacities and on the dates indicated

Is ROGER BALLENTINE

Roger Ballentine

Title

President Chief Executive Officer and

Director Principal Executive Officer

Senior Vice President Chief Financial

Officer and Treasurer Principal

Financial and Accounting Officer

Chairman of the Board of Directors

Vice Chairman of the Board of

Directors

Director

Director

Signature

Is RICHARD KESSEL

Richard Kessel

Is MICHAEL THOMAS

Michael Thomas

Is JOSEPH CRESCI

Joseph Cresci

Is KAMLESH TEJWANI

Kamlesh Tejwani

Is JOHN COOPER

John Cooper

Is LON HATAMIYA

Lon Hatamiya

Is STEVEN KESSNER

Steven Kessner

Is ROBERT WEISBERG

Robert Weisberg

Date

March 16 2009

March 16 2009

March 16 2009

March 16 2009

March 16 2009

March 16 2009

March 16 2009

March 16 2009

March 16 2009

Director

Director

Director

83
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Exhibit No Description
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Corporation EPC Holdings Inc and EPC Merger Sub Inc Incorporated by reference to

Exhibit 2.01 to the Registrants Current Report on Form 8-KIA dated June 2003 as filed with

the SEC on June 10 2003 SEC File No 000-15472

3.01 Restated Certificate of Incorporation of the Registrant as amended Incorporated by reference to

Exhibit 3.01 to the Registrants Quarterly Report on Form l0-Q for the quarter ended September

30 2007 as filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission on November 14 2007 SEC File

No 001-32393

3.02 Second Amended and Restated Bylaws of the Registrant Incorporated by reference to xhibit

3.01 to the Registrants Current Report on Form 8-K dated December 2007 as filed vith the

SEC on December 13 2007 SEC File No 001-32393

4.01 Certificate of Designations Preferences and Rights of the Series 9% Cumulative Corvertible

Preferred Stock Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 3.01 to the Registrants Current Report on

Form 8-K dated November 2006 as filed with the SEC on November 14 2006 SEC File

No 00 1-32393

10.1 Technology Licensing Agreement dated May 12 2000 between Microgy and Danish Blogas

Technology A.S Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.07 to the Registrants Quarterly Report

on Form 10-Q for the period ended September 30 2001 SEC File No 000-15472

10.2 Addendum dated April 14 2003 to Technology Licensing Agreement dated May 12 2000

between Microgy and Danish Biogas Technology A.S Incorporated by reference to EXhibit 10.34

to the Registrants Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31 2003 as filed

with the SEC on March 30 2004 SEC File No 000-15472

10.3 Addendum No dated as of March 2005 to Technology Licensing Agreement dated May 12

2000 between Microgy and Danish Biogas Technology AS Incorporated by reference to

Exhibit 10.62 to the Registrants Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31

2004 as filed with the SEC on March 31 2005 SEC File No 001-32393

10.4 Indemnification Agreement dated February 12 2002 between the Registrant and Joseph Cresci

Donald Livingston William Linehan and their successors Incorporated by reference to

Exhibit 10.15 to the Registrants Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31

2001 as filed with the SEC on April 2002 SEC File No 000-15472

10.5 Promissory Note dated July 30 1993 by Joseph Cresci in favor of Environmental Pdwer

Corporation in the original amount of $161000 Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.101 to

the Registrants Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31 2002 as filed with

the SEC on March 31 2003 SEC File No 000-15472

10.6 Promissory Note dated April 12 2001 by Joseph Cresci in favor of Environmental Power

Corporation in the original amount of $100000.00 Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.105 to

the Registrants Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31 2002 as filed with

the SEC on March 31 2003 SEC File No 000-15472

10.7 Promissory Note dated July 30 1993 by Donald Livingston in favor of Environmental Power

Corporation in the original amount of $161000 Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.102 to

the Registrants Annual Report on Form 10-K for the
year

ended December 31 2002 filed with

the SEC on March 31 2003 SEC File No 000-15472

10.8 Promissory Note dated December 15 1995 by Donald Livingston in favor of Environmental

Power Corporation in the original amount of $267280.50 Incorporated by reference to

Exhibit 10.103 to the Registrants Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31

2002 as filed with the SEC on March 31 2003 SEC File No 000-15472
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10.9 Promissory Note dated April 12 2001 by Donald Livingston in favor of Environmental Power

Corporation in the original amount of $100000.00 Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.106 to

the Registrants Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31 2002 SEC File

No 000-15472

10.10 Promissory Note dated September 1997 by Robert Weisberg in favor of Environmental Power

Corporation in the original amount of $48575.00 Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.104 to

the Registrants Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31 2002 as filed with

the SEC on March 31 2003 SEC File No 000-15472

10.11 1993 Director Option Plan Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 4.3 to the Registrants

Registration Statement on Form S-8 SEC File No 33-70078

10.12 Restated 2001 Stock Incentive Plan Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.50 to the Registrants

Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31 2004 as filed with the SEC on

March 31 2005 SEC File No 001-32393

10.13 Restated 2002 Director Option Plan Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.51 to the Registrants

Annual Report on Form 10-K for the
year

ended December 31 2004 as filed with the SEC on

March 31 2005 SEC File No 001-32393

10.14 Form of Non-Incentive Stock Option Agreement for option grants under the Restated 2002

Director Option Plan Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.79 to the Registrants Registration

Statement on Form S-2 SEC File No 333-128863

10.15 2005 Equity Incentive Plan Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1 to the Registrants

Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the quarter ended June 30 2005 as filed with the SEC on

August 12 2005 SEC File No 001-32393

10.16 2006 Equity Incentive Plan as amended Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1 to the

Registrants Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the quarter ended September 30 2007 as filed

with the Securities and Exchange Commission on November 14 2007 SEC File No 001-32393

10.17 Form of Incentive Stock Option Agreement under the 2006 Equity Incentive Plan Incorporated by

reference to Exhibit 10.3 to the Registrants Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the quarter ended

June 30 2006 as filed with the SEC on August 14 2006 SEC File No 001-32393

10.18 Form of Non-Statutory Stock Option Agreement under the 2006 Equity Incentive Plan

Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.4 to the Registrants Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for

the quarter ended June 30 2006 as filed with the SEC on August 14 2006 SEC File

No 001-32393

10.19 Form of Stock Appreciation Right Agreement under the 2005 Equity Incentive Plan and 2006

Equity Incentive Plan Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.2 to the Registrants Quarterly

Report on Form l0-Q for the quarter ended June 30 2007 as filed with the SEC on August 13

2007SEC File No 00 1-32393

10.20 Form of Stock Appreciation Right Agreement for Non-Employee Directors under the 2006 Equity
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File No 001-32393

10.21 2006 Director Option Plan Incorporated by reference to Appendix to the Registrants definitive
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of Stockholders as filed with the SEC on April 2006 SEC File No 00 1-32393

10.22 Form of Non-Statutory Stock Option Agreement under the 2006 Director Option Plan

Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.5 to the Registrants Quarterly Report on Form 0Q for

the quarter ended June 30 2006 as filed with the SEC on August 14 2006 SEC File

No 001-32393
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10.23 Amended and Restated Non-Statutory Stock Option Agreement dated as of March 29 2004

between the Registrant and Kamlesh Tejwani Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 4.08 to the

Registrants Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31 2003 as filed with the

SEC on March 30 2004 SEC File No 001-32393

10.24 Amended and Restated Non-Statutory Stock Option Agreement dated August 24 2004 between

the Registrant and Joseph Cresci Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 4.9 to the Registrants

Registration Statement on Form S-8 filed with the SEC on August 24 2004 SEC File

No 333-118521

10.25 Non-Statutory Stock Option Agreement granted under the Registrants 2005 Equity Incentive

Plan dated August 11 2005 between the Registrant and Joseph Cresci Incorporated by

reference to Exhibit 10.82 to the Registrants Registration Statement on Form S-2 SEC File

No 333-128863

10.26 Reserved

10.27 2008 Base Salaries for Named Executive Officers

10.28 Amended and Restated Non-Statutory Stock Option Agreement granted under the Registrants

Restated 2001 Stock Incentive Plan dated June 29 2005 between the Registrant and Steven

Kessner Incorporated by reference to Ethibit 10.11 to the Registrants Quarterly Repart on
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SEC File No 00 1-32393

10.29 Summary of Non-Employee Director Compensation

10.30 Employment Agreement dated July 12 2006 between the Registrant and Richard Kessel

Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1 to the Registrants Current Report on Form 8-K dated

July 12 2006 as filed with the SEC on July 18 2006 SEC File No 00 1-32393

10.3 Non-Statutory Stock Option Agreement dated July 18 2006 between the Registrant and

Richard Kessel Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.2 to the Registrants Current Report on

Form 8-K dated July 12 2006 as filed with the SEC on July 18 2006 SEC File No 001-32393

10.32 Indemnification Agreement dated July 12 2006 between the Registrant and Richard Kessel

Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.4 to the Registrants Current Report on Form 8-K dated

July 12 2006 as filed with the SEC on July 18 2006 SEC File No 001-32393

10.33 Employment Offer Letter dated October 11 2006 between the Registrant and Dennis Haines

Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1 to the Registrants Current Report on Form 8-K dated

October II 2006 as filed with the SEC on October 16 2006 SEC File No 001-32393

10.34 Employment Offer Letter dated May 2007 between the Registrant and Michael Thomas

Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1 to the Registrants Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for

the quarter ended June 30 2007 as filed with the SEC on August 13 2007 SEC File

No 00 1-32393

10.35 Form of Common Stock Warrant to purchase 100000 shares of Common Stock at an exercise

price of $6.33 per
share issued to Ladenburg Thalmann Co Inc in connection with the
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Registrants Registration Statement on Form S-2 SEC File No 333-121572

10.36 Reserved

10.37 Business Development Agreement dated October 23 2006 between the Registrant Microgy Inc

and Cargill Incorporated Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1 to the Registrants Current

Report on Form 8-K dated October 23 2006 as filed with the SEC on October 26 2006 SEC
File No 00 1-32393

10.38 Form of Warrant to Purchase Shares of Common Stock to he issued to Cargill Incorporated
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10.39 Form of Subscription Agreement for the participants in the Registrants private placement of its

Series 9% Cumulative Convertible Preferred Stock and Common Stock Warrants in November

2006 the November 2006 Private Placement Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.2 to the

Registrants Current Report on Form 8-K dated October 23 2006 as filed with the SEC on

October 26 2006 SEC File No 00 1-32393

10.40 Form of Warrant to Purchase Shares of Common Stock issued in the November 2006 Private

Placement Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 99.3 to the Registrants Current Report on Form 8-K
dated October 23 2006 as filed with the SEC on October 26 2006 SEC File No 001-32393

10.41 Loan Agreement dated as of October 2006 between Microgy Holdings LLC and the Gulf

Coast Industrial Development Authority Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1 to the
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November 14 2006 SEC File No 001-32393

10.49 Trust Indenture dated as of October 2006 between the Gulf Coast Industrial Development

Authority and Wells Fargo Bank National Association as Trustee Incorporated by reference to

Exhibit 10.2 to the Registrants Current Report on Form 8-K dated November 2006 as filed

with the SEC on November 14 2006 SEC File No 00 1-32393

10.42 Guarantee Agreement dated as of October 2006 among Microgy Holdings LLC MST
Production Ltd MST GP LLC MST Estates LLC Mission Biogas L.L.C Hereford Biogas

L.L.C and Rio Leche Estates L.L.C on the one hand and Wells Fargo Bank National

Association as Trustee on the other hand Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.3 to the

Registrants Current Report on Form 8-K dated November 2006 as filed with the SEC on

November 14 2006 SEC File No 00 1-32393

10.43 Collateral Trust Agreement dated as of October 2006 among Microgy Holdings LLC MST
Production Ltd MST GP LLC MST Estates LLC Mission Biogas L.L.C Hereford Biogas

L.L.C and Rio Leche Estates L.L.C on the one hand and Wells Fargo Bank National

Association as Trustee on the other hand Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.4 to the

Registrants Current Report on Form 8-K dated November 2006 as filed with the SEC on

November 14 2006 SEC File No 001-32393

10.44 Support Agreement dated as of October 2006 among Environmental Power Corporation and

Microgy Holdings LLC on the one hand and Wells Fargo Bank National Association as
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November 14 2006 SEC File No 00 1-32393
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by reference to Exhibit 10.10 to the Registrants Current Report on Form 8-K dated November

2006 as filed with the SEC on November 14 2006 SEC File No 00 1-32393
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EXPLANATORY NOTE

This amendment on Form 0-KJA to the Annual Report of Environmental Power
Corporation on Form 10-K

for the fiscal year ended December 31 2008 the Annual Report of Environmental Power Corporation weus the Company or EPC filed on March 16 2009 with the Securities and Exchange Commission theSEC is being filed solely for the purpose of including information that was to be incorporated by reference
from the Companys definitive proxy statement pursuant to Regulation 14A of the Securities and Exchange Act
of 1934 The Company has determined that it will not file its proxy statement within 120 days of its fiscal yearended December 31 2008 and is therefore amending and restating in their entirety Items 10 11 12 13 and 14
of Part III of the Annual Report In addition in connection with the filing of this Amendment and pursuant to
Rules 3a- 14a or 5d- 14a under the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 we are including with this Amendment
certain

currently dated certifications

Except as described above no other amendments are being made to the Annual Report This Form 10-K/A
does not reflect events occurring after the March 16 2009 filing of our Annual Report and does not modify or
update the disclosure contained in the Annual Report in any way other than as required to reflect the amendments
discussed above and reflected below
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PART III

Item 10 Directors Executive Officers and Corporate Governance

Directors

Roger Ballentine age 46 has been the President and principal consultant of Green Strategies Inc an

energy
and environmental policy consulting firm since February 2001 Previously Mr Ballentine served in the

Clinton Administration serving from 1999 until early 2001 as Chairman of the White House Climate Change

Task Force and Deputy Assistant to the President for Environmental Initiatives and from 1998 to 1999 as

Special Assistant to the President for Legislative Affairs Prior to that time Mr Ballentine was partner with the

Washington D.C law firm Patton Boggs L.L.P Mr Ballentine is member of the boards of directors of the

American Council on Renewable Energy the Biomass Energy Research Center the Solar Electric Light Fund

and the American Bird Conservancy all of which are non-profit organizations Mr Ballentine received B.A in

Economics magna cum laude from the University of Connecticut and J.D cum laude from Harvard Law

School In 2008 Mr Ballentine was visiting lecturer at the Harvard Law School

John Cooper age 61 has been director since 2003 Since February 2003 he has been President of

Finance of Energy Advisory Services LLC financial structuring and energy consulting group Since 2004

Mr Cooper has been principal director and Chief Financial Officer of Ocean Renewable Power Company

LLC venture developing technology and projects to produce electric power from tidal and open ocean currents

Prior to 2002 Mr Cooper was Senior Vice President and Chief Financial Officer of PGE National Energy

Group and predecessor companies where he oversaw all aspects of the structuring and arranging of financing

for the construction and acquisition of 8500 MW of fossil hydro and renewable electric generating projects and

gas pipelines During his 14 year tenure these financings were awarded 10 deal of the year citations

Previously he spent eight years
with Bechtel Financing Services Inc where he was responsible for structuring

and arranging financing for large infrastructure and energy projects He spent three years as chief financial

officer of European oil shipping banking and venture capital group
in Geneva Switzerland He is currently

Director of MachGen LLC SkyFuel LLC Ocean Renewable Power Company LLC and an advisory director of

Republic Financial Corporations private equity group Mr Cooper holds bachelors degree from Trinity

College Connecticut masters degree in development economics and international studies from the Johns

Hopkins Nitze School of Advanced International Studies and masters degree in finance from the Kellogg

Graduate School of Management at Northwestern University

Joseph Cresci age 66 is founder of our company and has served as our Chairman since its inception in

1982 and as Chief Executive Officer from 1982 to July 2003 Mr Crescis role as Chairman became

non-executive position in June 2006 and he retired from employment with our company in September 2006

Mr Cresci now serves as an independent consultant in the area of energy project development Prior to founding

Environmental Power Mr Cresci had held other senior management positions including CEO/Owner of

distribution business and PresidentlCOO of subsidiary of New York Stock Exchange listed company

Mr Cresci holds an A.B degree from Princeton University and law degree from Cornell Law School and was

member of the Pennsylvania and Massachusetts bars

Lon Hatamiya age 50 has been Director of Navigant Consulting Inc publicly traded specialized

independent consulting firm providing litigation financial healthcare energy and operational consulting services

to government agencies legal counsel and large companies since July 2007 From January 2004 to July 2007

Mr Hatamiya was Director of LEGC LLC an international expert consulting firm serving businesses and

public agencies specializing in economic analysis and development intellectual property valuation international

trade and related matters From December 2003 to March 2004 he was an advisor to Declare Yourself

non-profit non-partisan organization focused on motivating young voters From January 1999 to November

2003 Mr Hatamiya was Secretary of the State of Californias Technology Trade and Commerce Agency and

Chairman of the Board of the California Infrastructure and Economic Development Bank From September 1993

to January 1999 Mr Hatamiya held various positions in the United States Department of Agriculture including

being Vice President of the Credit Commodity Corporation and Administrator of the Agricultural Marketing



Service and the Foreign Agricultural Service He also practiced law with the international firm of Orrick

Herrington and Sutcliffe Mr Hatamiya holds B.A in Economics from Harvard University an M.B.A in

International Business and Entrepreneurial Studies from the UCLA Anderson Graduate School of Management
and J.D from the UCLA School of Law

Richard Kessel age 59 has been our President and Chief Executive Officer since July 2006 From

October 2003 to July 2006 Mr Kessel was President and Chief Executive Officer of Bedford Partner

consulting firm assisting private equity firms in acquiring energy water waste and other service related

enterprises From July 2002 to September 30 2003 Mr Kessel served as the President and Chief Eecutive
Officer for North America and Senior Vice President of Suez Environment an international compapy focused

on water wastewater and waste services The North American operations overseen by Mr Kessel were

comprised of five companies with over 9200 employees $1.3 billion in annual revenues and $1.5 billIon in

assets Mr Kessel served as President and Chief Executive Officer of Trigen Energy Corporation an energy

services company with $1 billion in assets $533 million in annual revenue and 34 operating facilities 22

states from April 2000 to June 30 2002 after serving as its Executive Vice President and Chief Operating

Officer from December 1993 to March 31 2000 Previously Mr Kessel was President and Chief Executive

Officer of United Thermal Corporation acquired by Trigen which owned and operated the district
energy

systems in Baltimore Boston Philadelphia and St Louis and Chief Operating Officer of Sithe Energies Inc

developer of independent power projects in the United States and global markets Mr Kessel serves on the board

of directors of ISO New England Inc the operator of the New England regions bulk power system and

wholesale electricity markets Mr Kessel holds B.S in electrical engineering from Manhattan College

completed the course work for masters in finance from New York Universitys Stern School of Business and

received an advanced management degree from the Wharton School of Business Executive Program We are

required by the terms of Mr Kessel employment agreement to nominate him for election as director at each

annual meeting of stockholders held during his tenure as President and Chief Executive Officer

Steven Kessner age 56 has been the Chairman of the Board and President of The R.E Group since 1981 In

this capacity Mr Kessner has overseen the management and operation of the various real estate holdiiig

companies and construction and management companies of which The R.E Group is the parent Mr Iessner is

the founder of Uncle Steves Camp non-profit organization for underprivileged children Mr Kessnr has

served on various non-profit boards and has been volunteer fundraiser for numerous organizations th4roughout

his career Mr Kessner holds B.S in Economics from Dartmouth College and served as President of his

Dartmouth College class

August Schumacher Jr age 69 has been director since 2002 Since January 2003 Mr Schunacher has

served as consultant to W.K Kellogg Foundation consultant advisor to SJH Company Inc and

development advisor to Cantera Partners LLC From 2001 to 2006 Mr Schumacher directed the Washington

office of the SJH Company Inc Mr Schumacher served as the third-highest ranking official in the United

States Department of Agriculture in the Farm and Foreign Agricultural Service from 1997 to 2001 During this

time he was also President of the USDAs Commodity Credit Corporation Prior to his appointment he directed

the Departments Foreign Agricultural Service Earlier Mr Schumacher was the Senior Agricultural Project

Manager for World Bank and also served as the Commissioner of Food and Agriculture for the Commbnwealth

of Massachusetts Mr Schumacher is currently member of the 21st Century Sustainable Agriculture Task Force

of the National Academy of Sciences In 2007 Mr Schumacher among others oversaw the preparation of the

Task Force Report of the Chicago Council of Global Affairs titled Modernizing Americas Food andFarm

Policy Vision for New Direction Mr Schumacher is also chairman of the Wholesome Wave Foundation of

Westport Connecticut non-profit organization and serves on the boards of FreshFarm Markets of Washington

D.C and GrainPro LLC of Concord Massachusetts privately held company

Kamlesh Tejwani age 48 has been our non-executive Vice Chairman since July 2006 Since July 2008
Mr Tejwani has served as Chairman and Chief Executive Officer of AllGreen Energy Pte Ltd company

focused on the development of renewable energy projects in India designed to generate electricity from biomass



From July 2003 to July 2006 Mr Tejwani served as our President and Chief Executive Officer Mr Tejwani
served as President of Target Capital Corporation private equity firm from May 1996 to June 2003 His

responsibilities included structuring and implementing investments for an offshore investment fund and assisting

operating companies in operational and strategic planning From April 1990 until December 1995 he served as

the Chairman and Chief Executive Officer of Air-Cure Technologies Inc manufacturer and marketer of air

pollution control systems

Robert Weisberg age 62 has been director since 1994 From 2004 to 2008 Mr Weisberg was
Chairman and CEO of Oceans Casino Cruises Inc an operator of casino cruise ships From 1996 to 2004 he

was President and Chief Executive Officer of Alco Financial Services LLC commercial asset-based lending

company Mr Weisberg was the former President and Chief Executive Officer of Pro-Care Financial Group Inc
and has held the positions of President and CEO of Fleet Credit Corporation and Executive Vice-President of

Fleet Financial Group graduate of Northeastern University he received the Executive Award from joint

program sponsored by Williams College and the Harvard Graduate School of Business Past Chairman and
President of the Commercial Finance Association he is presently member of the Commercial Finance

Associations Education Foundation Mr Weisberg has served on numerous other public corporate and

non-profit community boards

Executive Officers

Information regarding our executive officers may be found under the caption Executive Officers of the

Registrant appearing at the end of Part of our Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31
2008 to which this Form 10-K/A relates Such information is incorporated herein by reference

Audit Committee

We have separately designated standing Audit Committee established in accordance with

Section 3a58A of the Exchange Act The members of the Audit Committee for 2008 were Messrs Cooper
Hatamiya and Ballentine Mr Cooper serves as chair of the Audit Committee

Audit Committee Financial Expert

The Board of Directors has determined that John Cooper is and has designated Mr Cooper as the

Audit Committee Financial Expert as defined by Item 407d5ii of Regulation S-K of the Exchange Act and
determined that he is independent within the meaning of Item 407a of Regulation S-K of the Exchange Act

Director Nominees

The process followed by the Nominating and Corporate Governance Committee to identify and evaluate

director candidates includes requests to Board members and others for recommendations meetings from time to

time to evaluate biographical information and background material relating to potential candidates and interviews
of selected candidates by members of the Committee and the Board of Directors

In considering whether to recommend
any particular candidate for inclusion in the Board of Directors slate

of recommended director nominees the Nominating and Corporate Governance Committee applies certain

criteria including

the candidates honesty integrity and commitment to high ethical standards

demonstrated financial and business expertise and experience

understanding of our company its business and its industry

actual or potential conflicts of interest and

the ability to act in the interests of all stockholders



The Nominating and Corporate Governance Committee does not assign specific weights to particular

criteria and no particular criterion is prerequisite for each prospective nominee We believe that the

backgrounds and qualifications of our directors considered as group should provide significant breadth of

experience knowledge and abilities that will allow our Board of Directors to fulfill its responsibilities

The Nominating and Corporate Governance Committee will consider director candidates recommended by
stockholders or groups of stockholders who have owned more than 5% of our common stock for at least year as

of the date the recommendation is made Stockholders may recommend individuals to the Nominating and

Corporate Governance Committee for consideration as potential director candidates by submitting their names

together with appropriate biographical information and background materials and statement as to whether the

stockholder or group of stockholders making the recommendation has beneficially owned more than 5% of our

common stock for at least
year as of the date such recommendation is made to the Nominating and Corporate

Governance Committee do Corporate Secretary Environmental Power Corporation 120 White Plains Road 6th

Floor Tarrytown New York 10591 Assuming that appropriate biographical and background material has been

provided on timely basis the Committee will evaluate stockholder-recommended candidates by following

substantially the same process and applying substantially the same criteria as it follows for candidates submitted

by others

Section 16a Beneficial Ownership Reporting Compliance

Section 16a of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 requires our directors executive officers and the

holders of more than 10% of our common stock to file with the SEC initial reports of ownership of our common
stock and other equity securities on Form and reports of changes in such ownership on Form or Form

Officers directors and 10% stockholders are required by SEC regulations to furnish us with copies of all

Section 16a forms they file To our knowledge based solely upon review of the copies of such forms

furnished to us for the year ended December 31 2008 and the information provided to us by those persons

required to file such reports no such person failed to file the forms required by Section 16a of the Exchange

Act on timely basis except as follows

Each of Messrs Ballentine Cooper Cresci Hatamiya Kessner Schumacher Tejwani and Weisberg

filed Form on June 17 2008 with respect to their annual director stock appreciation right grants on

June 112008

Mr Cooper filed Form on September 19 2008 with respect to his purchase of 2500 shares of our

common stock on September 12 2008

Mr Haines filed Form on November 17 2008 with respect to his purchase of 10000 shares of our

common stock on November 12 2008

Mr Kessner filed Form on November 17 2008 with respect to the purchase of 75000 shares of our

common stock by RE Funding LLC an entity controlled by him on November 12 2008

Code of Ethics

We have adopted code of business conduct and ethics that applies to our directors officers including our

principal executive officer principal financial officer principal accounting officer or controller or persons

performing similar functions as well as our employees copy of our code of business conduct and ethics is

available on our website at www.environmentalpower.com under Investor RelationsCorporate Governance

We intend to post on our website all disclosures that are required by applicable law the rules of the Securities

and Exchange Commission or NASDAQ listing standards concerning any amendment to or waiver from our

code of business conduct and ethics



Item 11 Executive Compensation

INFORMATION ABOUT EXECUTIVE AND DIRECTOR COMPENSATION

Compensation Discussion and Analysis

This compensation discussion describes the material elements of compensation for the fiscal
year ending

December 31 2008 that was awarded to earned by or paid to each of our current and former executive officers

identified in the Summary Compensation Table below as our named executive officers This compensation

discussion primarily focuses on the last completed fiscal year but we also describe certain compensation actions

taken before or after the last completed fiscal year to enhance the understanding of this disclosure

The Compensation Committee of our Board of Directors oversees our executive compensation program In

this role the Compensation Committee reviews and approves or recommends for approval by the full Board all

compensation decisions relating to our executive officers The Committee also oversees our stock-based

compensation plans and programs

Objectives and Philosophy of Our Executive Compensation Program

The objective of our executive compensation program is to align the interests of management with the

interests of stockholders by tying substantial portion of overall compensation opportunities provided to

executive officers to the achievement of business objectives and individual performance Our policy is to offer

competitive compensation packages that will permit us to attract and retain individuals with superior abilities

and to motivate and reward such individuals on the basis of corporate performance in an appropriate fashion that

is in the long-term interests of Environmental Power and its stockholders

Our company continues to develop As it does we have been working to develop formal criteria and

programs to reward executive officers based upon an assessment of corporate business-unit and individual

performance As result of these efforts in March 2008 our Compensation Committee adopted our Annual

Incentive Management Plan and our Long-Term Incentive Plan in which our executive officers participate in

addition to various other compensation plans for other employees other than our executive officers The Annual

Incentive Management Plan and the Long-Term Incentive Plan are described in more detail below Pursuant to

these plans we expect to evaluate corporate- and business unit-performance by reviewing the extent to which

strategic and business-plan goals are met including such factors as maintaining capital and operating budgets and

timely accomplishment of business-development objectives as applicable We expect to evaluate individual

performance by reviewing attainment of specified personal objectives and the degree to which teamwork and our

other values are fostered

As result of our recent efforts to formalize compensation practices we have committed to the following

compensation philosophy to the extent consistent with financial resources

We will strive to provide competitive compensation programs that will help to attract highly qualified

individuals necessary to grow our company and then to retain and motivate these individuals to achieve

higher levels of performance

Compensation programs will emphasize pay-for-performance concept in which an individuals

future compensation growth and career advancement are dependent upon maintaining and exceeding our

recognized levels of quality and performance while supporting our strategic goals Future monetary

growth is dependent upon company performance as well as individual performance

We will provide compensation package consisting of base salary incentives and benefits that are

consistent with similar positions in recognized competitors and start-up/growth companies with each

component addressing individual team and company performance competitive conditions and our



overall financial performance Our goal is to attract the most qualified applicants to fuel our growth

Future salary increases will be based on an individuals evaluated performance against pre-established

objectives as well as our performance and ability to pay

Base salary programs will be will be targeted at market 50th percentile and total cash compensation

will be targeted aggressive to market up to the 75th percentile in order to recognize our employees

direct impact on our business goals

Our core belief is that the opportunity to earn competitive incentives will help drive the focus of

business Competitive incentive compensation will be based upon the achievement of expected

performance targets with upside potential tied to exceptional contribution and surpassing goals

Measurable performance goals and objectives will be developed by our executive management team and

approved by the Compensation Committee of the Board of Directors consistent with our identified

business strategies and financial objectives

We will provide quality and supportive work environment with challenging career opportunities and

the necessary resources to enhance growth in order to attract retain and motivate highly qualified and

experienced staff Compensation programs shall encourage employees to maximize their capabilities

through personal growth and job development in order to foster culture that is team focused and

rewards both individual and business success

This compensation philosophy will apply to all employees including our executive officers We believe that

this compensation philosophy will serve as the basis for the development of new or modified compensation

programs and will be used as tool to help meet identified needs relating to motivation and retention In practice

we expect that the implementation of this philosophy will have the following implications

The marketplace must be considered with regard to establishing competitive compensation levels

including base salary benefits and incentives See the discussion under Comparative Compensation

Review Process and Benchmarking below

Employees should have the ability to earn total cash compensation above market levels based on

exceptional performance Incentive payouts where applicable must be determined in manner that is

ethical and is reflective of performance achieved against objective measures

We must develop and maintain clear salary administration plan documents to ensure the consistent and

proper application of all programs

Except for contractual obligations performance should be the primary determinant of salary increases

and incentive bonuses Increases should be based on objective quantifiable performance measures

where possible with minor portion based on discretionary factors so that subjectivity is limited

Only those employees whose performance meets acceptable standards will receive increases and the

size of the increase will be dependent upon the individuals evaluated performance

Specific measurable performance criteria for each job must be set on an annual basis consistent with

our strategic corporate objectives and the achievement of results for each criteria must be tracked in

order to improve accountability for end results due to the individuals ability to directly affect the

amount of his/her salary increases

formal performance appraisal tool must be maintained that offers uniform dependable evaluations

that outline the desired performance expectations and accurately reflects each employees contribution

and performance and which is monitored to make sure the program is consistently applied and equitable

to all employees

Management must be regularly trained in the use of the performance evaluation program and be held

accountable for completing evaluations both accurately and on timely basis



Comparative Compensation Review Process and Benchmarking

We do not believe that compensation levels should be controlled by benchmarking However we believe

that information regarding pay practices at other companies is useful in two respects First our compensation

practices need to be competitive in the marketplace Second marketplace information is one of the many factors

that we consider in assessing the reasonableness of compensation Accordingly from time to time we have

compared our compensation packagesincluding levels components and mix of compensation typeswith
those of other companies in the alternative energy industry through reviews of survey data and information

gleaned from filings of publicly traded companies and through information compiled and analyzed by others

Going forward we intend to compare the compensation of our employees to the marketplace within two specific

peer groups alternative energy energy development and production and water/wastewater treatment companies

and start-up and emerging bio-technology companies and to perform these comparisons at least
every two or

three years In addition we intend to identify peer group and maintain updated job descriptions for each unique

job in order to benchmark positions appropriately

While such information may be useful guide for comparative purposes we believe that successful

compensation program also requires the application of judgment and subjective determinations of individual

performance Review of this information and these factors forms the basis of managements compensation

recommendations to the Compensation Committee and the Committees decision-making

Use of Consultants

The Compensation Committees charter grants it the authority to retain outside advisors including

compensation consultants and approve their compensation Environmental Power is obligated to pay the

Compensation Committees advisors and consultants Although management is involved in coordinating with

these advisors with respect to the provision of their services these advisors and consultants report directly to the

Compensation Committee With respect to non-employee director compensation the full Board of Directors has

acted directly

Thus in 2007 the Compensation Committee and management sought the advice of outside counsel and also

engaged Brian Foley Company Inc an independent executive compensation consulting firm to advise the

Committee on certain matters relating to stock-based compensation Also in 2007 the Nominating and Corporate

Governance Committee engaged Heidrick Struggles leading executive search firm to assist it in evaluating

best practices for corporate governance including such matters as board composition director stock ownership

guidelines and related matters

In February 2008 the Compensation Committee engaged Harry Schum an independent compensation

consultant to assist the Compensation Committee and management in the formulation of more formal incentive

compensation programs for our executive officers as well as all other full-time employees

Elements of Executive Compensation

Compensation for our executives has generally consisted of the following elements

base salary

bonuses

long-term incentive compensation via stock-based awards

health dental life and disability insurance and other traditional employee benefits and executive

perquisites and

severance and change-in-control arrangements



Historically we have not had any formal policy or target for allocating compensation between long-term

and short-term compensation between cash and non-cash compensation or among the different forms of

non-cash compensation Instead the Compensation Committee with input as requested from senior management

has determined subjectively what it believes to be the appropriate level and mix of the various compensation

components The mix of compensation has also been impacted in many cases by the course of negotiations with

the executive in question in connection with his hiring Ultimately the Compensation Committees objective in

allocating between annual and long-term compensation opportunities is to ensure adequate base compensation to

attract and retain personnel while providing incentives to maximize long-term value for our Company and its

stockholders Therefore we have provided cash compensation in the form of base salary to meet estimated

competitive salary norms and to the extent our cash position has permitted have rewarded individual

performance on an annual basis in the form of bonus compensation We provide non-cash compensation

principally in the form of equity-based grants such as stock options and more recently stock appreciation rights

and restricted stock awards which are intended to create incentives for the achievement both of specific

objectives andlor long-term strategic goals

In March 2008 the Compensation Committee acting upon the recommendations of management and

Mr Schum adopted the compensation philosophy described above In addition as part of its effort to formalize

our compensation practices generally including with respect to our executives the Compensation Committee

adopted our Annual Incentive Management Plan and Long-Term Incentive Plan

The purpose of the Annual Incentive Management Plan is to align the interests of management with

corporate performance goals by focusing management on the achievement of annual financial and operational

objectives with competitive financial incentives Full-time employees not participating in other incentive

programs will be eligible under the plan with the extent of participation to be determined by position in our

company Pursuant to the plan the board of directors in cooperation with our executive team will set annual

corporate financial objectives Individual performance will also be considered and threshold and maximum

levels of performance will also be set Under the plan our Chief Executive Officer will have target award of

50% of base salary other executive officers will have target awards of 35% of base salary Our Chief Executive

Officers award will be based 100% on the achievement of corporate goals the other executive officers awards

will be based 75% on the achievement of corporate goals and 25% on individual performance Particular

corporate objectives will be assigned relative weight as may also be the case with individual performance

goals Awards under the plan will be based on the overall level of achievement of both corporate and individual

goals and will be paid following the audit of year-end financials Participants in the plan must be employed at

the time of payout to receive an award The plan can be modified or terminated at any time is strictly guideline

and is not binding on us The Compensation Committee will determine awards to our Chief Executive Officer

and other executives

The Long-Term Incentive Plan was adopted pursuant to the Compensation Committees discretion under

our existing 2005 Equity Incentive Plan and 2006 Equity Incentive Plan to set the terms and amounts of awards

under such plans subject to the limitations set forth in such plans The purpose of this plan is to provide long-

term incentive plan based on the financial growth of our company to foster teamwork and an entrepreneurial

spirit among participants and to provide long-term compensation tool to motivate reward and retain

participants Our Chief Executive Officer our other executive officers and those additional persons designed by

our Chief Executive Officer are eligible to participate in the Long-Term Incentive Plan Awards pursuant to the

plan are expected to be made annually and may be combination of different long-term vehicles including

restricted stock awards incentive stock options and stock appreciation rights based upon guidelines considered

by the Compensation Committee on an annual basis Such awards will be made under our 2005 Equity Incentive

Plan or 2006 Equity Incentive Plan and awards pursuant to the Long-Term Incentive Plan will be subject to the

terms the equity incentive plan under which they are granted including any
limitations on awards set forth

therein Awards pursuant to the plan generally will vest in three substantially equal annual installments beginning

on the first anniversary of the grant date The value of such awards will be determined based on the fair market

value at the time of grant utilizing modified Black-Scholes methodology where appropriate The target value



of each annual award as percentage of base salary will be established by the Compensation Committee for our

Chief Executive Officer will be 30% for the other executive officers and will be discretionary for any other

employees designated for participation in the plan by our Chief Executive Officer All awards will vest in full

upon the death of total disability of participant or upon change in control of our company and will be

forfeited whether or not vested upon any termination for cause Awards vesting upon death or disability are to

be paid or exercised within 12 months following such event The Long-Term Incentive Plan can be modified or

terminated at any time is strictly guideline and is not binding on us The Compensation Committee will

determine awards to our Chief Executive Officer and other executives

Base Salary Salary for our executives is generally set by reviewing compensation levels for comparable

positions in the market as described above and the historical compensation levels of our executives Salaries

may then be adjusted from time to time based upon market changes actual corporate and individual performance

and promotions or changes in responsibilities Base salaries and other elements of compensation may also be

mandated by the terms of employment and other agreements entered into with our executives as described under

Information about Executive and Director CompensationEmployment and Severance Agreements In such

cases base salaries have at first been determined by arms-length negotiations with these executives generally in

connection with their initial hiring Going forward we will continue to seek to set salaries that are competitive

with the marketplace recognizing the skill and experience of each executive his or her level of performance and

his or her responsibilities as compared to similarly situated employees at competing firms While it will be our

primary objective to offer and maintain base salaries that are competitive with the marketplace we will reserve

the right to pay premium base salaries to secure the services of individuals with certain skill sets or to fill

positions in key markets that are vital to our business objectives

Bonuses Bonuses as well as any
annual increases in salaries are expected to be based on actual corporate

and individual performance compared to targeted performance criteria and various subjective performance

criteria Given what we believe are competitive base salaries as well as our stage of development and cash

position we generally have not paid cash bonuses to our top executives from 2002 through 2006 We did

however pay bonuses to our executives in respect of 2007 based on their individual performance We have not

yet determined what bonuses if any will be paid in respect of 2008 Going forward we expect to pay bonuses

based upon criteria and corporate and individual performance goals established in accordance with the Annual

Incentive Management Plan described above subject to the availability of cash resources to do so The objective

of the Annual Incentive Management Plan will be to

reward participants for achievement of short term financial and operating plan business goals

establish goals that are challenging but attainable and linked to corporate division and individual

objectives based on the ability of the participant to influence results

leverage award opportunities to incent over-achievement of the operating plan objectives and

Provide competitive cash opportunity versus the marketplace

We intend to communicate the annual incentive opportunities under this plan and the accomplishments

necessary to achieve these incentives to each participating employee early in each plan year Notwithstanding

the adoption of the Annual Incentive Management Plan in early 2008 while specific performance goals for 2008

were initially identified the goal setting process was hampered by quickly changing circumstances and

deteriorating financial market conditions which resulted in shift in the Companys priorities As result

specific performance goals for 2008 were not finalized

Long-Term incentive Compensation via Stock-Based Awards Compensation for executive officers also

includes the long-term incentives afforded by stock options and other equity-based awards Our stock option and

equity-based award program is designed to align the long-term interests of our employees and our stockholders

and assist in the retention of executives The size of stock-based awards is generally intended to reflect the

executives position and the executives expected contributions In 2008 we made stock-based awards in



accordance with the terms of the Long-Term Incentive Plan described above This compensation plan is designed

to accomplish several objectives

focus participants on the strategic plan performance objectives that are critical to the success of the

company over three-year period which objectives are linked to the achievement of business and

financial goals that are designed to create value for shareholders

encourage retention of participants through reward opportunities that require continued service and

encourage teamwork and one company focus by employees regardless of their business unit and

reward sustained contribution for attainment of strategic objectives

As this plan is based on total company strategic results the participation is limited to those whose actidns play

direct role in the long-term success of the company including our executive officer and others designated by our

Chief Executive Officer

Insurance Other Emploee Benefits and Perquisites We maintain broad-based benefits and perq1Jisites that

are provided to all employees including health insurance life and disability insurance dental insurance and

401k plan Under our 401k plan so long as the employee is employed through the last day of the year in

question we generally make matching 401k contribution of 50% of the employees contribution uj to 6% of

the employees salary for the year with maximum matching contribution of $7500 In addition we jrovide

certain perquisites to executives which are generally detailed in their employment agreements or offer letters

Going forward we expect to offer supplemental benefits and perquisites to designated executives whith

supplement broad-based benefit programs The objectives of this supplemental benefits and perquisite program

will be to

Provide executives with competitive benefits and perquisites versus the marketplace

Replace benefits that are restricted due to ERISA andlor Internal Revenue Code limitations

Attract and retain experienced senior executives

Assist executives in accomplishing job responsibilities and

Supplement executives retirement benefits

Severance and Change-in-Control Arrangements Compensation for executive officers also inclu1es

severance and change-in-control arrangements which are generally reflected in the employment agreeients for

such officers These arrangements like other elements of executive compensation are structured with regard to

practices at comparable companies for similarly-situated officers and in manner we believe is likely to attract

and retain high quality executive talent Changes to existing severance arrangements are also sometims

negotiated with departing executives in exchange for transition services and/or general releases The severance

and change-in-control arrangements currently in place with our current executive officers are describeçl in greater

detail in this section under the headings Employment and Severance Arrangements Summaryof

Potential Payments Upon Termination or Change of Control and Summaryof Actual Payments Upon

Termination of Employment

Other Corporate Policies Relating to Executive Compensation

Role of Executive Officers in Determining or Recommending Executive and Director Cornpensatilon

Management plays an important role in support of the Compensation Committees determination of executive

compensation The most significant aspects
of managements role are

evaluating key-employee performance

recommending business performance targets
and objectives and

recommending salary levels and stock-based awards
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Our President and Chief Executive Officer assists the chair of the Compensation Committee in establishing the

agenda for Conmiittee meetings Management also prepares meeting information for each Compensation Committee

meeting At the Committees request our President and Chief Executive Officer also participates in Compensation

Committee meetings to provide input if and as sought by the Committee including but not limited to

background information regarding our strategic objectives and progress toward the attainment of those

objectives

information on the performance of the senior executive officers and

compensation recommendations as to senior executive officers other than the Chief Executive Officer

Ultimately however all executive compensation decisions are made or recommended to the Board of

Directors by the Compensation Committee which makes such decisions and recommendations after considering

managements recommendations available market data and in some cases input from outside advisors to the

Committee In doing so the Committee
engages in deliberations in executive session without the

presence of the

Chief Executive Officer or any other members of management

The forms and amounts of non-employee director compensation in 2008 were unchanged from those set in

2007 which were determined by the full Board of Directors following review of data provided by Heidrick

Struggles as described above However in September 2008 the Board unanimously directed management to

defer payment of cash compensation due to Board members until further notice in order to conserve cash We
have been accruing these amounts as they become due

Impact of Tax Treatment on Compensation Decisions Section 162m of the Internal Revenue Code of

1986 as amended generally disallows tax deduction for compensation in excess of $1.0 million paid to our

chief executive officer and our four other most highly paid executive officers Qualifying performance-based

compensation is not subject to the deduction limitation if specified requirements are met We periodically review

the potential consequences of Section 162m and generally intend to structure our executive compensation to

comply with Section 162m However the Compensation Committee may in its judgment authorize

compensation payments that do not comply with the exemptions in Section 162m when it believes that such

payments are appropriate to attract and retain executive talent

Security Ownership Requirements or Guidelines While we believe it is important for our executives to have

an equity stake in our company in order to help align their interests with those of our stockholders we do not

have
any equity ownership guidelines for our executive officers other than as contemplated by the Long-Term

Incentive Plan We also do not have any equity ownership guidelines for our non-employee directors However
board members and executive officers are encouraged to acquire during open trading windows shares of our

common stock to the extent consistent with their individual economic circumstances and directors and executive

officers have done so
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Discussion of Specific Compensation Arrangements for 2008

On June 2008 the Compensation Committee approved the following compensation arrangements with

our executive officers

Changes to Base Salaries Bonuses

The Compensation Committee approved the following changes to base salaries for the following executive

officers retroactive to May 2008

Name and Title Old Base Salary New Base Salary

Richard Kessel $300000 $318800

President and Chief Executive Officer

Michael Thomas $220000 $227700

Senior Vice President Chief Financial Officer

and Treasurer

Dennis Haines $210000 $221000

Vice President General Counsel and Secretary

The foregoing changes were based upon the factors and compensation philosophy described above In

particular the Compensation Committee considered it important to recognize the contributions of the executive

team collectively in addressing the array of complex commercial and financial matters facing our company and

to remain competitive with other organizations For base pay an annualized growth-rate of 3.5% adjusted

depending upon start-dates was selected for uniform application after input from Mr Schum and discussions

among the Chief Executive Officer and Compensation Committee members

In the case of each executive officer the terms of employment do not specify an assured bonus-amount The

bonus for Mr Kessel was thus set by the Compensation Committee after receiving input from the full board and

the bonuses for the other executive officers were determined by the Compensation Committee followiig

discussions with Mr Kessel Factors influencing the bonus awarded to Mr Kessel included his and the

companys performance in 2007 Mr Kessels then-recently expired options and plans for replacing that equity

component of his compensation It was the sense of the Board and the Compensation Committee that

Mr Kessels bonus should reflect the Boards appreciation for and satisfaction with his service but should also

take into account the equity component of his compensation

Option Grants

The Compensation Committee approved the following options grants under our 2006 Equity Incentive Plan

each of which has an exercise price of $5.52 per share the closing price of the our common stock as reported on

The NASDAQ Capital Market on the date of grant which the Compensation Committee determined to be the fair

market value of share of the our common stock on the date of grant

Name Number of Shares Vesting

Richard Kessel 150000 75000 shares vested immediately

75000 shares vesting on December 31 2008

Dennis Haines 25000 12500 shares vested immediately

12500 shares vesting on December 31 2008

As mentioned above these option grants were intended to replace options with unsatisfied vesting conditions

based on achieving stock price that the Compensation Committee ultimately determined to be unrealistic and

beyond the executives control These option grants are reflected in more detail in the tables below
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Awards under Long-term Incentive Plan

The Compensation Committee also approved combined awards of stock appreciation rights and restricted

stock to the Companys executive officers Pursuant to the guidelines set forth in our 2008 Long-Term Incentive

Plan in the case of Mr Kessel the award reflects value of 65% of his salary in order to assure maximum

alignment with shareholder interests The stock appreciation rights were awarded under the our 2006 Equity

Incentive Plan each of which has an exercise price of $5.52 per share the closing price of the our common stock

as reported on The NASDAQ Capital Market on the date of grant which the Committee determined to be the fair

market value of share of our common stock on the date of grant The Compensation Committee also made

restricted stock awards under our 2006 Equity Incentive Plan at purchase price of $0.01 per share The

Compensation Committee chose vesting-schedule of 50% per year over two-year period commencing as of

May 2008 for both the stock appreciation rights and the restricted stock awards

Number of Shares Number of

Name Subject to SARs Restricted Shares Vesting

Richard Kessel 33278 16500 50% on May 2009

balance on May 2010

Michael Thomas 11665 5000 Same

Dennis Haines 11089 5000 Same

The foregoing awards are reflected in more detail in the tables below

Executive Compensation

Summary Compensation

The following table sets forth information for the fiscal years ended December 31 2008 2007 and 2006

regarding the compensation of our President and Chief Executive Officer our Senior Vice President Chief

Financial Officer and Treasurer and our Vice President General Counsel and Secretary We refer to these

individuals as our named executive officers

SUMMARY COMPENSATION TABLE

Change in

Pension Value

and

Nonqualified

Non-Equity Deferred

Name and Stock Option Incentive Plan Compensation All Other
Principal Position Year Salary Bonus1 Awards2 Awards3 Compensation4 Earningss Compensation6 Total

RichardE Kessel 2008 $312533 $45458 $667267 $42007 $1067265

President and Chief 2007 300000 $100000 917374 38.909 1356283

Executive Officer 2006 137500 578423 6319 722242

and President of

Microgy Inc

MichaelE.Thomas7 2008 225133 13775 129606 28922 397436

Senior Vice 2007 134680 15500 106559 17295 274034

President Chief 2006

Financial Officer and

Treasurer

Dennis Haines 2008 217333 13775 179322 21887 432317

Vice President 2007 210000 22000 91699 20532 344231

General Counsel and 2006 43750 20058 3661 67469

Secretary

We did not pay any bonuses in 2006 Bonus amounts for 2007 are bonuses in respect of services for that year which were paid in 2008

We have not
yet

determined what bonuses if any will be paid in respect of services for 2008

13



We did not make any awards of stock in 2006 or 2007 In 2008 the named executive officers were granted restricted stock aWards

vesting over two years The amounts in the Stock Awards column reflect the dollar amounts recognized as compensation expense in

respect of these awards for financial statement reporting purposes for the fiscal year ended December 31 2008 in accordance with SFAS

123R Please see the table below under the heading Outstanding Equity Awards at Fiscal Year-End for further detail regarding the

restricted stock awards underlying these amounts including the fair market value on the grant date and the number of shares subject to

such awards

The amounts in the Option Awards column reflect the dollar amounts recognized as compensation expense for financial statement

reporting purposes for stock options or stock appreciation rights for the fiscal years ended December 2008 2007 and Decpmber 31

2006 in accordance with SFAS 123R using Black-Scholes option-pricing model employing certain variables and related

assumptions including stock price volatility The amounts shown in this column are therefore projections that do not necesarily reflect

the actual cash compensation to be received by the option holder upon exercise of the option The assumptions we used to calculate these

amounts are discussed in Note to our consolidated financial statements included in our Annual Report on Form 10-K for th year ended

December 31 2008 Please see the table below under the heading Outstanding Equity Awards at Fiscal Year-End for furthr detail

regarding the option awards underlying these amounts including the exercise
price

and the number of shares subject to such options

We did not pay any non-equity incentive plan compensation in 2006 2007 or 2008

We no longer maintain pension plan nor did we maintain any nonqualified deferred compensation plans in 2006 2007 or 008

The amounts in the All Other Compensation column represent the following amounts for the following individuals

Richard Kessel 2008 Automobile expense reimbursement $9000 40 1k corporate matching contribution $770 Medical

insurance premiums $13498 Dental insurance premiums $1972 Life insurance premiuns and

stipend for life insurance $9787 includes amounts to which Mr Kessel was entitled to in 2006 put

which were paid in 2008

2007 Automobile expense reimbursement $13500 includes amounts to which Mr Kessel was entitled in

2006 but which were paid in 2007 401-K corporate matching contribution $7750 Medical
insurance

premiums $9627 Dental insurance premiums $1505 Life insurance premiums and stipehd for life

insurance $6527

2006 Life insurance premium $6319 Mr Kessel is entitled to up to $750 month in reimbirsement
for

automobile lease payments reimbursement for automobile insurance and coverageunder our

medical and dental insurance policies Mr Kessel did not take any of these benefits in 200g

Michael Thomas 2008 Automobile expense reimbursement $9000 40 1k corporate matching contribution $5 Medical

insurance premiums $9825 Dental insurance premiums $1078 Life insurance premiunis and

stipend for life insurance $3519

2007 Automobile expense reimbursement $5625 401k corporate matching contribution $5500 Medical

insurance premiums $5617 Dental insurance premiums $553

Dennis Haines 2008 Automobile expense reimbursement $10125 includes amounts to which Mr Haines was entitled in

2007 and 2006 but which were paid in 2008 Medical insurance premiums $5652 Dental insurance

premiums $1078 Life insurance premiums and stipend for life insurance $5032

2007 Automobile expense reimbursement $9750 includes amounts to which Mr Haines was entitled in

2006 but which were paid in 2007 Medical insurance premiums $4643 Dental
insurane premiums

$1103 Life insurance premiums and stipend for life insurance $5036

2006 Automobile expense reimbursement $2250 Medical insurance premiums $774 Dental insurance

premiums $92 Life insurance premiums $545

Mr Thomas commenced employment in May 2007 Accordingly no information is provided for 2006
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The following table sets forth information regarding each grant of an award made to named executive

officer during the fiscal year ended December 31 2008 under any plan contract authorization or arrangement

pursuant to which cash securities similar instruments or other property may be received

GRANTS OF PLAN-BASED AWARDS

All Other All Other

Stock Option
Estimated Future Estimated Future

Awards Awards Exercise

Non-Fqwty Incentive
Nun ber Nun ber or Base

Plan Awards Plan Awards
Shares of Securities Option of Stock

Grant Stock or Underlying Awards and Option
Name Date Threshold Target Maximum Threshold Target Maximum Units Options $/sh Awards1

RichardE Kessel 6/3/08 1500002 $5.52 $518850

6/3/08 165003 5.52 90915

6/3/08 332784 5.52 109908

Michael Thomas 6/3/08 116655 5.52 38526

6/3/08 50006 5.52 27550

Dennis Haines 6/3/08 250007 5.52 82568

6/3/08 50008 5.52 27550

6/3/08 110899 5.52 36624

The amounts in the Grant Date Fair Value of Stock and Option Awards column for options and SARs reflect the grant date fair value

of each equity award calculated in accordance with SFAS 123R using Black-Scholes option-pricing model employing certain

variables and related assumptions including stock price volatility The amounts shown in this column are therefore projections that do

not necessarily reflect the actual cash compensation to be received by the option holder upon exercise of the option or SAR The

assumptions we used to calculate these amounts are discussed in Note to our consolidated financial statements included in our Annual

Report on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31 2008 The amounts shown in this column for restricted stock awards reflect the

grant date fair value of the award calculated in accordance with SFAS 123R and are projections that do not necessarily reflect the actual

cash compensation to the recipient of the award on the date the award vests or when the underlying shares are sold As of December 31

2008 the closing market price of our common stock was $0.63 per share

Represents shares subject to non-statutory stock option vested as to 75000 shares on the date of grant and vesting as to the remaining

75000 shares on December 31 2008

Represents shares subject to restricted stock award vesting as to 50% of the shares subject thereto on May 2009 with the balance

vesting on May 2010

Represents shares subject to SARs vesting as to 50% of the shares subject thereto on May 2009 with the balance vesting on May

2010

Represents shares subject to SARs vesting as to 50% of the shares subject thereto on May 2009 with the balance vesting on May

2010

Represents shares subject to restricted stock award vesting as to 50% of the shares subject thereto on May 2009 with the balance

vesting on May 2010

Representing shares subject to non-statutory stock option vested as to 12500 shares on the date of grant and vesting as to the

remaining 12500 shares on December 312008

Represents shares subject to restricted stock award vesting as to 50% of the shares subject thereto on May 2009 with the balance

vesting on May 2010

Represents shares subject to SARs vesting as to 50% of the shares subject thereto on May 2009 with the balance vesting on May
2010
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Employment and Severance Arrangements

Employment Agreement with Richard Kessel

On July 12 2006 we entered into an employment agreement with Richard Kessel Mr Kessels

employment agreement provides for the following principal terms

Employment as our President and Chief Executive Officer commencing on July 17 2006 referred to as

the commencement date and appointment to our Board of Directors promptly following the satisfaction

of
any applicable board independence and composition requirements

An initial annual salary of $300000 subject to annual adjustment by the Compensation Committee of

our Board of Directors which salary was increased to $31 8800 effective May 2008

The grant of non-qualified stock options to purchase up to 400000 shares of our common stock as

described below

Eligibility to participate on the same basis as other executives reporting directly to our chief executive

officer in
any

bonus plan adopted by us from time to time subject to the terms of any such plar and

Such medical dental retirement vacation and other benefits as are made available from time to time to

our other similarly-situated employees as well as car allowance comparable to that afforded to our

other senior executives and five weeks paid vacation each year

Mr Kessels employment agreement further provides that notwithstanding the fact that Mr Kessel will be

an employee-at-will the following termination provisions will apply

Either we or Mr Kessel may terminate the employment agreement upon sixty 60 days prior written

notice

In the event that we terminate the employment agreement without cause as defined in the employment

agreement Mr Kessel terminates the employment agreement for good reason as defined in the

employment agreement or Mr Kessel terminates his employment or we or any successor conpany

terminates Mr Kessels employment for any reason within 180 days following change in cortrol as

defined in the employment agreement Mr Kessel will be entitled to the following

continued coverage under our benefit plans through the termination date

payment of all earned but unpaid compensation including accrued unpaid vacation through
the

effective date of termination payable on or before the termination date

reimbursement of any monies advanced or expenses incurred by Mr Kessel in connection with his

employment for reasonable and necessary business expenses incurred on or before the termination

date

payment of the equivalent of the base salary he would have earned over the 18 months following the

termination date less necessary tax withholdings at his then current base salary rate referiied to as

the severance payment payable in lump sum on the first business day following the six month

anniversary of the effective date of termination to the extent required by Section 409A of he
Internal Revenue Code of 1986 as amended referred to as the Code or if not so required

Section 409A of the Code then in lump sum on the first business day following termination

that portion of any annual bonus that Mr Kessel would have been eligible to earn for the fiscal year

in which his employment terminated assuming that Environmental Powers performance is deemed

to continue at the same rate for the remainder of the fiscal year as is represented by the number of

days Mr Kessel was employed up to the dale of termination divided by 365 referred to as the

pro-rata bonus

benefit continuation for period of 18 months at the same level as he was receiving prior to the

termination and
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number of outstanding unvested stock options and restricted stock if any previously granted to

Mr Kessel shall vest upon such termination in amount equal to the stock options and restricted

stock that would have vested solely as result of the passage
of time but not as the result of any

other performance measure stock price or other target over the twelve 12 month period after such

termination if Mr Kessel remained employed by us referred to as the accelerated vesting

In the event that Mr Kessel dies or become incapacitated he or his estate will be entitled to receive

payment of all earned but unpaid compensation through the effective date of termination as

specified in the notice

bonus in deemed amount and

whatever benefits to which he or his estate may be entitled pursuant to our benefit plans

In the event that Mr Kessels employment is terminated by us for cause he will be entitled to receive

only his earned but unpaid compensation comprised of base salary and accrued vacation through the

date of termination

Mr Kessels employment agreement also contains customary proprietary information and assignment of

inventions provisions Furthermore the employment agreement provides that during such time as Mr Kessel is

employed by us and for period of two years thereafter Mr Kessel will not

engage in any business or enterprise whether as owner partner officer director employee consultant

investor lender or otherwise except as the holder of not more than 1% of the outstanding stock of

publicly-held company that develops manufactures markets licenses sells or provides any product or

service that utilizes or relates to any digester technology or

solicit certain of our employees or customers

On July 18 2006 in accordance with the terms of his employment agreement we entered into two

non-statutory option agreements with Mr Kessel The option agreements provide for the following principal

terms

The first option agreement relates to the grant of an option under the our 2005 Equity Incentive Plan to

purchase up to 250000 shares of our common stock at an exercise price of $6.30 per share the fair

market value of our common stock on July 17 2006 the date of grant and the date Mr Kessel

commenced his employment referred to as the commencement date This option vests as follows

100000 shares vest on the six-month anniversary of the commencement date

100000 shares on the 18-month anniversary of the commencement date and

50000 shares on the 24-month anniversary of the commencement date

In addition this option vests in full upon change in control as defined in Mr Kessels employment

agreement

The second option agreement related to the grant of an option under our 2006 Equity Incentive Plan to

purchase up to 150000 shares of our common stock at an exercise price of $6.30 per share This option

vested only if our common stock closes at price per share equal to or in excess of $10.00 on or prior to

December 31 2007 As this condition was not satisfied this option did not vest and terminated by its

terms
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Employment Offer Letter with Michael Thomas

On May 10 2007 we entered into an offer letter with Michael Thomas regarding his employment as our

Senior Vice President and Chief Financial Officer The offer letter provides for Mr Thomas employment with

our company on the following principal terms

An annual salary of $220000 which salary was increased to $227700 effective May 2008

Effective on his first date of employment such date being the grant date the grant of stock

appreciation right or SAR under the Companys 2005 Stock Incentive Plan or 2006 Equity Incentive

Plan or combination thereof pursuant to which he will be entitled to receive after vesting and upon

exercise payment in cash or in shares of our common stock or combination of the foregoing the

form and composition of such payment to be at our election equal to the increase if any in the fair

market value of up to 100000 shares of our common stock referred to as the measuring shares over the

fair market value of the measuring shares at the close of business on the grant date vesting as follows

Number of Measuring Shares Vest

25000 May 21 2008

25000 May 21 2009

25000 May 21 2009 so long as the closing price of share of our

common stock equals or exceeds $1 on or before that date

25000 On our achieving certain equity and debt financing objectives

The SAR does not represent the right to purchase the underlying measuring shares and in no vent may
the number of shares of our common stock issued pursuant to the SAR exceed the number ofshares

then available for issuance under the plans The vesting of the SAR will accelerate in full upn change

in control as defined in the offer letter

Eligibility to participate at the same level as other executives reporting directly to our Chief xecutive

Officer in any bonus plan adopted by us from time to time subject to the terms of any such pan with an

annual bonus target of 35% of base salary based on annual performance and financial targetsdeveloped

by the Chief Executive Officer

The following benefits as well as such other medical dental retirement and other benefits as are made

available from time to time to our other senior executives

An automobile allowance not to exceed $750.00 per month

Reimbursement for long-term disability and term life insurance coverage premiums paid by

Mr Thomas in an amount not to exceed $3500.00 per year

Four weeks paid vacation per year and

Reimbursement for expenses of relocation including the expenses of selling his existing residence

purchasing new residence and moving as well as temporary housing expenses of up to $1500 per

month for period of six months

The offer letter further provides that notwithstanding the fact that Mr Thomas will be an employee-at-will

he will be entitled to severance equal to 12 months of his then current base salary if he is terminated result of

job elimination or termination without cause as defined in the offer letter and not as result of discharge for

cause retirement disability death or voluntary resignation with such severance payable in lump sum upon

termination In addition to severance Mr Thomas will also be entitled to 12 months of continued medical

benefits coverage
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Employment Offer Letter with Dennis Haines

On October 11 2006 we entered into an employment offer letter with Dennis Haines regarding Mr Haines

employment as our Vice President and General Counsel The employment offer letter provides for the following

principal terms

An annual salary of $210000 which salary was increased to $221000 effective May 2008

The grant of one or more non-statutory stock options to purchase an aggregate of 100000 shares of our

common stock vesting in three installments of 25000 shares each on the six 12 and 24 month

anniversaries of Mr Haines hire date and with respect to an additional 25000 shares in the event that

the closing price of our common stock equaled or exceeded $10.00 per share on or before December 31
2007 The options have an exercise price equal to the fair market value of our common stock on the date

of grant Mr Haines will be eligible for future awards under equity compensation plans adopted by us

from time to time for which our senior executives are generally eligible with the level terms and

conditions of such participation determined by the our Board of Directors in its sole discretion

Eligibility to participate at the same level as other executives reporting directly to our Chief Executive

Officer in any bonus plan adopted by us from time to time subject to the terms of any such plan

The following benefits as well as such other medical dental retirement and other benefits as are made

available from time to time to our other senior executives

An automobile allowance not to exceed $750.00 per month

Reimbursement for long-term disability and life insurance coverage premiums paid by Mr Haines

in an amount not to exceed $5000.00 per year and

Reimbursement for the costs of continuing legal education professional license fees and

membership in professional organization up to maximum of $1750.00 annually

Mr Haines employment offer letter further provides that notwithstanding the fact that Mr Haines will be

an employee-at-will he will be entitled to severance equal to 12 months of his then current base salary if he is

terminated as result of job elimination or termination without cause and not as result of discharge for cause

retirement disability death or voluntary resignation with such severance payable in lump sum upon

termination In addition to severance Mr Haines will also be entitled to reimbursement for 12 months of

continued medical coverage
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Information Relating to Equity Awards and Holdings

The following table sets forth information regarding unexercised stock options and stock apprecittion rights

stock that has not vested and equity incentive plan awards for each of the named executive officers outstanding

as of December 31 2008

OUTSTANDING EQUITY AWARDS AT FISCAL YEAR-END

Option Awards Stock Awards

Equity

Incentive

Equity Plan

Incentive Awards
Plan Market

Awards or Payout

Equity Number Value of

Incentive Plan Market Unearned Unearned

Number of Number of Awards Number Value of Shares Shares

Securities Securities Number of of Shares Shares Units or Units or

Underlying Underlying Securities or Units or Units Other Other

Unexercised Unexercised Underlying Option Option of Stock of Stock Rights Rights

Options Options/ Unexercised SAR SAR That That That Hae That

SARs SARs Unearned Exercise Expiration Have Not Have Not Not Have Not

Name Exercisable Unexercisable Options Price Date Vested Vested1 Vested Vested

RichardE Kessel 250000 $6.30 7/16/2016

150000 $5.52 6/2/2018

332782 $5.52 6/2/2018

165003 $10395

Michael Thomas 50000 500004 $6.75 5/20/2017

116655 $5.52 6/2/2018

50006 3150

Dennis Haines 75000 $5.05 10/15/20 16

25000 $5.52 6/2/2018

110897 $5.52 6/2/2018

50008 3150

The amounts in this column are calculated based on price per share of $0.63 the closing market
price per share of our common stock

on December 31 2008

Represents shares subject to SARs vesting as to 50% of the shares subject thereto on May 12009 with the balance vestingon May

2010

Represents shares subject to restricted stock award vesting as to 50% of the shares subject thereto on May 2009 with the balance

vesting on May 12010

Represents shares subject to SARs vesting as to 25000 shares on May 21 2009 so long as the closing price
of our common stock is at

least $11.00 per share on that date and as to the remaining 25000 shares on May 31 2009

Represents shares subject to SARs vesting as to 50% of the shares subject thereto on May 2009 with the balance vesting on May

2010

Represents shares subject to restricted stock award vesting as to 50% of the shares subject thereto on May 2009 with the balance

vesting on May 12010

Represents shares subject to SARs vesting as to 50% of the shares subject thereto on May 2009 with the balance vesting on May

2010

Represents shares subject to restricted stock award vesting as to 50% of the shares
subject

thereto on May 2009 with the balance

vesting on May 12010
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2008 OPTION/SAR EXERCISES AND STOCK VESTED

Option Awards Stock Awards

Number of Shares Value Realized Number of Shares Value Realized

Name Acquired on Exercise1 on Exercise2 Acquired on Vesting on Vesting

Richard Kessel

Michael Thomas

Dennis Haines

The amounts in the Number of Shares Acquired on Exercise represent the number of shares issued to the

executive in question net of number of shares having fair market value necessary to pay the exercise

price of the shares issued based on the market price per share of our common stock on the date of exercise

The amounts in the Value Realized on Exercise column are calculated based on the market price per share

of our common stock on the date of exercise multiplied by the number of shares issued to the executive

Payments upon Termination or Change of Control

We have entered into employment agreements with each of the named executive officers These

employment agreements provide for payments and benefits to the executive officer upon termination of

employment or change of control of Environmental Power under specified circumstances For information

regarding the specific circumstances that would trigger payments and the provision of benefits the manner in

which payments and benefits would be provided and conditions applicable to the receipt of payments and

benefits see Employment and Severance Arrangements

The following tables set forth information regarding potential payments and benefits that each named

executive officer who was serving as an executive officer on December 31 2008 would receive upon termination

of employment or change of control of Environmental Power under specified circumstances assuming that the

triggering event in question occurred on December 31 2008 the last business day of the fiscal year

SUMMARY OF POTENTIAL PAYMENTS UPON TERMINATION OR CHANGE OF CONTROL

Voluntary

Termination without Cause Resignation

Value of

Options/SARs/
Stock Awards

with

Cash Value of Accelerated Cash

Name Payments1 Benefits2 Vesting3 Total Payments

RichardE Kessel $478200 $52781 $5198 $536179

Michael Thomas 227700 7476 235176

Dennis Haines 221000 7590 228590

Immediately

upon

Change of Termination in Connection

Control with Change of Control

Value of Value of

Options/SARs/ Options/SAR5I
Stock Awards Stock Awards

with with

Accelerated Cash Value of Accelerated

Name Vesting3 Payments1 Benefits2 Vesting3 Total

Richard Kessel $478200 $52781 $5198 $536179

Michael Thomas4 227700 7476 235176

Dennis Haines4 221000 7590 228590

Potential payments also apply in the case of termination of employment by Mr Kessel for good reason as

defined in his employment agreement
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The amounts in this column reflect lump sum payment based upon annual base salary in effect on

December 31 2008 Mr Kessel would also be entitled to pro-rata portion of any bonus to which he would

have been eligible This amount does not include Mr Kessels bonus in respect of his services for 2008
which is discretionary and has not yet been determined

Represents

In the case of Mr Kessel the aggregate value of automobile expense reimbursement 401k ratch and

medical dental and life insurance premiums provided or expected to be provided to the named

executive in each case based on the amount of such benefits which he received in 2008

In the case of Messrs Haines and Thomas the aggregate value of medical insurance premiums for

12-month period following termination of employment in each case based on the annualized amount of

such benefits to which the executive was entitled in 2008

The amounts in this column represent the value of restricted stock awards with accelerated vesting and are

calculated based on $0.63 the closing market price per share of our common stock on December 2008

In the case of options or SARs subject to accelerated vesting because the exercise price of any such options

or SARs exceeded the closing market price per share of our common stock on December 31 2008k such

options or shares would not have had any value as of such date

Messrs Haines and Thomas would be entitled to receive the payments and benefits set forth in thi table

irrespective of whether their employment is terminated in connection with change-in-control

Compensation of Directors

The following table sets forth information for the fiscal year ended December 31 2008 regarding the

compensation of our directors who are not also named executive officers

DIRECTOR COMPENSATION

Fees Earned or SAR All Other

Name Paid in Cash Awards1 Compensation Total

Roger Ballentine $48000 45498 93498

John Cooper 58000 45498 103498

Joseph Cresci 84000 79621 163621

Lon Hatamiya 48000 45498 93498

Steven Kessner 48000 45498 93498

Kamlesh Tejwani 48000 45498 93498

August Schumacher Jr 48000 45498 93498

Robert Weisberg 48000 132757 180757

The amounts in the SAR Awards column reflect the dollar amounts recognized as compensation expense

for financial statement reporting purposes for stock appreciation rights SARs for the fiscal year ended

December 31 2008 in accordance with SFAS 123R using Black-Scholes valuation model employing

certain variables and related assumptions including stock price volatility The amounts shown in this

column are therefore projections that do not necessarily reflect the actual cash compensation to be received

by the SAR holder upon exercise of the SARs The assumptions we used to calculate these amounts are

discussed in Note to our consolidated financial statements included in our Annual Report on Form 10-K

for the year
ended December 31 2008 Amounts in this column for Mr Weisberg include both hi annual

SAR award for service as director as well as SAR award having SFAS 123R value of $8759 as

compensation for certain consulting services rendered to the company
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Non-Employee Director Compensation

Effective beginning July 2007 we began compensating our non-employee directors as follows

monthly retainer of $4000 except that the non-executive Chairman of the board of directors will

receive monthly retainer of $7000 and the Chair of the Audit Committee of the board of directors

will receive monthly retainer of $4833.33 and

the annual grant of SAR under our 2006 Equity Incentive Plan based on 15000 shares of our common
stock except that the Chairman of the board of directors will receive SAR based on 26250 shares of

the our common stock

In September 2008 our board of directors unanimously authorized us to defer payment of the monthly cash

fees set forth above until further notice We have been accruing these fees on its financial statements at such

times as they would otherwise become due

Compensation Committee Interlocks and Insider Participation

The members of the Compensation Committee during the fiscal year ended December 31 2008 were
Messrs Hatamiya Schumacher and beginning in June 2008 Mr Kessner No member of the Compensation
Committee was at any time during the fiscal

year ended December 31 2008 or formerly an officer or employee
of Environmental Power or any subsidiary of Environmental Power nor has any member of the Compensation
Committee had

any relationship with Environmental Power during the fiscal
year ended December 31 2008

requiring disclosure under Item 404 of Regulation S-K

None of our executive officers has served as director or member of the Compensation Committee or other

committee serving an equivalent function of any other entity one of whose executive officers served as

director or member of the Compensation Committee of Environmental Power

Compensation Committee Report

The Compensation Committee has reviewed and discussed the Compensation Discussion and Analysis

required by Item 402b of Regulation S-K with management Based on this review and discussion the

Compensation Committee has recommended to the Board of Directors that the Compensation Discussion and

Analysis be included in the proxy statement of Environmental Power for its 2008 Annual Meeting of

Stockholders

By the Compensation Committee of the Board

of Directors of Environmental Power

Corporation

Lon Hatamiya Chair

August Schumacher Jr

Steven Kessner
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Item 12 Security Ownership of Certain Beneficial Owners and Management and Related Stoc1holder

Matters

Stock Ownership Information

Beneficial Ownership of Common Stock

The following table sets forth information regarding beneficial ownership of our common stock as of

February 28 2009 by

each person entity or group
of affiliated persons or entities known to us to be the beneficial owner of

more than 5% of the outstanding shares of our common stock

each of our directors

each of the named executive officers and an additional executive officer with respect to whom we have

elected to provide beneficial ownership and compensation disclosure and

all of our directors and executive officers as group

Beneficial ownership is determined in accordance with the applicable rules of the SEC and includes voting

or investment power with respect to shares of our common stock Shares of common stock issuable under stock

options and warrants that are currently exercisable or exercisable within 60 days of February 28 2009
are

deemed to be beneficially owned by the person holding the option or warrant for purposes of calculatitig the

percentage ownership of that person but are not deemed outstanding for purposes
of calculating the percentage

ownership of any
other person The information set forth below is not necessarily indicative of benefiial

ownership for any other purpose and the inclusion of any shares deemed beneficially owned in this tale
does

not constitute an admission of beneficial ownership of those shares
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Additional

Shares

Shares
Underlying

Underlying Options
Options Warrants

Warrants or Other

or Other Securities
Percentage

Number of Securities Exercisable Total of

Outstanding Currently or Number of Common
Shares Exercisable Convertible Shares Stock

Beneficially or within 60 Beneficially BeneficiallyName and Address of Beneficial Owner Owned Convertible Days Owned Owned

5% Stockholders

Joseph Cresci 765222 342858 1108080 6.94%
Chairman

Black River Commodity Clean Energy

InvestmentFundLLC4 1733028 1733028 9.99%
Funds and accounts managed by Philip

Hempleman 1074289 1074289 6.88%
Funds controlled by Austin Marxe and David

Greenhouse 917261 917261 5.87%

Other Directors

Kamlesh Tejwani 571429 571429 3.53%
Vice Chairman

John Cooper 9094 57858 66952 0.43%
Lon Hatamiya 2250 29286 31536 0.20%
Steven Kessner 542677 72037 614714 3.92%

August Schumacher Jr 18142 65001 83143 0.53%
Robert Weisberg 41892 65003 106895 0.68%

Roger Ballentine
0.00%

Richard Kessel 66500 400000 466500 2.9 1%
President and Chief Executive Officer

Other Named Executive Officers

Michael Thomas 5000 5000 0.03%
Senior Vice President

Chief Financial Officer and Treasurer

Dennis Haines 15000 100000 115000 0.73%
Vice President and General Counsel

All executive officers and directors as group

11 persons consisting of officers including

an employee director and non-employee

directors 1465777 1703472 3169249 18.30%

Unless otherwise indicated the address of each beneficial owner is care of Environmental Power
Corporation 120 White Plains Road 6th Floor Tarrytown NY 10591

Except as otherwise indicated in the footnotes below the named person has sole voting and investment

power with respect to the shares indicated except where applicable to the extent authority is shared by
spouses under community property laws and all shares are held beneficially and of record by the named

person

Includes 582577 shares held in the Joseph Cresci Revocable Trust U/I/A DID 4/3/96 of which
Mr Cresci is the trustee ii 8532 shares held in the Joseph Cresci Mildred Cresci Trust as to which
Mr Cresci has shared voting and investment power iii 142857 shares deposited in 50-year voting trust

on November 20 1996 as to which David Mulhern the trustee of the voting trust has beneficial

ownership in his capacity as trustee with sole voting power but as to which Mr Cresci has beneficial
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ownership through voting trust certificates held by The Cresci Family Limited Partnership of which

Mr Cresci is the sole general partner with sole dispositive power and iv 342858 shares that Mr Cresci

has the right to acquire pursuant to currently exercisable stock options Does not include 2857 shares owned

by Mr Crescis wife as to which shares Mr Cresci has neither voting nor investment power and as to which

shares he disclaims beneficial ownership Of the shares beneficially owned by Mr Cresci 164286 shares

are pledged as security for Mr Crescis obligations under promissory notes held by Environmental Power

having an aggregate outstanding principal amount of $179146

This stockholder has an address at 12700 Whitewater Drive Minnetonka MN 55343 This stockho1der has

the right to acquire total of 2249930 shares of our common stock issuable upon conversion of 224993

shares of our series 9% cumulative convertible preferred stock referred to as the series prefefred stock

held by this stockholder and 1124965 shares of our common stock issuable upon exercise of cuilrently

exercisable warrants held by this stockholder The terms of the series preferred stock and the w.rrants

held by this stockholder provide that this stockholder may not convert shares of series preferred stock or

exercise warrants if after giving effect to such conversion or exercise the stockholder together with its

affiliates would beneficially own more than 9.99% of the outstanding shares of our common stock The

number of shares beneficially owned by this stockholder reflects the application of this Iimitationbased on

the number of shares of our common stock issued and outstanding as of November 15 2007 Black River

Asset Management LLC is the stockholders investment advisor and may be deemed to beneficially own the

shares held by this stockholder insofar as it has the power to vote and dispose of such shares Peter Lee as

Managing Director of Black River Asset Management LLC may be deemed to beneficially owia the shares

held by this stockholder insofar as he has the authority with others to vote or dispose of such
sh1res

Black

River Asset Management LLC and Mr Lee each disclaim beneficial ownership of the shares benficially

owned by the fund except to the extent of its or his pecuniary interest therein if any

Based solely on Schedule 3G/A jointly filed by Ardsley Partners Renewable Energy Fund L.P Ardsley

Energy Ardsley Renewable Energy Offshore Fund Ltd Ardsley Energy Offshore ArdsleA Advisory

Partners Ardsley Ardsley Partners Ardsley Partners and Phillip Hempleman on Febri.lary 13

2009 Mr Hempleman is the Managing Partner of Ardsley and Ardsley Partners Ardsley is the lvestment

Manager of Ardsley Energy Offshore and the Investment Advisor of Ardsley Energy and certain managed

accounts Ardsley Partners is the general partner
of Ardsley Energy Ardsley Energy owns 443900 shares of

our common stock and Ardsley Energy Offshore owns 430389 shares of our common stock Ar1sley

Ardsley Partners and Mr Hempleman share voting and dispositive power over such shares and therefore

may be deemed to beneficially own such shares Also includes shares of our common stock held certain

managed accounts managed by Mr Hempleman directly Mr Hempleman disclaims beneficial ov nership of

all of the shares shown in the above table The address of each of the filing persons other than
Adsley

Renewable Energy Offshore Fund Ltd is 262 Harbor Drive Stamford Connecticut 06902 Ardley

Renewable Offshore Fund Ltd gives its address as Romasco Place Wickhams Cay Roadtowfl Tortola

British Virgin Islands

Based solely on Schedule 3G jointly filed by Messrs Marxe and Greenhouse on February 13 2009

Messrs Marxe and Greenhouse are the controlling principals of AWM Investment Company Inc

AWM the general partner
of and investment adviser to Special Situations Cayman Fund L.P

Cayman AWM also serves as the general partner of MGP Advisers Limited Partnership MGP and

the general partner
of Special Situations Fund III QP L.P SSFQP AWM serves as the investment

adviser to SSFQP Messrs Marxe and Greenhouse share sole voting and investment power over 220533

shares of our common stock owned by Cayman and 696728 shares of our common stock owned by SSFQP

Messrs Marxe and Greenhouse give their principal business address as 527 Madison Avenue Suite 2600

New York NY 10022

Includes 445257 outstanding shares held by RE Funding LLC of which Mr Kessner is the sole officer

and director and over which he has sole voting and investment control ii 77936 outstanding shares held in

equal amounts by the Adam Kessner Trust the Michael Kessner Trust the Richard Kessner Trust and the

Robert Kessner Trust Mr Kessner is the sole trustee of each of the foregoing trusts and has sole voting and
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investment control over the shares held by such trusts and iii 19484 outstanding shares held by

Mr Kessner as custodian for Jonathan Kessner over which Mr Kessner exercises sole voting and

investment control

Of the shares beneficially owned by Mr Weisberg 11428 shares are pledged as security for

Mr Weisbergs obligations under promissory note held by Environmental Power having an outstanding

principal amount of $48575

Beneficial Ownership of Our Series 9% Cumulative Convertible Prferred Stock

The following table sets forth information regarding beneficial ownership of our series 9% cumulative

convertible preferred stock referred to as the series preferred stock as of February 28 2009 by each person

entity or group of affiliated
persons or entities known to us to be the beneficial owner of more than 5% of the

outstanding shares of our series preferred stock Each share of series preferred stock is entitled to vote at all

regular and special meetings of our stockholders on an as converted basis with one vote per share of common

stock into which such shares of series preferred stock are convertible and having voting rights and powers

equal to those of the holders of common stock Each share of series preferred stock is currently convertible

into approximately 10.04 shares of common stock Our series preferred stock is not registered under the

Securities Exchange Act of 1934 as amended

The information set forth below is not necessarily indicative of beneficial ownership for any other purpose

and the inclusion of any shares deemed beneficially owned in this table does not constitute an admission of

beneficial ownership of those shares

Number of

Outstanding

Shares of Percentage of

Series Series

Preferred Preferred

Stock Stock

Beneficially Beneficially

Name and Address of Beneficial Owner1 Owned Owned

Black River Commodity Clean Energy Investment Fund LLC2 224993 80.00%

Leonard Brecken and Affiliate 56248 20.00%

Except as otherwise indicated in the footnotes below the named
person

has sole voting and investment

power with respect to the shares indicated and all shares are held beneficially and of record by the named

person

See footnote to the preceding table for additional information

Based in part on Schedule 13G filed by Mr Brecken and Brecken Capital LLC on August 2007

Mr Brecken and Brecken Capital LLC have an address of 346 Hartshorn Drive Short Hills NJ 07078 The

number of shares of series preferred stock beneficially owned is comprised of 9400 shares of series

preferred stock held Mr Brecken personally and 46848 shares of series preferred stock held by Brecken

Capital Management LLC These stockholders also hold warrants to purchase 46967 and 234273 shares of

our common stock respectively The terms of the series preferred stock and the warrants held by these

stockholders provide that these stockholders may not convert shares of series preferred stock or exercise

warrants if after giving effect to such conversion or exercise either stockholder together with its affiliates

would beneficially own more than 4.99% of the outstanding shares of our common stock The foregoing

beneficial ownership limitation may be waived by each stockholder at its election upon not less than 61

days prior notice to us to change the limitation to 9.99% of the number of shares of the common stock

outstanding immediately after giving effect to the issuance of shares of common stock upon conversion of

series preferred stock or exercise of warrants held by such stockholder Thereafter the 9.99% limitation

may not be waived We believe that Mr Brecken is also the owner of 559634 shares of our common stock

Mr Brecken is the Managing Director of Brecken Capital LLC which is the general partner of Brecken
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Capital Management Fund LLC both Mr Brecken and Brecken Capital LLC may be deemed to

beneficially own the shares held by Brecken Capital Management Fund LLC insofar as they exercise voting

and investment authority with respect to such shares

Equity Compensation Plan Information

The following table sets forth information as of December 31 2008 regarding securities authorized for

issuance under our equity compensation plans

Weighted-

Average Exercise Number oE Securities

Price of Remaining Available for

Number of Securities to Be Outstanding Future Issuance Under

Issued Upon Exercise of Options Equity Compensation Plans

Outstanding Options Warrants and Excluding Securities

Plan Category Warrants and Rights Rights Reflected in Column

Equity compensation plans approved by

stockholders1 2102760 $5.83 754000

Equity compensation plans not approved by

stockholders2 1311232 $5.15
_______

Total 3413992 $5.55 754OOO

Consists of our 1993 Director Option Plan our Restated 2001 Stock Incentive Plan our Restated 2002

Director Option Plan our 2005 Equity Incentive Plan our 2006 Equity Incentive Plan and our 2006 Director

Option Plan The information in columns and does not include or give effect to 679952 shares of

our common stock underlying stock appreciation rights having weighted average exercise price of $5.61

granted under our 2005 Equity Incentive Plan and our 2006 Equity Incentive Plan Such stock appreciation

rights may be settled in cash shares or combination thereof at our election and we cannot now determine

the number of shares of our common stock which may be issued upon exercise of such stock appreciation

rights

Consists of the following options and warrants

ten-year option for 14286 shares of common stock issued in 2002 to Madison Power in cQnsideration

of certain services This option has an exercise price of $4.06 per share and vested May 2001

five-year warrant to purchase 7144 shares of our common stock at an exercise price of $7.70 per

share issued to Charles Blouin Inc issued in November 2004 in consideration of construction bond

support for two of Microgys projects in Wisconsin which warrants vested in full upon completion of

such projects

Five-year warrants to purchase an aggregate of 88000 shares of our common stock at an exercise price

of $6.33 per share subject to adjustment as set forth in such warrants issued to Ladenburg Thalman

Co Inc and certain of its affiliates as compensation for Ladenburg services as underwriter in our

public offering completed in February 2005

Five-year warrants to purchase an aggregate of 168745 shares of our common stock at an exercise price

of $5271 per share subject to adjustment as set forth in such warrants issued to Westminstr Securities

Corporation and certain of its affiliates as compensation for Westminsters services as placeiient agent

in our private placement completed in November 2006

An option to purchase 571429 shares of our common stock issued to Kamlesh Tejwani on July

2003 as part of his overall compensation package which option expires on January 2011 The option

is exercisable in two tranches consisting of 357143 options exercisable at $1.75 and 214286 options

exercisable at $7.00 The options were to vest upon the successful completion of one or more qualified

financings defined as the sale of equity securities of Environmental Power or Microgy on or before

July 2006 provided that the first such financing results in gross proceeds of at least $3500000 The
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options were to vest in the same percentage as the percentage of $8000000 that the gross proceeds in

each qualified financing represents with such percentage applied to the lower-priced options first As of

March 31 2005 all of Mr Tejwanis options had vested

ten-year option to purchase 142858 shares of our common stock issued to Joseph Cresci in March

2004 as part of his compensation package This option has an exercise price of $7.00 per share and

vested in full in September 2004 upon the achievement of certain performance-based criteria

ten-year option to purchase 142858 shares of our common stock issued to Donald Livingston in

March 2004 as part of his compensation package This option has an exercise price of $7.00 per share

and vested in full in September 2004 upon the achievement of certain performance-based criteria

five-year warrant to purchase total of 175912 shares of our common stock at an exercise price of

$5.37 per share issued to Cargill Incorporated in May 2007 pursuant to the terms of our Business

Development Agreement with Cargill

Item 13 Certain Relationships and Related Transactions and Director Independence

Employment and Retirement Agreements

We have entered into employment and retirement arrangements with certain of our executive officers

former executive officers and directors For additional information regarding these agreements see Information

About Executive and Director CompensationEmployment Transition Retirement Consulting and Severance

Agreements appearing in Part III Item 11 of this report Except for such agreements and the other compensation

arrangements described in this Form 10-K/A we did not enter into
any

transactions with related persons within

the meaning of Item 404 of Regulation S-K during the fiscal year ended December 31 2008 in which the amount

involved exceeded $120000

Policies and Procedures Regarding Review Approval or Ratification of Related Person Transactions

In March 2007 our Board of Directors adopted written policies and procedures for the review of any

transaction arrangement or relationship in which we are participant the amount involved exceeds $120000

and one of our executive officers directors director nominees or 5% stockholders or their immediate family

members each of whom we refer to as related person has direct or indirect material interest

If related person proposes to enter into such transaction arrangement or relationship which we refer to

as related person transaction the related person must report the proposed related person transaction to our

General Counsel who we refer to as our chief legal officer The policy calls for the proposed related person

transaction to be reviewed and if deemed appropriate approved by our Audit Committee Whenever practicable

the reporting review and approval will occur prior to entry into the transaction If advance review and approval

is not practicable the Audit Committee will review and in its discretion may ratify the related person

transaction The policy also permits the chair of the Audit Committee to review and if deemed appropriate

approve proposed related person transactions that arise between committee meetings subject to ratification by

the Audit Committee at its next meeting Any related person transactions that are ongoing in nature will be

reviewed annually

related person transaction reviewed under the policy will be considered approved or ratified if it is

authorized by the Audit Committee after full disclosure of the related persons interest in the transaction As

appropriate for the circumstances the Audit Committee will review and consider

the related persons interest in the related person transaction

the approximate dollar value of the amount involved in the related person transaction

the approximate dollar value of the amount of the related persons interest in the transaction without

regard to the amount of any profit or loss

29



whether the transaction was undertaken in the ordinary course of our business

whether the terms of the transaction are no less favorable to us than terms that could have been reached

with an unrelated third party

the purpose of and the potential benefits to us of the transaction and

any other information regarding the related person transaction or the related person in the cotitext of the

proposed transaction that would be material to investors in light of the circumstances of the particular

transaction

The Audit Committee may approve or ratify the transaction only if the Committee determines that under all

of the circumstances the transaction is in or is not in conflict with our best interests The Audit Committee may

impose any conditions on the related person transaction that it deems appropriate

In addition to the transactions that are excluded by the instructions to the Securities and Exchange

Commissions related person
transaction disclosure rules our Board of Directors has determined that the

following transactions do not create material direct or indirect interest on behalf of related persons and

therefore are not related person
transactions for purposes of this policy

interests arising solely from the related persons position as an executive officer of another entity

whether or not the person
is also director of such entity that is participant in the transadtion where

the related person and all other related persons own in the aggregate less than 10% equity interest

in such entity the related
person

and his or her immediate family members are not involved in the

negotiation of the terms of the transaction and do not receive any special benefits as result of the

transaction and the amount involved in the transaction equals less than the greater of $2i0000 or

5% of the annual gross revenues of the company receiving payment under the transaction arid

transaction that is specifically contemplated by provisions of our charter or bylaws

The policy provides that transactions involving compensation of executive officers shall be reviewed and

approved by the Compensation Committee in the manner specified in its charter

There were no related person transactions presented for review in 2008

Board Determination of Independence

Under applicable rules of The NASDAQ Stock Market LLC director will only qualify as an itidependent

director if in the opinion of our board of directors that person does not have material relationship with our

company which would interfere with the exercise of independent judgment in canying out the responsibilities of

director Our board of directors has determined that none of Messrs Ballentine Cooper Kessner Sçumacher

Weisberg or Hatamiya has material relationship with our company which would interfere with the xercise of

independent judgment in carrying out the responsibilities of director and therefore that each of thee directors

is independent within the meaning of Rule 4200a15 of the NASDAQ Marketplace Rules In addition none

of the current members of our board of directors other than Mr Kessel is an employee of Environmntal Power

or any
of its subsidiaries Furthermore the board expects that Messrs Cresci and Tejwani may become

independent within the next few years if they remain on our board
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Item 14 Principal Accountant Fees and Services

Independent Auditors Fees

Vitale Caturano Company P.C served as our independent auditors for the fiscal
years ended

December 31 2008 and 2007 The fees billed for professional services rendered to us by Vitale Caturano

Company P.C in respect of services rendered in respect of 2008 and 2007 are described below

Audit-

Year Audit FeesI Related Fees2 Tax Fees All Other Fees

2008 $305000 $83455

2007 $253566 $70033

Comprised of professional services rendered in connection with the audit of our financial statements and the

reviews of financial statements included in each of our Quarterly Reports on Form 10-Q for the years

indicated as well as testing of managements assessment of internal controls and procedures in compliance

with Section 404 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002

Comprised of professional services rendered in connection with the preparation and review of registration

statements filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission and other matters arising out of the audit of

our financial statements and relating to the offerings to which such registration statements related including

the issuance of consents and comfort letters

Pre-Approval Policy and Procedures

The Audit Committee has adopted policies and procedures relating to the approval of all audit and non-audit

services that are to be performed by our independent registered public accounting firm This policy generally

provides that we will not engage our independent registered public accounting firm to render audit or non-audit

services unless the service is specifically approved in advance by the Audit Committee or the engagement is

entered into pursuant to one of the pre-approval procedures described below

From time to time the Audit Committee may pre-approve specified types of services that are expected to be

provided to us by our independent registered public accounting firm during the next 12 months Any such

pre-approval is detailed as to the particular service or type of services to be provided and is also generally subject

to maximum dollar amount

The Audit Committee has also delegated to the chair of the Audit Committee the authority to approve any

audit or non-audit services to be provided to us by our independent registered public accounting firm
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SIGNATURES

Pursuant to the requirements of Section 13 or 15d of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 the registrant has

duly caused this report to be signed on its behalf by the undersigned

ENVIRONMENTAL POWER CORPORATION

By
Is RICHARD KESSEL

Richard Kessel

President and Chief Executive Officer

Date March 27 2009

Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities Act of 1934 this report has been signed by the folIwing

persons on behalf of the registrant and in the capacities and on the dates indicated

By

Signature

Is RICHARD KESSELL

Richard Kessel

Roger Ballentine

Is MICHAEL THOMAS

Michael Thomas

Attorney-in-Fact
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Lon Hatamiya

Steven Kessner

August Schumacher Jr

Robert Weisberg

Date

March 27 2009

March 27 2009
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Exhibit No Description
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31.2 Rule 3a- 14a 5d- 14a Certifications of the Registrants Chief Financial Officer
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